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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STAT EMENTS

We may make forward-looking statements in filingghwthe Securities and Exchange Commission, inalgidiis Annual Report on Form 10-
K and the accompanying Exhibits, filings incorpedhby reference, reports to our shareholders, #ret csommunications that we make in
good faith pursuant to the safe harbor provisidrtb@® Private Securities Litigation Reform Act &#95. These forward-looking statements
represent our beliefs, plans, objectives, goalslaiimes, expectations, anticipations, estimated,iatentions. These statements are not
guarantees of future performance and involve aeriaks, uncertainties, and assumptions that assecan various factors, many of which are
beyond our control. The words “may,” “could,” “sHdy “would,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “estimate,*expect,” “intend,” “plan,” and other
similar expressions identify forward-looking statts. The following factors, among others, couldseaour financial performance to differ
materially from that expressed in such forward-iogkstatements:

» the strength of the U.S. economy in general andtilength of the local economies in which we condperations

» the effects of, and changes in, trade, monetaqyfianal policies and laws, including interest rptdicies of the Federal Reserve
System;

« inflation, interest rate, market and monetary fiations;

» our timely development of competitive new produantsl services and the acceptance of these procuttseavices by new and
existing customers

» the willingness of customers to substitute compes’ products and services for our products and senandsvice verse

» the impact of changes in financial services laws r@gulations, including laws about taxes, banksagurities, and insurance, and
the impact of the Doc-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protectiot

» the impact of the U.S. Department of the Treasag/faderal banking regulatorsbntinued implementation of programs to adc
capital and liquidity in the banking syste

» further, future and proposed rules, including thibse are part of the process outlined in the hdgonal Basel Committee on
Banking Supervision’s “Basel Ill: A Global Regulagd-ramework for More Resilient Banks and Bankingt8ms,” which are
expected to require banking institutions to inceclasels of capital

» technological change

» the effect of acquisitions, including, without lit@iion, the failure to achieve the expected revagrowith and/or expense savings
from such acquisition

» the growth and profitability of our noninterest,fee, income being less than expec

* unanticipated regulatory or judicial proceedir

» changes in consumer spending and saving habits

* our success at managing the risks involved in ¢hegioing.
We caution that the foregoing list of importanttéas is not exclusive. If one or more of the fastaffecting these forward-looking statements
proves incorrect, our actual results, performance@chievements could differ materially from thes@ressed in, or implied by, forward-
looking statements contained in this Annual ReparEorm 10-K and other reports we filed with theB#ies and Exchange Commission.
Therefore, we caution you not to place undue reéaon our forward-looking information and statenseliYe do not intend to update any

forward-looking statements, whether written or ptalreflect changes. These cautionary statemepigssly qualify all forward-looking
statements that apply to our Company. See ItenfRisk Factors,” in Part | of this report.
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PART |

ltem 1. Business
Corporate Overview

First Community Bancshares, Inc. (the “Companyjinancial holding company, was founded in 1989 mwdrporated under the laws of
Nevada in 1997. The Company provides commerciagkibgrproducts and services through its wholly owseltsidiary First Communit

Bank (the “Bank”), a Virginia-chartered bankingtihgtion founded in 1874. The Bank operates unterttade names First Community Bank
in Virginia, West Virginia, and North Carolina aR&ople’s Community Bank, a Division of First ComritymBank, in Tennessee. Unless the
context suggests otherwise, the terms “First ComipdriCompany,” “we,” “our,” and “us” in this Annal Report on Form 18-refer to Firs
Community Bancshares, Inc. and its subsidiariess @mnsolidated entity. Our operations are guided birategic plan focusing on organic
growth that may be supplemented by strategic aitopns.

The Company provides insurance services throughihitdly owned, full-service insurance agency sulasydGreenpoint Insurance Group,
Inc. ("Greenpoint”). Greenpoint operates under@reenpoint name and under the trade names Firstr@oiity Insurance Services (“FCIS”)
and Carolina Insurers Associates in North Carol@er & Hyde Insurance and FCIS in Virginia, and&@ West Virginia.

The Bank offers wealth management and investmantadhrough its wholly owned subsidiary First Coomity Wealth Management and
the Bank’s Trust Division. The Company is the comrstockholder of FCBI Capital Trust (the “Trustijhich was created in October 2003
to issue trust preferred securities to raise ckfuitahe Company.

The Company is a legal entity that is separatedistthct from its affiliates. As a financial holdjrcompany, the Company is required to ac
a source of financial strength for its subsidiaayk. The Company’s principal source of revenueeisveéd from dividends paid by the Bank,
which are subject to certain restrictions by retpriaagencies and determined in relation to easjingset growth, and capital position. For
additional information see “Regulation and Supeéovisbelow.

Operations

We operate in one business segment: Community Bgnkhe Community Banking segment consists of cori@eand consumer banking,
lending activities, wealth management, and inswaeevices. Our principal executive office is lechiit One Community Place, Bluefield,
Virginia. As of December 31, 2014, we operatedd@@tions in 4 states: Virginia, West Virginia, No@arolina, and Tennessee. We serve a
diverse base of individuals and businesses acreasety of industries, such as manufacturing, ngrservices, construction, retail,
healthcare, military, and transportation. We hawenaterial concentrations of deposits or loangedlto any single customer or industry. See
Item 6, “Selected Financial Data,” in Part Il ofstiheport for a summary of our financial performanc
We offer a wide range of services and productatocastomers:

« demand deposit accounts, savings and money margetiats, certificates of deposit, and individudireenent arrangement

» commercial, consumer, and real estate mortgage |@eu lines of credi

» various credit card, debit card, and automatedrntetlachine card service

» corporate and personal trust servic

* investment management services;

» life, health, and property and casualty insurarrcelycts.
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Employees

As of December 31, 2014, we had 678 full-time eglgmt employees. Our employees are not represegtedllective bargaining agreements
and we consider employee relations to be excellent.

Competition

The financial services industry is highly compeégtand there is substantial competition in attrecteposit and loan relationships in our
market areas. The ability of non-bank financiaiterg to provide services previously reserved fammercial banks has intensified
competition. We compete with other commercial baark financial service providers, including thrifavings and loan associations, credit
unions, consumer finance companies, commerciahfi@and leasing companies, securities firms, bemgeefirms, and insurance companies.
Competition for deposits generally comes from ottmmmercial banks, savings institutions, credibasj mutual funds, and other investment
alternatives. Factors that influence our abilityattract and retain deposits include interest rggessonalized services, quality and variety of
financial offerings, convenience of office locatspmutomated services, and office hours. Competiiocommercial and business loans
generally comes from other commercial banks andercial finance and leasing companies while cortipatfor mortgage loans primarily
comes from other commercial banks, savings ingitgt mortgage banking firms, mortgage brokers,ingdrance companies. Factors that
influence our ability to originate loans includedrest rates, loan origination fees, quality andeta of lending offerings, and personalized
services. Our competitors may have greater resswaoe higher lending limits that allow them to offervices we do not provide.
Competition could intensify in the future as a tesfigeneral and local economic conditions, indusbnsolidation, bank failures,
technological developments, and banking regulatefyrm. See “Competition” in the “Executive Ovemiesection in Part 11, Iltem 7 of this
report.

Available Information

Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as aee(ftExchange Act”), we are required to file annuplarterly, and current reports; proxy
statements; and other information with the Se@sitind Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Any documenfilvavith the SEC may be read
and copied at the SEC’s Public Reference Room @F18treet, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. PleaBel@aSEC at (800) SEC-0330 for
additional information about the public referenaem. The SEC maintains a website at www.sec.gdwcttratains reports, proxy and
information statements, and other information rdgpay issuers that file electronically with the SEC.

Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reportd~orm 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and mitifermation, including any
amendments to those reports, are available frebafye on our website, www.fchinc.com, as sooreasanably practicable after such reports
are filed with, or furnished to, the SEC. Investars encouraged to access these reports and otbenation about our business. Information
about our Board of Directors, executive officersg @orporate governance policies and principlésdlsided on our website and includes the
Standards of Conduct governing the Company'’s direcbfficers, and employees; the charters of thieding committees of the Company’s
Board of Directors; and the Company’s Insider Tingdand Disclosure Policy. Additional informatiorufad on our website is not part of this
report.

Regulation and Supervision

Banks and financial holding companies operatehighly regulated industry and are subject to exatidm, supervision, and comprehensive
regulation under applicable federal and state kawdsvarious regulatory agencies. The regulatioesréended primarily for the protection of
depositors, the Deposit Insurance Fund (“DIF")la# Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDI@)¢ the banking system as a whole
are generally not for the protection of stockhodder creditors. Banking agencies have broad eniogo¢ powers over banks and financial
holding companies to impose substantial fines adhlties for violations of laws and regulations.
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The following discussion summarizes certain laws, and regulations that affect our Company. &tsesnmaries are not intended to be
complete and are qualified in their entirety byerehce to the applicable statute or regulationh&nge in laws, rules, and regulations may
have a material effect on our Company.

Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer ProtectiorciA

On July 21, 2010, sweeping financial regulatorpref legislation entitled the Dodd-Frank Wall StrRetform and Consumer Protection Act
(“Dodd-Frank Act”) was signed into law. The DoddaRk Act implements far-reaching changes acrosfiribacial regulatory landscape,
including the following provisions:

» centralizes responsibility for consumer financiatpction by creating a new agency, the Consunmarigial Protection Bureau
(“CFPFE"), responsible for implementing, examining and enfayatompliance with federal consumer financial la

» requires financial holding companies, such as th@@any, to be well capitalized and well managedfauly 21, 2011 (bank holding
companies and banks must also be well capitalinddrgell managed to engage in interstate bank aitignis);

» imposes comprehensive regulation of the over-they®y derivatives market, which would include cerfarovisions that would
effectively prohibit insured depository institut®from conducting certain derivatives businessekarinstitutions themselve

« implements corporate governance revisions, inclyi@xecutive compensation and proxy access by shiaezs;
* makes permanent the $250 thousand limit for feddgpbsit insuranct

» repeals the federal prohibitions on the paymemtefest on demand deposits, thereby permittingsiéqry institutions to pay interest
on business transaction and other accol

« amends the Electronic Fund Transfer Act to, amahgrahings, give the Board of Governors of thedtallReserve System (“Federal
Reserve”) the authority to establish rules regaydierchange fees charged for electronic dehils@ations by payment card issuers
having assets over $10 billion and enforces a natutery requirement that such fees be reasonallg@eoportional to the actual cost
a transaction to the issuer; ¢

» increases the authority of the Federal Reservegdmine bank holding companies, such as the Compenaytheir no-bank subsidiarie

Another section of the Dodd-Frank Act, the Mortg&gform and Anti-Predatory Lending Act (“MortgagefBrm Act”), contains new
underwriting and servicing standards for the mag&gmdustry, as well as restrictions on compensdtio mortgage originators. The Mortgi
Reform Act grants broad discretionary regulatortharity to the CFPB to prohibit or condition ternagts, or practices relating to residential
mortgage loans that the CFPB finds abusive, urdaiceptive, or predatory, as well as to take adicéions that the CFPB finds are necessary
or proper to ensure that responsible affordablegage credit remains available to consumers. ThddBrank Act also contains laws
affecting the securitization of mortgages, and o#ssets, with requirements for risk retention égusitizers and requirements for regulating
credit rating agencies. Many aspects of the DoddaEAct continue to be subject to rulemaking anidi take effect over several years,
making it difficult to anticipate the financial impt on our Company, our customers, or the geni@hdial industry. Provisions in the
legislation that affect deposit insurance assestsnpayment of interest on demand deposits, aeddnange fees could increase costs
associated with deposits, as well as place linoitation certain revenues those deposits may generate
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First Community Bancshares, Inc.

The Company is a financial holding company orgathizeder the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 (“GLBtBcand a bank holding
company registered under the Bank Holding Compactyof 1956, as amended (“BHC Act”). The Compangubject to supervision,
regulation, and examination by the Federal Resditve.GLB Act, BHC Act, and other federal laws subjénancial and bank holding
companies to particular restrictions on the tygesctivities they may engage in and to a rangeupesvisory requirements and activities,
including regulatory enforcement actions for viaas of laws and regulations. The BHC Act generpligvides for umbrella regulation of
financial holding companies, such as the Compapyhé Federal Reserve, as well as functional réigulaf banking activities by bank
regulators, securities activities by securitiesutatprs, and insurance activities by insurance leggrs.

The Company is also under the jurisdiction of tBCSnd is subject to the disclosure and regulatguirements of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and the Exchange Act as adméudtg the SEC. The Company’s common stock isdistethe NASDAQ Global Select
Market under the trading symbol “FCBC,” and is subjto the rules of NASDAQ for listed companies.

Regulatory Restrictions on Dividends: Source oéi&jth

The Federal Reserve’s policy has historically regpibank holding companies to act as a sourcenahiial and managerial strength to their
subsidiary banks. The Dodd-Frank Act codified fhadicy as a statutory requirement. Under this rezqaent, the Company is expected to
commit resources to support the Bank, even wherait not be in a financial position to provide suebources. Federal Reserve policy states
that bank holding companies may pay cash dividendsommon stock only from income available overhst year if prospective earnings
retention is consistent with the organization’sextpd future needs and financial condition. Barlkihg companies should not maintain
dividend levels that undermine their ability todosource of strength to their banking subsidiakelsank holding company may be require
guarantee the capital restoration plan of an ursghtalized banking subsidiary in certain situations

In addition, the Company and the Bank are subgeottier regulatory policies and requirements ne¢ato the payment of dividends, includ
requirements to maintain adequate capital abovwdaggy minimums. The appropriate federal regulatarthority may determine that the
payment of dividends would be an unsafe or unsquactice, under certain circumstances regardinditla@cial condition of a bank holding
company or a bank, and prohibit dividend paymeFite appropriate federal regulatory authorities hetaged that paying dividends that
deplete a bank’s capital base to an inadequatéwexdd be an unsafe and unsound banking practidettaat banking organizations should
generally pay dividends only out of current opemttarnings. In the current financial and econcanidronment, the Federal Reserve has
discouraged payment ratios that are at maximumvaldte levels, unless both asset quality and capitavery strong, and has noted that bank
holding companies should carefully review theiridénd policy.

Scope of Permissible Activities

Under the BHC Act, bank holding companies are Buahito banking, managing or controlling banks, fsinitig services to or performing
services for their subsidiaries, or other actigitiieat the Federal Reserve has determined to belglcelated to banking or managing and
controlling banks as to be a proper incident tlier€he BHC Act requires every bank holding comptngbtain the prior approval of the
Federal Reserve before acquiring direct or indiosatership or control of more than 5% of the votaingires of any bank or all, or
substantially all, of the assets of a bank. Whar@png bank acquisitions by bank holding comparties Federal Reserve is required to
consider the financial and managerial resourcedwatnde prospects of the bank holding company aedarget bank, the convenience and
needs of the communities to be served, and vadooetitive factors. The BHC Act also prohibitsank holding company from acquiring
direct or indirect control of more than 5% of thgsianding voting stock of any company engagedrinrabanking business
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unless such business is determined by the FedesaRe to be so closely related to banking as tfreper incident thereto.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the GLB Act elimiadtthe barriers to affiliations among banks, séesrfirms, insurance companies, ¢
other financial service providers and permits baokling companies to become financial holding conigmand thereby affiliate with
securities firms and insurance companies and ernigagtder activities that are financial in natufée GLB Act defines “financial in nature”
to include securities underwriting, dealing, andkattmaking; sponsoring mutual funds and investneentpanies; insurance underwriting
and agency; merchant banking activities; and aw#/that the Federal Reserve has determined ¢tobely related to banking. Regulatory
approval is not generally required for a finantialding company to acquire a company, other thhark or savings association, engaged in
activities that are financial in nature, or incitldrto activities that are financial in nature desermined by the Federal Reserve.

Under the GLB Act, a bank holding company may beeeanfinancial holding company by filing a declapativith the Federal Reserve if ei
of its subsidiary banks is well capitalized undex EDIC Improvement Act prompt corrective actionygsions, is well managed, and has at
least a satisfactory rating under the CommunitynRestment Act. The Company elected financial hgdiompany status in December 2006.
Since July 2011, the Company’s status is deperatentaintaining a well-capitalized and well-managttus under applicable Federal
Reserve regulations. If a financial holding comp#ails to meet these requirements, the FederalrReseay impose corrective capital and/or
managerial requirements on the financial holdingugany and place limitations on its ability to contithe broader financial activities
permissible for financial holding companies. Thelé@l Reserve may require divestiture of the hgl@iompany’s depository institutions if
the deficiencies persist.

The Dodd-Frank Act amended the BHC Act to requiefal financial regulatory agencies to adopt rthas prohibit banks and their
affiliates from engaging in proprietary trading andesting in and sponsoring certain unregistensgstment companies (defined as hedge
funds and private equity funds). The statutory fgiow is commonly called the “Volcker Rule.” Thedesal Reserve adopted final rules
implementing the Volcker Rule on December 10, 201 Volcker Rule became effective on July 21, 284@ the final rules became
effective on April 1, 2014, but the Federal Resasgeied an order on December 18, 2014, extendagetiod during which institutions have
to conform their activities and investments to ibguirements of the Volcker Rule to July 21, 20Miée Federal Reserve also announced its
intention to grant an additional one-year extensibthe conformance period to July 21, 2017. Orudan14, 2014, the banking agencies
approved an interim rule to permit banking entiteesetain interests in certain collateralized dalfitgations backed primarily by trust
preferred securities from the prohibitions underYolcker Rule. Although we continue to evaluate ithpact of the Volcker Rule and the
final rules adopted, we do not expect that the k@idRule will have a material effect on the openasi of the Company and subsidiaries, a
Company does not engage in the businesses prahliytéhe Volcker Rule. The Company may incur ctsidopt additional policies and
systems to ensure compliance with the Volcker Radéany such costs are not expected to be material

Anti-Tying Restrictions

Bank holding companies and their affiliates arehfhibed from tying the provision of certain seng¢csuch as extensions of credit, to other
services offered by a holding company or its affés.

Stock Repurchases

A bank holding company is required to give the FabbReserve prior notice of any redemption or repase of its own equity securities,
subject to certain exemptions, if the consideratohe paid, together with the consideration pardahy repurchases or redemptions in the
preceding year, is equal to 10% or more of the @mfs consolidated net worth. The Federal Reseraxe oppose the transaction if it
believes that the transaction would constitute r@sate or unsound practice or would violate any déawegulation.
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Capital Adequacy Requirements

The Federal Reserve uses two types of capital adgoguidelines for holding companies: a two-tieriek-based capital guideline and a
leverage capital ratio guideline. The two-tieresk+based capital guideline assigns risk weighttogs! assets and certain off-balance sheet
items. The guideline establishes a minimum ratidief 1 capital to the aggregate dollar amounisk-weighted assets (which amount is
usually less than the aggregate dollar amountdi sssets without risk weighting) and of total talpiTier 1 capital plus Tier 2 capital, as
adjusted) to the aggregate dollar amount of risighted assets. The leverage ratio guideline estaddi a minimum ratio of the holding
company’s Tier 1 capital to its total tangible dsgéotal assets less goodwill and certain ideatilf intangibles) without risk-weighting. As
discussed below, the Bank is subject to similaitaapequirements.

Under both guidelines, Tier 1 capital is definednidude common shareholders’ equity comprisecetdined earnings; qualifying
noncumulative perpetual preferred stock and relstedlus; qualifying cumulative perpetual preferstaick and related surplus; minority
interests in the equity accounts of consolidatdibliaries, which are limited to a maximum of 25¢d@@r 1 capital; and certain trust
preferred securities. The Dodd-Frank Act excludesttpreferred securities issued after May 19, 26d® being included in Tier 1 capital,
unless the issuing company is a bank holding compath less than $500 million in total assets. Tqeferred securities issued before that
date continue to count as Tier 1 capital for bankling companies with less than $15 billion in t@ssets, such as the Company. Goodwill
and most intangible assets are deducted from Teéapital. Tier 2 capital, sometimes referred teggplementary capital, is defined to
include, subject to limitation: perpetual preferstdck not included in Tier 1 capital; intermedittem preferred stock and any related sur|
certain hybrid capital instruments; perpetual deiit mandatory convertible debt securities; allowearfor loan and lease losses; and
intermediate-term subordinated debt instruments. Maximum amount of qualifying Tier 2 capital i0%0 of qualifying Tier 1 capital. Total
capital equals Tier 1 capital, plus qualifying TZcapital, minus investments in unconsolidatedlidries, reciprocal holdings of bank
holding company capital securities, and deferredatsets and other deductions. The Federal Resawgent capital adequacy guidelines
require that a bank holding company maintain a Tigsk-based capital ratio of at least 4.0% amata risk-based capital ratio of at least
8.0%. As of December 31, 2014, the Company'’s w@tidier 1 capital to total risk-weighted assets W&s13% and ratio of total capital to
risk-weighted assets was 17.68%.

The Federal Reserve uses a leverage ratio as ad &aulol to evaluate the capital adequacy of bahdtiig companies. The leverage ratio is a
company’s Tier 1 capital divided by its averagaltobnsolidated assets. Certain highly rated bahdifg companies may maintain a
minimum leverage ratio of 3.0%, but other bank l@jccompanies are required to maintain a leveratie of 4.0% or more, depending on
their condition. As of December 31, 2014, the Conyfmleverage ratio was 10.12%.

The federal banking agencies’ risk-based and Igeeratios are minimum supervisory ratios that galheapply to banking organizations that
meet certain specified criteria, assuming that theaye the highest regulatory rating. Banking orgatidns not meeting these criteria are
expected to operate with capital positions welhabihe minimum ratios. Federal Reserve guidelimesige that regulatory agencies may set
capital requirements for a particular banking oigation that are higher than the minimum when citstances warrant. These guidelines
provide that banking organizations experiencingrimal growth or making acquisitions will be expelcte maintain strong capital positions
substantially above the minimum supervisory levgtiout significant reliance on intangible assets.

The current risk-based capital guidelines thatyappthe Company and the Bank are based on the d&®88&l accord of the International
Basel Committee on Banking Supervision, a commifegentral banks and bank supervisors, implemeyettie Federal Reserve. In July
2013, the Federal Reserve published the Basekhlpit&@l Rules establishing a new comprehensive @idipitmework for U.S. banking
organizations. The rules implement the Basel Coterit December 2010 framework known as “Baselftt’strengthening international
capital standards as well as certain provisionth®Dodd-Frank Act. The Basel 1l Capital Rules
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substantially revise the risk-based capital reqoéets that apply to bank holding companies and slepy institutions, including the
Company and the Bank, compared to the currentfisiSbased capital rules. The Basel 11l Capital Ruleéftndehe components of capital a
address other issues affecting the numerator ikibgmnstitutions’ regulatory capital ratios. Tha®&el 11l Capital Rules address risk weights
and other issues affecting the denominator in bankistitutions’ regulatory capital ratios and e the existing risk-weighting approach,
which was derived from the Basel | capital accafithe Basel Committee, with a more risk-sensitipproach based, in part, on the
standardized approach in the Basel Committee’s 2B@del 11" capital accords. The Basel Il CapiRilles also implement the requirements
of Section 939A of the Dodd-Frank Act to removeerefices to credit ratings from the federal bankiggncies’ rules. The Basel Ill Capital
Rules are effective for the Company and the Banlijext to a phase-in period, on January 1, 2015.

The Basel Il Capital Rules, among other thing},irifroduce a new capital measure called “Commonitigier 1” (“CETL1"), (2) specify
that Tier 1 capital consists of CET1 and “Additibmar 1 capital” instruments meeting specifieduggments, (3) define CET1 narrowly by
requiring that most deductions/adjustments to reguy capital measures be made to CET1 and nbketother components of capital, and
(4) expand the scope of the deductions/adjustmrant®mpared to existing regulations.

When fully phased in on January 1, 2019, the Blds€lapital Rules will require the Company and Ba&nk to maintain the following
minimum ratios:

« CET1 to risk-weighted assets of at least 4.5%, plas% “capital conservation buffer” (which is addo the 4.5% CET1 ratio as that
buffer is phased in, effectively resulting in a mam ratio of CET1 to ris-weighted assets of at least 7% upon full implenteorty

» Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets of at |€a8%, plus the capital conservation buffer (whieladded to the 6.0% Tier 1 capital ratio
as that buffer is phased in, effectively resulimg minimum Tier 1 capital ratio of 8.5% upon fitiplementation)

e Total capital (that is, Tier 1 plus Tier 2) to Haleighted assets of at least 8.0%, plus the camtaservation buffer (which is added to
the 8.0% total capital ratio as that buffer is muhm, effectively resulting in a minimum total @b ratio of 10.5% upon full
implementation); an

« Tier 1 capital to average assets (leverage rafidyo(as compared to a current minimum leverage dt3% for banking organizations
that either have the highest supervisory ratingase implemented the appropriate federal regulatatiiority’s risk-adjusted measure
for market risk).

The Basel Il Capital Rules provide for a “countgitcal capital buffer” that applies to certain eved institutions; however, the buffer is not
expected to apply to the Company or the Bank. Epétal conservation buffer is designed to absoskds during periods of economic stress.
Banking institutions with a ratio of CET1 to riskeighted assets above the minimum but below theeceason buffer (or below the
combined capital conservation buffer and countdicgiccapital buffer, when the latter is applied)liace constraints on dividends, equity
repurchases and compensation based on the amatiet stiortfall.
Under the Basel Il Capital Rules, the followingtial minimum capital ratios will be effective a§ &anuary 1, 2015:

* 4.5% CETL1 to ris-weighted asse!

* 6.0% Tier 1 capital to risweighted asse!

» 8.0% Total capital to ris-weighted asse!
The Basel Il Capital Rules provide a number ofwd#ibns from and adjustments to CET1. These incliateexample, the requirement that

mortgage servicing rights, deferred tax assetingrisom temporary differences that could not baired through net operating loss
carrybacks and significant investments in non-cbdated
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financial entities be deducted from CET1 to theeakthat any one such category exceeds 10% of @E@Il such categories in the aggregate
exceed 15% of CET1. Under current capital standahdseffects of accumulated other comprehensizente (“AOCI") items included in
capital are excluded for the purposes of deterrginggulatory capital ratios. Under the Basel lIp&a Rules, the effects of certain AOCI
items are not excluded; however, non-advanced aphes banking organizations, including the Compand/the Bank, may make a otiae
permanent election to continue to exclude thesestd’he Company and the Bank expect to make thdieh to avoid significant changes in
the level of capital depending upon the impachtéiiest rate fluctuations on the fair value of @mmpany’s available-for-sale securities
portfolio. The Basel Il Capital Rules also preveattain hybrid securities, such as trust prefesexlrities, as Tier 1 capital of bank holding
companies, subject to phase-out. The rules doegpiire a phase-out of trust preferred securitiseid before May 19, 2010, for holding
companies of depository institutions with less tBas billion in consolidated total assets, as ofé&rber 1, 2009, which includes the
Company. Therefore, the Company’s trust prefersmtisties that were issued before May 19, 2010parmanently grandfathered in as Tier
1 or Tier 2 capital instruments,

Implementation of the deductions and other adjusten® CET1 will begin on January 1, 2015, and blphased in over a four-year period
(beginning at 40% on January 1, 2015, and an additi20% per year thereafter). The implementatfaihe capital conservation buffer will
begin on January 1, 2016, at 0.625% and will besetidn over a four-year period (increasing by #mbunt on each subsequent January 1,
until it reaches 2.5% on January 1, 2019).

With respect to the Bank, the Basel Ill Capital €&uhlso revise the “prompt corrective action” ragjohs under Section 38 of the Federal
Deposit Insurance Act, as discussed below undemipt Corrective Action.”

The Basel Il Capital Rules prescribe a standaagproach for risk weightings that expand the-viglghting categories from the current
four Basel I-derived categories (0%, 20%, 50% aB@P4) to a much larger and more risk-sensitive nurbeategories, depending on the
nature of the assets, generally ranging from 0%Jf&. government and agency securities, to 600%ddrin equity exposures, and resulting
in higher risk weights for a variety of asset catégs. The following changes, among others, toesurrules that influence the Company’s
determination of risk-weighted assets include:

» applying a 150% risk weight (instead of a 100%3ecatain high volatility commercial real estate asdgion, development, and
construction loans

» assigning a 150% risk weight to exposures (otham tlesidential mortgage exposures) that are 90 phstsdue

» providing for a 20% credit conversion factor foe thnused portion of a commitment with an originatunity of one year or less that is
not unconditionally cancellable (set at O¢

» providing for a risk weight, generally not lessnt20% with certain exceptions, for securities leigdiransactions based on the risk
weight category of the underlying collateral seegrihe transactior

» providing for a 100% risk weight for claims on sgtias firms; anc

» eliminating the current 50% cap on the risk weightOTC derivatives
The Basel Il Capital Rules provide more advantageisk weights for derivatives and repurchaseediynsactions cleared through a
qualifying central counterparty and increase thapeaf eligible guarantors and eligible collatdealpurposes of credit risk mitigation.

Management believes that, as of December 31, 20&42ompany and the Bank would meet all capitatjadey requirements under the Bz
[l Capital Rules on a fully phased-in basis asuth requirements were in effect.

11



Table of Contents

Liquidity Requirement

Historically, the regulation and monitoring of baakd bank holding company liquidity was addressed supervisory matter, without
required formulaic measures. The Basel Il liqyidiamework requires banks and bank holding comgsati measure their liquidity against
specific liquidity tests that, although similarsome respects to liquidity measures historicallylied by banks and regulators for manager
and supervisory purposes, going forward would l@ired by regulation. One test, referred to as'thguidity Coverage Ratio” (‘LCR"), is
designed to ensure that the banking entity maiatamadequate level of unencumbered high-quatjtidiassets equal to the entity¥xpecte
net cash outflow for a 30-day time horizon (ogriéater, 25% of its expected total cash outflongarran acute liquidity stress scenario. The
other test, referred to as the “Net Stable Fun&atio” (‘“NSFR"), is designed to promote more mediwand long-term funding of the assets
and activities of banking entities over a one-yi@ae horizon. These requirements will incent bagkémtities to increase their holdings of
U.S. Treasury securities and other sovereign debht@mponent of assets and increase long-termadebfunding source. On September 3,
2014, the federal banking agencies finalized tiesrimplementing the LCR for advanced approachagibg organizations and a modified
version of the LCR for bank holding companies veitheast $50 billion in total consolidated assk# tire not advanced approaches banking
organizations, neither of which would apply to @empany or the Bank. The federal banking agena@ee hot yet proposed rules to
implement the NSFR.

Incentive Compensatic

In June 2010, the Federal Reserve, the Officemfbmptroller of the Currency (“OCC’and the FDIC issued their final guidance on po$
intended to ensure that the incentive compensatidinies of banking organizations do not undernthmesafety and soundness of such
organizations by encouraging excessive risk takiing final guidance, which covers all employees Wwhwee the ability to materially affect

the risk profile of an organization, is based upgmnkey principles that a banking organizationteintive compensation arrangements should:

» provide incentives that do not encourage risk tgkiayond the organizati’s ability to effectively identify and manage ris
» comply with effective internal controls and risk magement, an
e support strong corporate governance that includtdgeaand effective oversight by the organiza's board of director:

The Federal Reserve indicated that all bankingroegdions are to evaluate their incentive compeéosatrrangements and related risk
management, controls, and corporate governancesses and immediately address deficiencies in #iregagements or processes that are
inconsistent with safety and soundness.

The Federal Reserve reviews, as part of their eggtisk-focused examination process, the incerorapensation arrangements of banking
organizations, such as ours, that are not largaptax banking organizations. These reviews wiltdilred to each organization based on the
scope and complexity of the organization’s acegtand the prevalence of incentive compensati@mgements. The findings of the
supervisory initiatives will be included in repodsexamination. Deficiencies will be incorporaietb the organization’s supervisory ratings,
which can affect the organization’s ability to malaguisitions and take other actions. Enforcemeti@s may be taken against a banking
organization if its incentive compensation arrangets, or related risk management control or govera@rocesses, pose a risk to the
organization’s safety and soundness and the orgtimizis not taking prompt and effective measuoesorrect the deficiencies.

In February 2011, the Federal Reserve, the OCCthenBDIC approved a joint proposed rulemakingrplement Section 956 of the Dodd-
Frank Act, which prohibits incentive-based compédinsaarrangements that encourage inappropriatetalgkg by covered financial
institutions and that are deemed excessive, orlea/to material losses.
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The scope and content of the U.S. banking regudapmiicies on executive compensation are contigtdndevelop and we expect those
policies to continue evolving in the near fututecdnnot be determined at this time whether compgawith such policies will adversely aff
our ability to attract, hire, retain, and motivagy employees.

First Community Bank

The Bank is a Virginia state-chartered bank sugen/and regulated by the Virginia Bureau of Finalncistitutions (“Virginia Bureau”)As a
member of the Federal Reserve, the Bank’s primedgral regulator is the Federal Reserve Bank (“BRBRichmond. The Virginia Bureau
and FRB of Richmond are based in the Company’s h&tate of Virginia. The regulations of these agesigjovern most aspects of the Bank’
business, including required reserves against dsptmans, investments, mergers and acquisitibospwing, dividends, and location and
number of branch offices.

Restrictions on Transactions with Affiliates anditfers

Transactions between the Bank and its non-bankibgidiaries or affiliates, including the Companse aubject to Section 23A of the Federal
Reserve Act the (“FRA"). In general, Section 23Apimses limits on the amount of such transactions raquires certain levels of collateral
for loans to affiliated parties. It also limits thenount of advances to third parties that are wlidized by the securities or obligations of the
Company.

Affiliate transactions are also subject to Sec8B of the FRA that generally requires that certeansactions between the Bank and its
affiliates be on terms substantially the same ¢east as favorable to the Bank, as those preggit the time for comparable transactions
with or involving other noraffiliated persons. The Federal Reserve has isRegdlation W that codifies prior regulations un8ections 23/
and 23B of the FRA and interpretive guidance witbpect to affiliate transactions.

The Dodd-Frank Act generally enhances the regriston transactions with affiliates under Sect@3& and 23B of the FRA, including an
expanded definition of covered transactions anteamed amount of time for which collateral requieets on covered credit transactions r
be satisfied. Insider transaction limitations arpanded through the strengthening of loan resbristito insiders and the expansion of the t
of transactions subject to the various limits, udthg derivatives transactions, repurchase agreesm@&verse repurchase agreements, and
securities lending or borrowing transactions. Retsbns are also placed on certain asset salesddram an insider to an institution, such as
the sales on market terms and, in certain circumssts approved by the institution’s board of divest

The restrictions on loans to directors, executiffieers, principal shareholders, and their relatedrests contained in the FRA and Regula
O apply to all insured institutions, their subsidta, and holding companies. These restrictionsidieclimits on loans to one borrower and

conditions that must be met before such a loarbeamade. There is also an aggregate limitatiorlldaaas to such persons. These loans

cannot exceed the institution’s total unimpaireplitzd and surplus, and the FDIC may determine aHasser amount is appropriate.

Restrictions on Distribution of Subsidiary Bank idends and Asse

The Company’s primary source of operating funddiveddends paid by the Bank. Capital adequacy regqouénts that apply to insured
depository institutions serve to limit the amouhtlividends that may be paid by the Bank. Undeefatlaw, the Bank cannot pay a dividend
if, after paying the dividend, it will be classifi@s undercapitalized. Further, prior approvahefERB is required if cash dividends declared
in any given year exceed the total of the Bankispmefits for such year, plus its retained profasthe preceding two years. Virginia law also
imposes restrictions on the ability of Virginia-cteaed banks to pay dividends if such dividends ld/dmpair a bank’s paid-in capital. The
payment of dividends by the Bank may also be lichiig
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other factors, such as requirements to maintaiitatagbove regulatory guidelines. The Virginia Baweand the FRB of Richmond have the
general authority to limit dividends paid by thenRaf such payments are deemed to constitute aafer@sd unsound practice.

Because the Company is a legal entity separateliatidct from its subsidiaries, its right to paipiate in the distribution of assets of any
subsidiary upon the subsidiary’s liquidation orrgamization will be subject to the prior claimstioé subsidiary’s creditors. In the event of
liquidation or other resolution of an insured defmy institution, such as the Bank, the claimglepositors and other general or subordinated
creditors are entitled to a priority of payment iotree claims of holders of any obligation of thetitution to its shareholders, including any
depository institution holding company or any skhatder or creditor thereof.

Examinations

Under the FDIC Improvement Act, all insured ingtiins must undergo regular on-site examinationhigjrtappropriate banking agency and
such agency may assess the institution for itssaafstonducting the examination. As a state-chadt&ederal Reserve member bank, the
Bank is subject to examination by the Virginia Baweand FRB of Richmond. These examinations revieasasuch as capital adequacy,
reserves, loan portfolio quality, investments, infation systems, disaster recovery, contingencyrjtey, management practices, and other
compliance issues.

Capital Adequacy Requirements

The various federal bank regulatory agencies hdweptad risk-based capital requirements for assgs$kecapital adequacy of banks and
bank holding companies. The federal capital statgldefine capital and establish minimum capitaliregments in relation to assets and off-
balance sheet exposure, as adjusted for creditTisk risk-based capital standards in effect asggded to make regulatory capital
requirements more sensitive to differences in pisKile among bank holding companies and bankactmunt for off-balance sheet exposure
and to minimize disincentives for holding liquidsats. Assets and off-balance sheet items are asstgrbroad risk categories, each with
appropriate risk weights. The resulting capitalosatepresent capital as a percentage of totalwisiighted assets and off-balance sheet items.

As required by the Federal Reserve’s risk-basedatapquirements, state member banks must meétianmm ratio of Tier 1 capital to total
risk-weighted assets of 4.0% and a ratio of taapital to total risk-weighted assets of 8.0%. Thpital categories for the Bank are the same
as those for the Company. In addition to the riakea capital requirements, the Federal Reservadugged regulations that supplement the
risk-based guidelines to include a minimum levenadi® of Tier 1 capital to quarterly average as®ét3.0%. The Federal Reserve has
stressed that the foregoing standards are supgrvisaimums and that a banking organization willdggmitted to maintain such minimum
levels of capital only if it receives the higheating under the regulatory rating system and timkibg organization is not experiencing or
anticipating significant growth. All other bankilogganizations are required to maintain a leveragje of at least 4.0% to 5.0% of Tier 1
capital. See “Capital Adequacy Requirements” in“fiiest Community Bancshares, Inc.” section above.

Corrective Measures for Capital Deficiencies

The federal banking regulators are required to fakenpt corrective action with respect to capiteficient institutions. Agency regulations
define, for each capital category, the levels attvinstitutions are well capitalized, adequatapitalized, undercapitalized, significantly
undercapitalized, and critically undercapitalizddvell-capitalized institution has a total risk-leaiscapital ratio of 10.0% or higher, a Tier 1
risk-based capital ratio of 6.0% or higher, a lagerratio of 5.0% or higher, and is not subjecrtp written agreement, order, or directive
requiring it to maintain a specific capital level finy capital measure. An adequately capitalinstitution has a total risk-based capital ratio
of 8.0% or higher, a Tier 1 risk-based capitalaati 4.0% or higher, a leverage ratio of 4.0% ghleir (3.0% or higher if the bank was rated a
composite 1 in
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its most recent examination report and is not dgpeing significant growth), but does not meetc¢hteria for a well-capitalized bank. An
undercapitalized institution has a total risk-basayiital ratio that is less than 8.0%, a Tier k-liased capital ratio of less than 4.0%, or a
leverage ratio of less than 4.0%. A significanthdarcapitalized institution has a total risk-basagpital ratio of less than 6.0%, a Tier 1 risk-
based capital ratio of less than 3.0%, or a leverago of less than 3.0%. A critically undercalied institution’s tangible equity is equal to
or less than 2.0% of average quarterly tangibletas#n institution may be downgraded to, or deeindak in, a capital category that is lower
than indicated by its capital ratios if it is cafesied to be in an unsafe or unsound condition ibréteives an unsatisfactory examination
rating with respect to certain matters. A bank'gitzd category is determined solely for applyingmpt corrective action regulations, and the
capital category may not constitute an accurateesgmtation of the bank’s financial condition oogpects for other purposes. The Bank was
classified as well capitalized for purposes of HIHC’s prompt corrective action regulation as ofcBmber 31, 2014.

The Basel Il Capital Rules revise the current ppboorrective action requirements effective Jandarg015 by:

« introducing a CET1 ratio requirement at each |¢gther than critically undercapitalized), with trezjuired CET1 ratio being 6.5% for
well-capitalized status

e increasing the minimum Tier 1 capital ratio reqoiemnt for each category (other than critically udeitalized), with the minimum Tie
1 capital ratio for we-capitalized status being 8% (as compared to theru6%); anc

» eliminating the current provision that providesttadank with a composite supervisory rating ofdyrhave a 3% leverage ratio and
be adequately capitalize

The Basel Il Capital Rules do not change the tas&l-based capital requirement for any promptexctive action category.

In addition to requiring undercapitalized instituts to submit a capital restoration plan, agengylegions contain broad restrictions on
certain activities of undercapitalized institutipimcluding asset growth, acquisitions, branchldishment, and expansion into new lines of
business. With certain exceptions, an insured depgsnstitution is prohibited from making capitdistributions, including dividends, and is
prohibited from paying management fees to conteospns if the institution would be undercapitalizégr any such distribution or payment.

As an institution’s capital decreases, the fedeglilators’ enforcement powers become more seResgnificantly undercapitalized
institution is subject to mandated capital raisiegvities, restrictions on interest rates paid aadsactions with affiliates, removal of
management, and other restrictions. The FDIC Inaigeldl discretion in dealing with a critically undepitalized institution and is generally
required to appoint a receiver or conservator. Bamith riskbased capital and leverage ratios below the redjuiri@imums may be subject
certain administrative actions, including terminatbf deposit insurance upon notice and hearirtgraporary suspension of insurance
without a hearing if the institution has no tangibhpital.

Deposit Insurance Assessme

The Banks deposits are insured up to applicable limitshey@IF of the FDIC and are subject to deposit iasoe assessments to maintair
DIF. The FDIC uses a risk-based assessment syeteratuate the risk of each financial institutiarséd on three primary sources of
information: its supervisory rating, its financrakios, and its long-term debt issuer rating, & thstitution has one. The FDIC’s initial base
assessment schedule can be adjusted up or dowpreméums in effect beginning April 1, 2011, randeaim 5 basis points in the lowest risk
category to 35 basis points for banks in the higtisk category.
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The Dodd-Frank Act requires the FDIC to increageDIF’'s reserves against future losses, whicheduire increased deposit insurance
premiums that are to be borne primarily by insidtas with assets of greater than $10 billion. Iridber 2010, the FDIC addressed plans to
bolster the DIF by increasing the required reseatie for the industry to 1.35% (ratio of resertesnsured deposits) by September 30, 2020,
as required by the Dodd-Frank Act. The FDIC alsmppsed to raise its industry target ratio of resgne insured deposits to 2.00%, 65 basis
points above the statutory minimum.

In February 2011, the FDIC adopted new rules thadral its current deposit insurance assessmenttemd. The new rules implement a
provision in the Dodd-Frank Act that changed theeasment base for deposit insurance premiums frenbbased on domestic deposits to one
based on average consolidated total assets mimunage/tangible equity. The rules also changedsbesament rate schedules for insured
depository institutions so that approximately taess amount of revenue would be collected usingnéve assessment base as would be
collected using the current rate schedule anddhedsiles previously proposed by the FDIC in Oct@@di0. The new rules also revised the
risk-based assessment system for large insuredsiiegoinstitutions, which generally include inatibns with at least $10 billion in total
assets and highly complex institutions, by reqggitime FDIC to use a scorecard method to calcukgessment rates for all such institutions.
The Bank is not considered a highly complex institufor these purposes.

Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, as ame(fé@&lA”), the FDIC may terminate deposit insurangaon a finding that the institution
has engaged in unsafe and unsound practicesarsumsafe or unsound condition to continue operatior has violated any applicable law,
regulation, rule, order, or condition imposed by EDIC.

In addition to deposit insurance assessments bRptRgeall FDIC-insured depository institutions mpsty an annual assessment to provide
funds for the repayment of debt obligations of Bireancing Corporation (“FICQ”). The FICO is a gonerent-sponsored entity that was
formed to borrow the money necessary to carryloeittosing and ultimate disposition of failed thiifstitutions by the Resolution Trust
Corporation. The Bank’s FICO assessments, whiclsetrquarterly, totaled $147 thousand in 2014 dridi$housand in 2013. The Bank’s
FDIC deposit insurance assessments and premiuadedct1.59 million in 2014 and $1.72 million in 201

Safety and Soundness Standards

The FDIA requires that the federal bank regulatmygncies prescribe standards, by regulations detinés, relating to internal controls,
information and internal audit systems, loan docotaon, credit underwriting, interest rate rislpesure, asset growth, asset quality,
earnings, stock valuation and compensation, feddanefits, and other operational and manageaalsirds the agencies deem appropriate.
Guidelines adopted by the federal bank regulatggnaies establish general standards relating @éoniak controls and information systems,
internal audit systems, loan documentation, craatiterwriting, interest rate exposure, asset gramthcompensation, fees and benefits. In
general, the guidelines require, among other thiaggropriate systems and practices to identifyraadage the risk and exposures specified
in the guidelines. The guidelines prohibit excessiwmpensation as an unsafe and unsound practicgesnribe compensation as excessive
when the amounts paid are unreasonable or disfiiopate to the services performed by an executifieso, employee, director, or principal
stockholder. The agencies adopted regulationsathtabrize them to order an institution that haslgeen notice by an agency not satisfying
any of such safety and soundness standards to satmminpliance plan. If an institution fails to stiban acceptable compliance plan or fails
in any material respect to implement an acceptedatepliance plan, after being so notified, the agenast issue an order directing action to
correct the deficiency and may issue an order timgother actions of the types to which an undeitefized institution is subject under the
prompt corrective action provisions of the FDIAaH institution fails to follow such an order, thgency may seek to enforce such order in
judicial proceedings and to impose civil money piem See‘Corrective Measures for Capital Deficiencies” iret‘Bank” section above.

16



Table of Contents

Enforcement Powel

The FDIC and the other federal banking agencies havad enforcement powers, including the poweernminate deposit insurance, impose
substantial fines and other civil and criminal gées, and appoint a conservator or receiver. Faita follow applicable laws, regulations,
supervisory agreements could subject us, includffigers, directors, and other institution-affikat parties, to administrative sanctions and
potentially substantial civil money penalties. ppropriate federal banking agency may appoinEDEC as conservator or receiver for a
banking institution (or the FDIC may appoint itselfider certain circumstances) if certain circumséa exist, including, without limitation,
the banking institution is undercapitalized and haseasonable prospect of becoming adequatelyatiapd; fails to become adequately
capitalized when required to do so; fails to sulartimely and acceptable capital restoration pteimmaterially fails to implement an accepted
capital restoration plan.

Consumer Laws and Regulations

In addition to the laws and regulations discusseithis report, the Bank is also subject to certainsumer laws and regulations that are
designed to protect consumers in transactions lgittks. While the list set forth is not exhaustihese laws and regulations include the T

in Lending Act, the Home Mortgage Disclosure Abg Electronic Funds Transfer Act, the Expediteddsufwvailability Act, the Equal Crec
Opportunity Act, the Fair Credit Reporting Act, tReght to Financial Privacy Act, the Fair HousingtAand various state counterparts. These
laws and regulations mandate certain disclosurgirements and regulate the manner in which findimegitutions must deal with customers
when taking deposits or making loans to such custenThe Bank must follow the applicable provisiohthese consumer protection laws
and regulations as part of their ongoing custorakations.

Federal law contains extensive customer privacyegtmn provisions. Under these provisions, a faiannstitution must provide to its
customers, at the start of the customer relatignahd annually thereafter, the institution’s p@gand procedures regarding the handling of
customers’ nonpublic personal financial informatidhese provisions also provide that, except fotage limited exceptions, a financial
institution may provide such personal informatiorunaffiliated third parties only if the institutialiscloses to the customer that such
information may be so provided and the customgivisn the opportunity to opt out of such disclosure

The Dodd-Frank Act centralized responsibility fonsumer financial protection by creating the CFRBIich implements, examines, and
enforces compliance with federal consumer protadaws. The CFPB has broad rulemaking, superviandyenforcement authority over
consumer financial products and services, includiegosit products, residential mortgages, homebtetpans, and credit cards. The CFPB’s
functions include investigating consumer complainitemaking, supervising and examining banks’ comsr transactions, and enforcing
rules related to consumer financial products amdces. Banks with less than $10 billion in assstgh as the Bank, will be subject to these
federal consumer financial laws and will continadé examined for compliance with these laws bir ghémary federal banking agency.

Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Aqgmiate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruatrdiesm Act

The Uniting and Strengthening America by Providiqpropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obdtiierrorism Act of 2001 (“USA
Patriot Act”) was enacted in October 2001. The UBriot Act has broadened existing amtiney laundering legislation while imposing n
compliance and due diligence obligations on bamkksather financial institutions, with a particufacus on detecting and reporting money
laundering transactions involving domestic or intgional customers. The U.S. Department of thesinga(“Treasury”) has issued and will
continue to issue regulations clarifying the USArida Act’s requirements. The USA Patriot Act reeps all financial institutions, as defined,
to establish certain anti-money laundering comgkéaand due diligence programs. Recently, the régylagencies have intensified their
examination procedures of the USA
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Patriot Act’s anti-money laundering and Bank Segr&ct requirements. We believe our controls andcpdures complied with the USA
Patriot Act as of December 31, 2014.

Interstate Banking and Branchir

Federal banking agencies are authorized to appnteestate bank merger transactions without ret@aimhether the transaction is prohibited
by the law of any state, unless the home statemefod the banks has opted out of the interstatk beerger provisions of the Riegle-Neal
Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Actl804, as amended, (“Riegle-Neal Act”) or by adaptiaw after the date of enactment of
the Riegle-Neal Act and before June 1, 1997, thpli@s equally to all out-oftate banks and expressly prohibits merger traiosacinvolving
out-of-state banks. Interstate acquisitions of tnas are permitted only if the law of the statevirich the branch is located permits such
acquisitions. Such interstate bank mergers andchraaquisitions are also subject to the nationwiue statewide insured deposit
concentration limitations described in the RiegkeaNAct.

Before the enactment of the Dodd-Frank Act, natiand state-chartered banks were generally peminittéoranch across state lines by
merging with banks in other states if allowed bg #pplicable statetaws. However, interstate branching is now permifte all national ani
state-chartered banks as a result of the Dodd-Fahlprovided that a state bank chartered by thte sn which the branch is to be located
would also be permitted to establish a branch, #figstively giving out-of-state banks parity withstate banks with respect to de novo
branching.

| tem 1A. Risk Factors.

The risk factors described below discuss poteptiahts, trends, or other circumstances that caludraely affect our business, financial
condition, results of operations, cash flows, litityi, access to capital resources, and, consegueatlise the market value of our common
stock to decline. These risks could cause our éutesults to differ materially from historical rétsuand expectations of future financial
performance. If any of the risks occur and the ragpkice of our common stock declines significaniigividuals may lose all, or part, of
their investment in our Company. Individuals shocddefully consider our risk factors and the addidil information included in, or
incorporated by reference to, this report befor&ingaan investment decision. There may be risksiamrtainties that we have not identif
or that we have deemed immaterial that could aéWeeffect our business; therefore, the followirgk factors are not intended to be an
exhaustive list of all risks we face. All forwardeking statements are qualified by the risks dbscribelow.

Risks Related to Our Business
The current economic environment poses significanfitallenges.

From December 2007 through June 2009, the U.S.oecpifaced a severe economic crisis and experietiheedorst economic downturn
since the Great Depression of the 1930s. Althobhghdbmestic economy continued a modest recove2@1d, business activity across a wide
range of industries and regions in the U.S. comf$nio remain reduced and local governments and imagipesses continue to experience
financial difficulty. While reflecting some improwgent, unemployment levels remain elevated. Themebeano assurance that these
conditions will continue to improve nor that thesanditions will not worsen.

Our financial performance is generally highly degemt upon the business environment in the marketsperate and the U.S. as a whole,
which includes the ability of borrowers to pay &, repay principal on outstanding loans, theealf collateral securing those loans, and
demand for loans and other products and servicesffer A favorable business environment is gemgiciiaracterized by, among other
factors, economic growth, efficient capital markdétsv inflation, low unemployment, high businesslanvestor confidence, and strong
business earnings. Unfavorable or uncertain ecomami market conditions can be caused by declimesanomic growth, business activity,
investor or business confidence; limitations on the
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availability, or increases, in the cost of creditlaapital; increases in inflation or interest satéigh unemployment; natural disasters; or a
combination of these or other factors.

During recent years, the business environment eas hdverse for many households and businesdes th . and worldwide. Although
economic conditions have improved since the reoastiiere can be no assurance that this improvewiontinue. Economic pressure on
consumers and uncertainty about continuing econanpeovement may result in changes in consumerbaisthess spending, borrowing, and
savings habits. Such

conditions could adversely affect the credit qyadit the Bank’s loans and the Company’s businésantial condition, and results of
operations.

We are subject to interest rate risk.

Our earnings and cash flows are largely depend®on net interest income. Net interest income igdifference between interest income
earned on interest-earning assets, such as lodreeanrities, and interest expense paid on intbesating liabilities, such as deposits and
borrowed funds. Interest rates are highly sensttivmany factors that are beyond our control, idiclg general economic conditions and
policies of various governmental and regulatoryreggs, particularly, the Federal Reserve. Changesonetary policy and interest rates
could influence the interest we receive on loarsseturities and the amount of interest we payaposits and borrowings. Further, such
changes could also affect our ability to originiatens and obtain deposits and the fair value offioancial assets and liabilities. If the interest
rates paid on deposits and other borrowings inerata faster rate than the interest rates rec@nddans and other investments, our net
interest income and earnings could be adversedgctft. Conversely, if interest rates received andaand other investments fall more qui
than interest rates paid on deposits and otheotangs, our net interest income and earnings calsld be adversely affected.

Our estimated allowance for loan losses may notgequate to cover actual losses.

Like all financial institutions, we maintain an@lNance for loan losses to provide for probable logses. Our allowance may not be adeq
to cover actual loan losses, and future loan losgigions could materially and adversely affect operating results. The appropriate level of
the allowance is determined by management andentigrinvolves a high degree of subjectivity angh#ficant estimates of current credit
risks and future trends, which may undergo matetiahges. Our allowance is determined by analyzisigrical loan losses, current trend:
delinquencies and charge-offs, plans for probleam leesolution, changes in the size and compoditidhe loan portfolio, and industry
information. Management’s estimates also includesimerations about the impact of economic everttégiware uncertain. Future losses are
susceptible to changes in economic, operatingp#tmel conditions, including changes in interestsatvhich may be beyond our control, and
charge-offs may exceed our current estimates. Bedegulatory agencies regularly review our loamd allowance for loan losses as an
integral part of the examination process. We belieur allowance for loan losses is adequate toigeedor probable losses. There is no
assurance that we will not, or that regulators nill require us to, increase our allowance in giperiods, which could materially and
adversely affect our earnings and profitability.

Non-covered nonperforming assets were $19.92 millioof &ecember 31, 2014, $27.79 million as of Decen®ie 2013, and $35.69 millic
as of December 31, 2012. We incurred net chargeadf$2.89 million in 2014, $10.35 million in 201&)d $6.11 million in 2012. Our
allowance for loan losses was $20.23 million aBetember 31, 2014, $24.08 million as of DecemberB13, and $25.77 million as of
December 31, 2012. Our provision for loan losses@éd to operations was $145 thousand in 2014 1$8iion in 2013, and $5.68 million
in 2012. A provision recovery was realized for puased credit impaired (“PCI”) loans of $697 thoukan2014, which included a recovery
of $275 thousand included in the provision chargedperations and $422 thousand was recorded thriwegFDIC indemnification asset. 1
provision attributed to PCI loans was $747 thoudar2D13, of which $296 thousand was included eghovision charged to operations and
$451 thousand was recorded through the FDIC indigzation asset. There was no provision before 20t ®Cl
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loans. As of December 31, 2014, the allowancebaited to non-PCl loans as a percentage of non-edvasnperforming loans was 151.85%
and the allowance attributed to non-PCI loans jasreentage of total non-covered loans was 1.29%oriperforming assets or net chanjés
increase in future periods, we may be requireddociase our allowance for loan losses, which cbaig an adverse effect on our future
results of operations.

Our level of credit risk may increase due to ourcfes on commercial, small business, and middle markastomers who may have
significant vulnerability to economic condition:

Commercial business and real estate loans areajgnewnsidered riskier than single family residahibans because larger balances are
extended to single borrowers or groups of relataddwers. Commercial business and real estate ioansse risks because the borrowers’
ability to repay the loans typically depends onghecess of the business’ operations or the piiepes¢curing the loans. The majority of our
commercial business loans are made to small bussorasiddle market customers. Commercial businedseal estate loans made or
acquired in recent years may not have experiencetnplete business or economic cycle. As of Decer®be2014, our commercial business
loans totaled $87.40 million, or 5.17% of our tdta&n portfolio, and our commercial real estatantototaled $769.61 million, or 45.55% of
our total loan portfolio. As of the same date, laugest outstanding commercial business loan wa03illion and largest outstanding
commercial real estate loan was $11.32 million.

In addition to commercial business and real edtaties, we hold a portfolio of commercial constrantloans. Construction loans generally
have a higher risk of loss primarily due to theical nature of certain assumptions and estimates to value the initial property value upon
completion of construction compared to the estichatests, including interest. If estimates provemaate, final property values may fall
below related loan amounts. As of December 31, 26@dcommercial construction loans totaled $54r@fion, or 3.22% of our total loan
portfolio. As of the same date, our largest outditasgn commercial construction loan was $6.70 million

We may suffer losses in our loan portfolio despiter underwriting practices.

We seek to mitigate the risks inherent in our Ipartfolio by adhering to specific underwriting ptiges. These practices include the analysis
of borrowers’ prior credit histories, financial &eents, tax returns, and cash flow projectionkjatén of collateral based on independent
appraisers’ reports; and verification of liquid etss We believe our underwriting criteria are ajppiade for the various loan types we offer;
however, losses may occur that exceed the resestaklished in our allowance for loan losses.

Changes in the fair value of our investment secig& may reduce stockholders’ equity and net income.

Changes in unrealized gains and losses on availabkale securities, net of the related tax effeapact stockholders’ equity through AOCI.
The unrealized gain or loss represents the differdretween the estimated fair value and the anedrtipst of the securities. A decline in the
estimated fair value of the portfolio results idexline in stockholders’ equity, book value per coon share, and tangible book value per
common share. The decrease is recorded even thiegecurities are not sold or held for sale.déht security is never sold and no credit
impairment exists, the decrease is recovered adberity’s maturity. Equity securities have ndedfamaturity; therefore, declines in fair
value may or may not be recovered over time. ABexfember 31, 2014, the fair value of securitieslabke for sale was $326.12 million and
the aggregate unrealized losses on those secwyigies$12.26 million.

We conduct quarterly reviews of our securities fodid to determine if the declines are other-thamporary. We consider the following
factors in our analysis of debt securities: ouemitto sell the securities, the evidence availabtietermine if it is more likely than not that we
will have to sell the securities before recoveryhaf amortized cost, and the probable credit logdebable credit losses are evaluated using
the present value of future cash flows; the seyarid duration of the decline in fair value belowaatized cost; the financial
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condition and near-term prospects of the issueethdr the decline is related to issuer conditigesieral market, or industry conditions; the
payment structure; the failure to make schedulet@st or principal payments; and changes to tberies’ rating by rating agencies.
Decreases in the fair value of debt securitiesediby changes in interest rates are generally deresd temporary, which is consistent with
our experience. If we determine that fair valuerdases are other-than-temporary, the securityittewrdown to a new cost basis and the
resulting loss is charged to earnings as a comparieroninterest income. We recognized other-tleamgorary impairment (“OTTI") charges
of $705 thousand in our debt securities portfali@014.

Factors we consider in our analysis of equity s&earinclude: our intent to sell the security befoecovery of the cost; the severity and
duration of the decline in fair value below cokg financial condition and netarm prospects of the issuer; and whether the mealppears
be related to issuer conditions, general markedustry conditions. We recognized OTTI charge$3# thousand in our equity securities
portfolio in 2014.

We continue to monitor the fair value of our setiesi portfolio as part of our ongoing OTTI evaloatiprocess. No assurance can be given
that we will not need to recognize OTTI chargethim future. Additional OTTI charges may materiaffect our financial condition and
earnings.

We are subject to extensive regulation, possibléoerement, and other legal action.

We operate in a highly regulated industry subje@xamination, supervision, and comprehensive atigul by various federal and state
governmental authorities, laws, and judicial anthiistrative decisions that impose requirementsrasttictions on our operations. Banking
regulations are primarily intended to protect déjpeos funds, federal deposit insurance funds, #redbanking system as a whole, not
stockholders. Congress and federal regulatory agerontinually review banking laws, regulationsd golicies for possible changes.
Changes to statutes, regulations, and regulatdigigm including changes in the interpretatiorioplementation, may cause substantial and
unpredictable effects, require additional costsitlthe types of financial services and producferefd, or allow non-banks to offer competing
financial services and products. The Dodd-Frank Asacted in July 2010, instituted major changdsattking and financial institutions
regulatory regimes. Failure to follow laws, regidas, and policies may result in sanctions by ragul agencies and civil money penalties,
which could have material adverse effects on oputaion, business, financial condition, and resaftoperations. We have policies and
procedures designed to prevent violations; howeliere is no assurance that violations will notuc&xisting and future laws, regulations,
and policies yet to be adopted may make compliame difficult or expensive; restrict our ability originate, broker, or sell loans; further
limit or restrict commissions, interest, and otblearges earned on loans we originate or sell; dadraely affect our business, financial
condition, and results of operations.

The Bank’s ability to pay dividends is subject tegulatory limitations, to the extent such dividendre required, that may affect the
Company'’s ability to pay expenses and dividendstiareholders.

The Company is a separate legal entity from thekBihe Company depends on its other subsidiarigb'the Bank’s cash, liquidity, and
payment of dividends to the Company to pay opegatixpenses and dividends to stockholders. Thare &ssurance that the Bank will have
the capacity to pay dividends to the Company irftitere or that the Company will not require dividis from the Bank to satisfy obligations.
The Bank’s dividend payment is governed by varistasutes and regulations. Depending on factors as¢he Banls financial condition, th
FRB of Richmond or the Virginia Bureau, the Bangisnary regulators, may deem dividends or othenpanyts an unsafe or unsound
practice. The Company may not be able to servitigations as they become due if the Bank is untebfgay dividends sufficient to satisfy
the Company’s obligations, including required paytsdo the Trust or dividends on our Series A Nomglative Convertible Preferred Stock
(“Series A Preferred Stock”) or our common stockn€equently, the inability to receive dividendsifrthe Bank could adversely affect the
Company’s financial condition, results of operasipcash flows, and prospects.
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We face strong competition from other financial itigitions, financial service companies, and orgaations that offer services similar to
our offerings.

We primarily conduct our operations in Virginia, $¢&/irginia, North Carolina, and Tennessee. We bynsuccessful against current and
future competitors in regions that offer productd aervices similar to those we offer; therefoneréased competition may result in reduced
loan originations and deposits. Our competitorfuide savings associations, national banks, regimsuaks, and community banks. We also
face competition from finance companies, brokeffages, insurance companies, credit unions, mortdegeks, and other financial
intermediaries. In particular, our competitors ut# state and national banks and major financialpamies with resources that may provide a
marketplace advantage by expanding and maintamingerous banking locations and mounting extensigmptional and advertising
campaigns.

Financial institutions with larger capitalizationdafinancial intermediaries not subject to bankutatpry restrictions have higher lending
limits that enable them to serve the credit neddiarger clients and, to the extent they are maverdified than us, may be able to offer the
same products and services at more competitive eatte prices. If we are unable to attract andmdtanking clients, our loan and deposit
growth, general business, financial condition, prabpects may be negatively affected.

Potential acquisitions may disrupt our business adillite stockholder value

We may seek merger or acquisition partners thatatarally similar, have experienced managemend, fossess either significant market
presence or the potential for improved profitapitirough financial management, economies of scalexpanded services. Risks inherent in
acquiring other banks, businesses, and bankingbezmmay include the following:

* potential exposure to unknown or contingent lidiedi of the target compan

* exposure to potential asset quality issues ofalget company

« difficulty, expense, and delays of integrating tpeerations and personnel of the target comp

e potential disruption to our busine!

» potential diversion of managem’s time and attentior

» loss of key employees and customers of the tamapany;

« difficulty in estimating the value of the targetnepany;

» potential changes in banking or tax laws or redgutatthat may affect the target compa

* unexpected costs and dela

» the target compar's performance does not meet our growth and prdfttabxpectations

» limited experience in new markets or product ar

* increased time, expenses, and personnel as aoéstihin on our infrastructure, staff, internahtrols, and management; a

» potential sho-term decreases in profitabilit
We regularly evaluate merger and acquisition opputies and conduct due diligence activities reldtepossible transactions with other
financial institutions and financial services comijga. As a result, merger or acquisition discusseimd, in some cases, negotiations may take

place and future mergers or acquisitions involitimg payment of cash or the issuance of debt otyegecurities may occur at any time.
Acquisitions
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typically involve goodwill, a purchase premium ovke acquired company’s book and market valuesetbee, dilution of our tangible book
value and net income per common share may occwe Hre unable to realize revenue increases, awstgs, geographic or product presence
growth, or other projected benefits from acquisisipour financial condition and results of openasionay be adversely affected.

We may engage in FDIC-assisted transactions.

We may acquire assets and liabilities of failecificial institutions that are in FDIC receiversipIlC-assisted acquisitions include risks
inherent in acquiring other banks, businessespaniting branches, as well as risks specific to #@tsaction. FDIC-assisted acquisitions
generally provide limited diligence and term negtitin and may require additional resources, expesel time to service acquired loans,
including PCI loans, integrate personnel and opegatystems, and establish processes to serviegradgqssets. Acquisitions may also
require us to raise additional capital that coldgiéna dilutive effect on existing stockholderswé are unable to manage these risks, FDIC-
assisted acquisitions could have a material adwaffeet on our business, financial condition, a@suits of operations.

Our ability to receive benefits under FDIC loss stesagreements is subject to compliance with certegquirements, oversight and
interpretation, and contractual term limitations.

We receive benefits under loss share agreementmimection with the FDIC-assisted acquisition ofdd&maw Bank (“Waccamaw”) in June
2012. Under these loss share agreements, the Fip8&dcto cover 80% of most loans and foreclosedestate losses. Loans covered under
the agreements represented 7.24% of our total loaldsfor investment as of December 31, 2014, coatptw 13.21% as of June 30, 2012.
We are subject to certain obligations under theagents that prescribe and specify how to managécs, report, and request
reimbursement for losses incurred on covered ag9etsobligations under the loss share agreemeatsxensive, and failure to follow any
obligations could result in a specific asset, augrof assets, losing loss share coverage. Reimimanrst requests are subject to FDIC review
and may be delayed or disallowed if we do not cgmmpth our obligations. Losses projected to ocauriry the loss share term may not be
realized until after the expiration of the applieahgreement; consequently, those losses may hanagegial adverse impact on our results of
operations. Our current loss estimates only incthidse projected to occur during the loss shareg@ere expect reimbursement from the
FDIC at the applicable reimbursement rate. We abgest to FDIC audits to ensure compliance withltss share agreements. The loss share
agreements are subject to interpretation by theCRibd us; therefore, disagreements about the ape@fdosses, expenses, and continge!
may arise.

Our accounting estimates and risk management prasssrely on analytical and forecasting models.

The processes we use to estimate probable loagslassl to measure the fair value of financial urents, as well as the processes used to
estimate the effects of changing interest ratesodimel market measures on our financial conditiuth )@sults of operations, depends upon
analytical and forecasting models. These modelsateissumptions that may not be accurate, paatiguh times of market stress or other
unforeseen circumstances. Even if these assumpirersdequate, the models may prove to be inadequataccurate because of other flaws
in their design or their implementation. If the natedwe use for interest rate risk and asset-lighiianagement are inadequate, we may incur
increased or unexpected losses upon changes iretnarérest rates or other market measures. Iftbeéels used for determining probable
loan losses are inadequate, the allowance forltms®s may not be sufficient to support future gaaoffs. If the models we use to measure
the fair value of financial instruments are inadsguthe fair value of such financial instrumentsyrfluctuate unexpectedly or may not
accurately reflect what we could realize upon tle sr settlement of such financial instrumentsy Aach failure in our analytical or
forecasting models could have a material adverfeetadn our business, financial condition, and itesaf operations.
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The repeal of the federal prohibitions on paymeritinterest on demand deposits could increase ouenest expense.

All federal prohibitions on the ability of finandiestitutions to pay interest on demand deposibaats were repealed as part of the Dodd-
Frank Act beginning on July 21, 2011. As a resdine financial institutions have commenced offeirigrest on demand deposits to
compete for customers. We do not yet know whatasterates other institutions may offer as manktgrest rates begin to increase. Our
interest expense will increase and net interesgimavill decrease if we begin offering interestdemand deposits to attract additional
customers or maintain current customers, whichacbalve a material adverse effect on our busingsmdial condition, and results of
operations.

Attractive acquisition opportunities may not be akable in the future.

We expect banking and financial companies, mank significantly greater resources, to competeeracquisition of financial services
businesses. This competition could increase thee ff potential acquisitions that we believe ateative. If we fail to receive proper
regulatory approval, we will not be able to consuateran acquisition. Our regulators consider ouitaigiquidity, profitability, regulatory
compliance, level of goodwill and intangible assatwd other factors when considering acquisitioth @pansion proposals. Future
acquisitions may be dilutive to our earnings anditygper share of our common stock and Series Aeled Stock.

Our goodwill may be determined to be impaired.

As of December 31, 2014, our carrying balance aidgdll was $100.72 million. We test goodwill for pairment annually, or more often if
necessary, using quantitative and qualitative facvhen available, quoted market prices in aatragkets are the best evidence of fair value
and are used as the basis for measuring impair©®¢mer acceptable valuation methods include presdoe measurements based on
multiples of earnings, revenues, or similar perfance measures. If the carrying amount of goodwikeds its implied fair value, goodwill
determined to be impaired. Impairment charges naage an adverse effect on our earnings and finlgraséion. We recognized no goodw
impairment in 2014.

We may lose members of our management team and loliffieulty attracting skilled personnel.

Our success depends, in large part, on our abiligttract and retain key people. Competition fer best people can be intense. The
unexpected loss of key personnel could have a rabéeiverse impact on our business due to thedbssrtain skills, market knowledge, and
industry experience and the difficulty of prompiityding qualified replacement personnel. Certaiistixg and proposed regulatory guidance
on compensation may also negatively affect ouiitghid retain and attract skilled personnel.

We may be required to pay higher FDIC insurance prims or special assessments.

Our deposits are insured up to applicable limitsheyFDIC’s DIF and we are subject to deposit inaae premiums and assessments to
maintain deposit insurance. We are unable to préaligre insurance assessment rates; howeverjatet@on in our risk-based capital ratios
or adjustments to base assessment rates mayirebigher insurance premiums or special assessirEmesdeterioration of banking and
economic conditions and financial institution fada deplete the FDIC’s DIF and reduce the ratieeeérves to insured deposits. If the DIF is
unable to meet funding requirements, increasegiosit insurance premium rates or special assessmeaty also be required. Future
assessments, increases, or required prepaymeatiscréd FDIC insurance premiums may negativelycaffer financial condition and results
of operations.
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We may require additional capital in the future thanay not be available when needed.

We may need to raise additional capital in therito strengthen our capital position, increaseliquidity, satisfy obligations, or pursue
growth objectives. Our ability to raise additiogapital depends on current conditions in capitalkets, which are outside our control, and
our financial performance. Certain economic condtiand declining market confidence may increaseast of funds and limit our access
customary sources of capital, such as borrowings @ther financial institutions, repurchase agresiieand availability under the FRB'’s
discount window. Events that limit access to capitarkets and the inability to obtain capital mawé a materially adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operatjaand market value of common stock. We cannotigecany assurance that additional ca|
will be available, on acceptable terms or at alkhie future.

Liquidity risk could impair our ability to fund opeations.

Liquidity is essential to our business and theiilitgio raise funds through deposits, borrowingguity and debt offerings, or other sources
could have a materially adverse effect on our dgui Company specific factors such as a declineuincredit rating, an increase in the cos
capital from financial capital markets, a decrdadausiness activity due to adverse regulatoryoaotir other company specific event, or a
decrease in depositor or investor confidence magainour access to funding with acceptable ternegjadte to finance our activities. General
factors related to the financial services industrigh as a severe disruption in financial marketieaease in industry expectations, or a
decrease in business activity due to politicalrirmnmental events may impair our access to lidyid

We are subject to credit risk associated with tivehcial condition of other financial institutions.

Financial institutions are interrelated as a restittading, clearing, counterparty, and othertiefeships. We have exposure to different
industries and counterparties, and we routinelygebetransactions with counterparties in the fimarservices industry, including brokers ¢
dealers, commercial banks, investment banks, imesst companies, and other institutional clientsr. &hility to engage in routine funding
transactions could be adversely affected by tHerigiactions, and commercial soundness of othantfiial institutions. These transactions
may expose us to credit risk if our counterpartglemt defaults on their contractual obligatiorur@redit risk may increase if the collateral
we hold cannot be realized or liquidated at prexgficient to recover the full amount of the loanderivative exposure due to us. In the event
of default, we may be required to provide collatévesecure the obligation to the counterpartiaghke event of a bankruptcy or insolvency
proceeding involving one of such counterpartiespveg experience delays in recovering the assetegh@s collateral or may incur a loss to
the extent that the counterparty was holding cedldtin excess of the obligation to such countéypaosses from routine funding transacti
could have a material adverse effect on our firere@indition and results of operations.

We are subject to environmental liability risk assated with lending activities.

A significant portion of our loan portfolio is seeudl by real property. In the ordinary course ofibess, we foreclose on and take title to
properties that secure certain loans. Hazardotsxar substances could be found on properties we ¢ivsubstances are present, we may be
liable for remediation costs, personal injury clajrand property damage and our ability to use lbttseproperty would be limited. We have
policies and procedures in place that require enwirental reviews before initiating foreclosure @i on real property; however, these
reviews may not detect all potential environmehtards. Environmental laws that require us torisabstantial remediation costs, which
could materially reduce the affected property’suealand other liabilities associated with environtakhazards could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition and results oémtions.
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Our controls and procedures may fail or be circurmted.

We review our internal controls over financial repwg quarterly and enhance controls in respondkése assessments, internal and external
audit, and regulatory recommendations. A contretesy, no matter how well conceived and operatadijdie certain assumptions and can
only provide reasonable assurance that the obgctif the control system are met. These controlsheaircumvented by individual acts,
collusion, or management override. Any failure iocumvention related to our controls and procedoregilure to follow regulations related
to controls and procedures could have a materigrad effect on our business, reputation, res@iiperations, and financial condition.

We continue to encounter technological change.

The financial services industry continues to exgare rapid technological change with the introductf new, and increasingly complex,
technology-driven products and services. The affeatse of technology increases operational efiicyethat enables financial service
institutions to reduce costs. Our future succeggu@s, in part, on our ability to provide produansl services that satisfactorily meet the
financial needs of our customers, as well as thizeeadditional efficiencies in our operations. Wiay fail to use technology-driven products
and services effectively to better serve our custsmand increase operational efficiency or suffitjeinvest in technology solutions and
upgrades to ensure systems are operating propentther, many of our competitors have substantiater resources to invest in
technology, which may adversely affect our abildycompete.

We are subject to information security risks assateid with technology.

We rely on communication and information systemsluding those provided by third-party vendorsgéaduct our business operations. Our
security risks increase as our reliance on teclgyolocreases; consequently, the expectation tageafd information by monitoring systems
for potential failures, disruptions, and breakdowas also increased. Risks associated with tecopahelude security breaches, operational
failures and service interruptions, and reputafidaaages. These risks also apply to our thirdypsetvice providers. Our thirparty vendor
include large entities with significant market graese in their respective fields; therefore, theiviges could be difficult to replace quickly if
there are operational failures or service interfounst

We rely on our technology-driven systems to condiadly business and accounting operations thatidecthe collection, processing, and
retention of confidential financial and client infioation. We may be vulnerable to security breachesh as employee error, cyber-attacks,
and viruses, beyond our control. In addition tausiég breaches, programming errors, vandalism, naatlisasters, terrorist attacks, and third-
party vendor disruptions may cause operationalfiasl and service interruptions to our communicagiod information systems. Further, our
systems may be temporarily disrupted during implatieigon or upgrade. Security breaches and sermteeruptions related to our informati
systems could damage our reputation, which mayecasito lose customers, subject us to regulatouting, or expose us to civil litigation
and financial liability.

We periodically review our information security i¢s, procedures, disaster recovery plans, arhfial condition of third-party vendors;
however, there is no assurance that security vidksiot occur, or if they do occur that our proses and procedures are implemented pro
to accurately address such risks. Security riskduding those of third-party vendors, could affeat ability to deliver products and services
to our customers, cause us to incur significaneasp, or damage our reputation, which may haveteriabadverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations.

We may be subject to claims and litigation pertaigito intellectual property.

Banking and other financial services companiesh stscthe Company, rely on technology companiesaeigie information technology
products and services necessary to support the @uoytgpday-to-day operations. Technology companfenenter into litigation based on
allegations of patent infringement or other vialas
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of intellectual property rights. In addition, patémwlding companies seek to monetize patents thegg purchased or otherwise obtained.
Competitors of the Company'’s vendors, or otheniitldials or companies, have from time to time clairteehold intellectual property sold to
the Company by its vendors. Such claims may inere@athe future as the financial services sectopbees more reliant on information
technology vendors. The plaintiffs in these actiofisn seek injunctions and substantial damages.

Regardless of the scope or validity of such patentgher intellectual property rights, or the nedf any claims by potential or actual
litigants, the Company may have to engage in pctedhlitigation. Such litigation is often expensitiene consuming, disruptive to the
Company’s operations, and distracting to managentfethe Company is found to infringe upon one arrenpatents or other intellectual
property rights, it may be required to pay subshdamages or royalties to a third party. In dertases, the Company may consider entering
into licensing agreements for disputed intellecpraberty, although no assurance can be giverstiwdt licenses can be obtained on
acceptable terms or that litigation will not occlihese licenses may also significantly increaseCii@pany’s operating expenses. If legal
matters related to intellectual property claimsevessolved against the Company or settled, the @agnpould be required to make payments
in amounts that could have a material adversetefieds business, financial condition, and resofteperations.

Severe weather, natural disasters, acts of warerdrism, and other external events could signifitidy affect our business

Severe weather, natural disasters, acts of warmrtsm, and other adverse external events cauld h significant impact on our ability to
conduct business. These events could affect thdistaf our deposit base, impair the ability afbowers to repay outstanding loans, impair
the value of collateral securing loans, cause aamt property damage, result in a loss of reveané/or cause us to incur additional
expenses. Any such events could have a materiarseleffect on our business, which, in turn, ctnalde a material adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operations.

Risks Associated with Our Common Stock
Our common stock price can be volatile.

Stock price volatility may make it more difficuldif our stockholders to resell their common stoclemwtesired. The following factors, among
others, may cause our common stock price to flaetsignificantly:

e actual or expected variations in quarterly resoftsperations

» recommendations by securities analy

« operating and stock price performance of comparadmepanies, as deemed by invest
e news reports relating to trends, concerns, and @gghees in the financial services indus
e perceptions in the marketplace about our Compampmpetitors

* new technology used, or services offered, by coitgpsf

» significant acquisitions or business combinatiatigtegic partnerships, joint ventures, or cagitahmitments by, or involving, our
Company or competitor:

» failure to integrate acquisitions or realize expddvenefits from acquisition
» changes in government regulations; .
» geopolitical conditions, such as acts or threatewbrism or military actior

General market fluctuations; industry factors; fidil conditions; and general economic conditiond avents, such as economic slowdowns,
recessions, interest rate changes, or creditiersdd, could also cause our common stock pricedoedse regardless of operating results.
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The trading volume in our common stock is less thémat of other larger financial services companies.

Although our common stock is listed for tradingtbe NASDAQ, the trading volume in our common stacless than that of other, larger
financial services companies. A public trading neatkaving the desired characteristics of depthjdidy, and orderliness depends on the
presence in the marketplace of willing buyers agibss of our common stock at any given time. Tirssence depends on the individual
decisions of investors and general economic an#tehaonditions, over which we have no control. Gitiee lower trading volume of our

common stock, significant sales of our common stockhe expectation of these sales, could causstook price to fall.

We may not continue to pay dividends on our comnsbock in the future.

Our common stockholders are only entitled to rezeiividends when declared by our Board of Directarsof funds legally available for
such payments. Although we have historically dedlarash dividends on our common stock, we areauptired to do so, and may reduce or
eliminate our common stock dividend in the futdirkis could adversely affect the market price of cammon stock. As a financial holding
company, the Company’s ability to declare and paiddnds is dependent on certain federal regulatonsiderations, including the
guidelines of the Federal Reserve regarding capitatjuacy and dividends.

An investment in our common stock is not an insurddposit.

Our common stock is not a bank deposit and, thezefe not insured against loss by the FDIC, aimgioteposit insurance fund, or by any
other public or private entity. Investment in oonamon stock is inherently risky for the reasonsdbed in this “Risk Factors” section and
elsewhere in this report and is subject to the sawamdket forces that affect the price of commonlsiaany company. As a result, holders of
our common stock could lose some, or all, of tireiestment.

Certain banking laws may have an anti-takeover effe

Provisions of federal banking laws, including regaty approval requirements, could make it mor@atilt to be acquired by a third party,
even if perceived to be beneficial to our sharetiddThese provisions effectively inhibit a non-otgted merger or other business
combination, which could adversely affect the magké&e of our common stock.

Our Series A Preferred Stock ranks senior to oumemon stock.

Our Series A Preferred Stock carries a 6% dividatel. Each share of Series A Preferred Stock igertible into 69 shares of our common
stock at any time and mandatorily converts on May2916. At our option, we may redeem the Seriéyéerred Stock at face value. The
Series A Preferred Stock ranks senior to sharesio€ommon stock. As a result, we make dividendvmnts on our Series A Preferred Stock
before our common stock, and in the event of bastksy dissolution, or liquidation, the holders @fries A Preferred Stock will be satisfied
before distributions are made to holders of our wam stock. If we do not remain current in the pagtred dividends on the Series A
Preferred Stock, dividends may not be paid on omrroon stock. Dividends declared on the Series AeRedl Stock reduce any net income
available to our common stockholders and earniegEpmmon share. As of December 31, 2014, 15,1atkeslof Series A Preferred Stock
were outstanding.

Ite m 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
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ltem 2.  Properties.

Our corporate headquarters is located at One Corityriglace, Bluefield, Virginia. Our community baskbsidiary, the Bank, provides
financial services through a network of 53 braradations throughout Virginia, West Virginia, Noi@arolina, and Tennessee. We have 21
branches in West Virginia, 19 branches in Virgidid,branches in North Carolina, and 2 brancheseimé&ssee. We own 46 branches and
lease the remaining 7 branches. Our insurancediahss, Greenpoint's, headquarters is located ighHPoint, North Carolina. Greenpoint
provides insurances services through a network afffices throughout Virginia, West Virginia, anaith Carolina. We operate 4 insurance
offices in North Carolina, 4 offices in West Virgan and 3 offices in Virginia. We own 1 office, a5 offices, and operate 5 offices within
our branch network. We also lease 2 loan produaifioes and own 1 wealth management office. Thegee no mortgages or liens against
any properties. A list of all branch and ATM locats can be found on our website at www.fchinc.corformation contained on our website
is not part of this report. See Note 8, “Premig&gjipment, and Leases,” to the Consolidated FimhiStatements in Part Il, Item 8 of this
report.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

We are currently a defendant in various legal astiand asserted claims in the normal course ofibssi Although we are unable to asses
ultimate outcome of each of these matters withagett, we are of the belief that the resolutiorit@fse actions should not have a material
adverse effect on our financial position, resufteperations, or cash flows.

Item 4.  Mine Safety Disclosures
None.
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PART Il

| tem 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Market Information, Holders and Dividends

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Globaé&eMarket under the symbol “FCBC”. As of Februa6éy 2015, there were 2,727
record holders and 18,545,619 outstanding sharesrafommon stock. The following table presentsammmon stocls high and low marki
price and cash dividends paid per share, by qualteing the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013
Market Price Cash Dividends pe Market Price Cash Dividends pe
High Low Common Share High Low Common Share
First quarter $17.0¢ $15.4¢ $ 0.12 $16.27 $15.2( $ 0.12
Second quarte 16.8¢ 13.8i 0.12 15.7¢ 14.8% 0.1Z
Third quartel 16.4¢ 13.5¢ 0.1z 17.8¢ 15.0¢ 0.12
Fourth quarte 16.5¢ 14.3¢ 0.1z 17.6¢4 15.57 0.1Z

The Company'’s ability to pay dividends on its conmstock is dependent on the Bank’s ability to psydénds to the Company, which is
subject to various regulatory restrictions and ations. See “Regulatory Restrictions on Dividerf@istirce of Strength” in the “Regulation
and Supervision — First Community Bancshares, Isection and “Restrictions on Distribution of Suliaiy Bank Dividends and Assets” in
the “Regulation and Supervision — First CommunignB’ section in Part I, Item 1 of this report. Wayicommon stock dividends only if all
accrued and unpaid dividends are fully paid oncuistanding Series A Preferred Stock. Our Seri@seferred Stock outstanding totaled
15,151 shares as of December 31, 2014, and 15(28éssas of December 31, 2013. Series A Prefetmetk Sash dividends totaled $910
thousand in 2014, $992 thousand in 2013, and $illidn in 2012. Common stock cash dividends tale$®.20 million in 2014, $9.48
million in 2013, and $8.16 million in 2012. Caslvidends paid per common share totaled $0.50 in 28048 in 2013, and $0.43 in 2012.

Purchases of Equity Securities

We repurchased 132,773 shares of our common sta?®li4, 1,739,601 shares in 2013, and 67,438 shma€d 2. The following table
provides information regarding purchases of our mamm stock made by us or on our behalf by any aféli purchaser, as defined in Rule
10b-18(a)(3) under the Exchange Act, during theslatdicated:

Total Total Number of Maximum Number of
Number of Average Shares Purchased ¢
Price Paic Shares that May
Shares Part of a Publicly Yet be Purchased
Purchasec per Share Announced Plan Under the Plan(®)
October -31, 2014 — $ — — 903,23¢
November -30, 2014 — — — 903,23t
December -31, 2014 — — — 906,53¢
Total — $ — —

(1) Our stock repurchase plan, as amended, audisattiz purchase and retention of up to 3,000,0@@&shThe plan has no expiration date
and is currently in effect. No determination hasrbenade to terminate the plan or to cease makinthpses. We held 2,093,464 shares
in treasury as of December 31, 20
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Stock Performance Graph

The following graph, compiled by SNL Financial LGNL"), compares our cumulative total shareholdsurn on our common stock for the
five-year period ended December 31, 2014, withctivaulative total return of the S&P 500 Index, theNDAQ Composite Index, and SNL’s
Asset Size & Regional Peer Group. The Asset Siieg§ional Peer Group consists of 51 bank holdingpzaoties with total assets between
billion and $5 billion that are located in the Smedst Region of the United States and traded onDM&g the OTC Bulletin Board, and pink
sheets. The cumulative returns assume reinvesmieitidends.

Total Return Performance

250

—— First Commumnity Bancshures, Inc,
i —8— 55D 500 .;_f_..--l
300 —ie— M ASDALD Composite = ____.--"" - _m
—8— Asset & Regomal Peer Group /[
_f.’--
2 P
E e
a0 4 } 3 ) }
2004 2000 2011 2012 2013 2014
Year Ended December 3
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
First Community Bancshares, Inc. 100.0¢ 127.6: 110.07 145.3( 156.6: 159.6¢
S&P 500 Indey 100.0C 115.0¢ 117.4¢ 136.3( 180.4« 205.1¢
NASDAQ Composite Inde 100.0C 118.1f 117.2: 138.0: 193.47 222.1¢
SNL Asset & Regional Peer Groi® 100.0C 105.7( 84.67 94.3¢ 120.8¢ 134.5!

(1)

Includes the following institutions: Access MNafal Corporation; American National Bankshares;lAeneris Bancorp; Bear State

Financial, Inc.; BNC Bancorp; Burke & Herbert Bakik rust Company; C&F Financial Corporation; CapiGity Bank Group, Inc.;
Cardinal Financial Corporation; Carolina Finan&arporation; Carter Bank & Trust; CenterState Bamks.; City Holding Company;
CNB Corporation; CNLBancshares, Inc.; Colony Bank¢dnc.; Community Bankers Trust Corporation; CoamityOne Bancorp;
Eastern Virginia Bankshares, Inc.; Fidelity South€orporation; First Bancorp; First Bancshares,; IRest Citizens Bancshares, Inc.;
First Security Group, Inc.; Franklin Financial Nei, Inc.; Hamilton State Bancshares, Inc.; HamfRoads Bankshares, Inc.;
HomeTrust Bancshares, Inc.; Middleburg Financialp@eation; Monarch Financial Holdings, Inc.; MVBriincial Corp.; National
Bankshares, Inc.; NewBridge Bancorp; Palmetto Blaaes, Inc.; Park Sterling Corporation; PeoplescBgmof North Carolina, Inc.;
Premier Financial Bancorp, Inc.; Seacoast Bankiagp@ration of Florida; ServisFirst Bancshares,;I8@émmons First National
Corporation; Southeastern Bank Financial Corponat8outhern BancShares (N.C.), Inc.; Southern Biasicshares, Inc.; Square 1
Financial, Inc.; State Bank Financial CorporatiStgnegate Bank; Summit Financial Group, Inc.; ToBarg; USAmeriBancorp, Inc.;
WashingtonFirst Bankshares, Inc.; and Wilson Baoldktig Company. The returns of each of the foregamstitutions have been
weighted according to their respective stock mackgitalization at the beginning of each periodvibiich a return is indicate:
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It em 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table presents our consolidated setbéinancial data, derived from audited finansi@tements, as of and for the five years
ended December 31, 2014. The table should be nez@hjunction with Item 7, “Management’s Discussand Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations,” and IltemRnancial Statements and Supplementary Data,"isfréport.

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per shate
Selected Balance Sheet Da:
Investment securitie

Loans held for sal

Loans held for investment, net of unearned inc

Allowance for loan losse
Total asset

Average asse!

Deposits

Borrowings

Total liabilities

Preferred stoc

Total stockholder equity
Average stockholde’ equity

Summary of Operations

Interest incom

Interest expens

Net interest incom

Provision for loan losses charged to operat
Noninterest incom

Noninterest expens

Income tax expens

Net income

Dividends on preferred stox

Net income available to common shareholt

Selected Share and Per Share Da

Basic earnings per common sh

Diluted earnings per common shi

Book value per common share at y-end @
Cash dividends per common sh
Weighted average basic shares outstan
Weighted average diluted shares outstan

Selected Ratios

Return on average ass

Return on average common eqt
Average equity to average ass
Dividend payou

Total risk-based capital rati

Tier 1 risk-based capital rati
Leverage ratic

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
$ 384,06 $ 520,38t $ 535,17 $ 485,92 $ 484,70:
1,792 888 6,672 5,82( 4,69
1,689,411 1,710,72. 1,724,65 1,396,06 1,386,201
20,22} 24,071 25,77( 26,20¢ 26,48:
2,607,93i 2,602,51. 2,728,86 2,164,78! 2,244,233
2,608,57! 2,661,60: 2,510,93. 2,195,63! 2,263,05!
2,000,75! 1,950,74. 2,030,17 1,543,46 1,620,95!
229,74: 300,39¢ 313,55: 295,14: 332,08
2,256,56. 2,273,90! 2,372,54. 1,859,06! 1,974,36!
15,15 15,25! 17,42: 18,92: —
351,37: 328,60t 356,32 305,72¢ 269,87t
342,61 355,61 334,90: 295,15( 269,44t
$ 106,10t $ 109,47 $ 109,65t $  94,17¢ $ 103,58:
15,29( 17,83¢ 19,60( 22,14, 29,72¢
90,81¢ 91,64: 90,05¢ 72,02¢ 73,851
14t 8,20¢ 5,67¢ 9,04 14,751
30,00: 29,77 36,71( 35,53¢ 40,50¢
82,86: 78,98¢ 78,38: 68,91t 69,94:
12,32« 10,90¢ 14,12¢ 9,57: 7,81¢
25,49( 23,31 28,57: 20,02¢ 21,84,
91C 1,02¢ 1,05¢ 708 —
24,58( 22,28¢ 27,51¢ 19,32¢ 21,84,
$ 1.34 $ 1.1¢ $ 1.44 $ 1.0¢ $ 1.2¢
1.31 1.11 1.4C 1.07 1.2¢
18.0¢ 16.7¢ 16.7¢ 15.9¢ 15.11
0.5C 0.4¢ 0.4 0.4C 0.4C
18,406,36 19,792,09 19,127,06 17,877,42 17,802,00
19,483,05 20,961,80 20,419,56 18,687,52 17,815,10
0.94% 0.84% 1.1(% 0.88% 0.97%
7.51% 6.57% 8.7(% 6.81% 8.11%
13.1% 13.3% 13.3%% 13.44% 11.91%
37.4%% 42.62% 29.8% 37.0(% 32.52%
17.6&% 16.44% 16.7(% 18.1%% 15.32%
16.42% 15.1%% 15.4% 16.8%% 14.01%
10.12% 9.95% 9.9¢% 11.5(% 9.44%

(1) Book value per common share is defined as stockdns’ equity divided by e-converted common shares outstand

(2) NM - Not meaningfu
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lte m 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

Unless the context suggests otherwise, the teriinst €ommunity,” “Company,” “we,” “our,” and “us”afer to First Community Bancshares,
Inc. and its subsidiaries as a consolidated erfhy. following Management’s Discussion and Analydiginancial Condition and Results of
Operations (“MD&A”") is intended to help the readerderstand our financial condition, changes inrfaial condition, and results of
operations. This MD&A contains forward-looking statents and should be read in conjunction with oasoclidated financial statements,
accompanying notes, and other financial informatnmiuded in this report.

Executive Overview

First Community Bancshares, Inc. (the “Company’a financial holding company, headquartered in Bl Virginia, that provides
commercial banking services through its wholly-odsebsidiary First Community Bank (the “Bank”). TBank operates under the trade
names First Community Bank in West Virginia, Virginand North Carolina and People’s Community BanRjvision of First Community
Bank, in Tennessee. The Bank has positioned &sedf regional community bank that provides anratére to larger banks, which often
place less emphasis on personal relationshipssmatler community banks, which lack the capital esgburces to efficiently serve customer
needs. The Company provides insurance servicegghrits wholly-owned subsidiary Greenpoint Insugfroup, Inc. (“Greenpoint”),

which operates under the Greenpoint name and uhddrade names First Community Insurance Seryfé€3lS”) and Carolina Insurers
Associates in North Carolina, Carr & Hyde Insuraand FCIS in Virginia, and FCIS in West Virginiahd Bank offers wealth management
and investment advice through its wholly-owned slibsy First Community Wealth Management (“FCWMTdthe Bank’s Trust Division.

Our efforts are focused on building financial parships and creating enduring and complete relstiips with businesses and individuals
through a personal and local approach to bankiddiaancial services. Our operations are guided Byrategic plan focusing on organic
growth that may be supplemented by strategic aitiuis. While our mission remains that of a comntybank, management believes that
entry into new markets may accelerate our growt g diversifying the demographics of our custotvese and by generally increasing our
sales and service network.

Economy

The regional economies we operate in have showitiyand stable aspects. The following list sumaes economic activity in the regions
we operate:

»  West Virginia and Southwest Virginia — These ecoiesnhave significant exposure to extractive indestrsuch as coal, timber, and
natural gas. Unemployment levels have generally bager than the national averay

» Central North Carolina — This economy has sufféne@cent years due to foreign competition in tiniture and textile industries and
consolidation in the financial services industrgspite these detractions, these economies corttirtienefit from large regional and
national companies operating in the Triad and GéRtiedmont region:

» Central Virginia— This economy has, in recent years, benefited freyndorporate and government activiti
» Eastern Tenness+ This economy continues to benefit from the stabdit higher education, healthcare services, andsou

Competition

We continue to encounter strong competition fomghoin loans and deposits and increased markeesh&ny of the markets we target are
being entered into by other banks located in neartuydistant markets. The expansion of banks, tovaibns, and other non-depository
financial institutions over recent years has
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intensified competitive pressures on core depa@siegation and retention. Competitive factors théitience our Company include pressure
interest yields, product fees, loan structure, laad terms; however, we have countered these pressaiith our relationship style of banking,
competitive pricing, cost efficiencies, and distiptd approach to loan underwriting.

Recent Acquisition and Divestiture Activi

Our consolidated financial statements reflect agitjan and divestiture activity from the transaatibate; therefore, comparisons between
fiscal years are affected by varying levels of ssdmbilities, income, and expense.

On May 31, 2012, we completed the acquisition affkes Bank of Virginia (“Peoples”), a full servicemmunity bank headquartered in
Richmond, Virginia. At acquisition, Peoples haditatssets of $275.76 million, loans of $184.84iomll and deposits of $232.75 million.
Goodwill recorded in the acquisition was $10.32lionil.

On June 8, 2012, we entered into a purchase anthasisn agreement with loss share arrangementsthétiFrDIC to purchase certain assets
and assume substantially all customer depositsaridin liabilities of Waccamaw, a full service aoumity bank headquartered in Whitevi
North Carolina. Under the loss share agreemeras-EHC covers 80% of most loan and foreclosedeastidte losses. At acquisitic
Waccamaw had total assets of $500.64 million, ladr$318.35 million, and deposits of $414.13 milli&oodwill recorded in the acquisiti
was $10.62 million.

On October 24, 2014, we completed the purchasevefsbranches, six in Southwestern Virginia andior@entral North Carolina, from
Bank of America, National Association. At acquisitj we assumed total deposits of $318.88 milliarafdeposit premium of $5.79 million.
Additionally, we purchased the real estate or agslthe leases associated with the branches. Ne l@are included in the transaction.

On December 12, 2014, we completed the sale dé#rirbranches, ten in Southeastern North Carofidataee in South Carolina, to
CresCom Bank (“CresCom”), headquartered in Chamesouth Carolina. At closing, CresCom assumedl teposits of $215.19 million
and purchased total loans of $70.04 million. Wesheed a deposit premium from CresCom of $6.45 anilliThe transaction excluded loans
covered under FDIC loss share agreements. In ctinnesith the transaction we recorded a net gaifi##5 thousand, which included a
$6.45 million goodwill allocation.

Insurance Services

We offer insurance services through Greenpointjlesérvice insurance agency that provides comrakaeid personal lines of insurance.
Revenues are primarily derived from commissionsl pgiissuing companies on the sale of policies. @@sion revenue totaled $6.56
million in 2014, an increase of $622 thousand,@A&%, compared to the same period of 2013, wisighimarily due to an increase in direct
bill property and casualty insurance income andingency income. Commission revenue totaled $5.8Bomin 2013, an increase of $190
thousand, or 3.31%, compared to the same peri@d1l, which was due to an increase in direct bdpprty and casualty insurance income.

Wealth Management Services

We offer trust management, estate administratiod,iavestment advisory services through FCWM amedBbank’s Trust Division, which
reported combined assets under management of $iflichras of December 31, 2014, and $706 millioro&d®ecember 31, 2013. These
assets are not our assets, but are managed umibersvize-based arrangements as fiduciary or ageetTrust Division manages inter vivos
trusts and trusts under will, develops and adménistmployee benefit and individual retirement pJaand manages and settles estates.
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Fiduciary fees for these services are chargedsmhedule related to the size, nature, and complekithe account. Revenues consist
primarily of commissions on assets under managearhinvestment advisory fees.

Critical Accounting Estimates

We prepare our consolidated financial statemenés@ordance with generally accepted accountingiplies (“GAAP”) in the United States
and conform to general practices within the bankiayistry. Our financial position and results oogtions require management to make
judgments and estimates to develop the amounttefl and disclosed in the consolidated finantséments. Different assumptions in
application of these estimates could result in nigtehanges to our consolidated financial positon consolidated results of operations.
Estimates, assumptions, and judgments, which aredieally evaluated, are based on historical eigmere and other factors, including
expectations of future events believed to be remslerunder the circumstances. These estimate®aszaljly necessary when assets and
liabilities are required to be recorded at estimddér value, a decline in the value of an asseiezhon the financial statements at fair value
warrants an impairment write-down or establishnodrat valuation reserve, or an asset or liabilitgdseto be recorded based upon the
probability of occurrence of a future event. Cargyassets and liabilities at fair value inherentisults in more financial statement volatility.
Fair values and information used to record valua#idjustments for certain assets and liabilitiesbased either on quoted market prices or,
when available, are provided by third-party sour®®ben third-party information is not available, mgement estimates valuation
adjustments primarily through the use of finanaialdeling techniques and appraisal estimates.

Our accounting policies are fundamental in undeditey MD&A and the disclosures presented in IterfiFancial Statements and
Supplementary Data,” of this report. See Note Lnmi#ary of Significant Accounting Policies,” to t®nsolidated Financial Statements in
Item 8 of this report. These policies may involigngficant estimates and assumptions that havetamahimpact on our financial condition
operating performance due to the levels of subjigtand judgment necessary to account for highmgartain matters or the susceptibility of
such matters to change. Based on the valuatiomiggads used and the sensitivity of financial statlenamounts to the methods, assumptions,
and estimates underlying those amounts, we havifidel the establishment and determination of gtreent securities, the allowance for
loan losses, business combinations, intangibleésssed income taxes as the accounting areasethjaire the most subjective or complex
judgments

Investment Securitie

Independent third parties are used to determinéathgalues of our investment securities. Inputsvided by third parties are reviewed and
corroborated by management. Evaluations of theesaokthe unrealized losses are performed to daterwhether the impairment is
temporary or other-than-temporary in nature. Weéen@wour investment portfolio quarterly for indiaais of OTTI. The analysis differs
depending upon the type of investment securitydaimalyzed. The following factors, among others,a@mnsidered in determining whether a
security is other-than-temporarily impaired: oueint and ability to hold the security for a perafdime sufficient to allow for any expected
recovery in fair value or whether it is more likehan not we will be required to sell the secubigéfore recovering its fair value; the severit
the loss and the length of time fair value has bedow amortized cost; the expectation of the sgcsifuture performance; and the
creditworthiness of the security’s issuer. If thgpairment is determined to be other-than-tempothgyyalue of the security is reduced and a
corresponding charge to earnings is recognizedNsée 3, “Investment Securities,” to the ConsokdhFinancial Statements in Item 8 of this
report.

Allowance for Loan Losse

Our quarterly review of the allowance methodology selevant factors serves as the primary meansigeanent evaluates the adequacy of
the allowance for loan losses. The determinatioounfallowance for loan losses requires managetoengke significant estimates and
assumptions. While management uses its best
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judgment and available information, the ultimateguehcy of the allowance is dependent upon a vasidigctors beyond our contre
including the performance of our loan portfoliog thconomy, changes in interest rates, and the afigagulatory authorities. These
uncertainties may result in material changes tatlwsvance for loan losses in the near term; howete amount of the change cannot
reasonably be estimated.

The Company'’s allowance for loan losses consistes#rves assigned to specific loans and creditioakhips and general reserves assigned
to loans not separately identified that have begm®nted into groups with similar risk charactersstising our internal risk grades. General
reserve allocations are based on management’s prkgrof qualitative and quantitative factors almatro and micro economic conditions
reflected within the loan portfolio and the econoriRgictors considered in this evaluation include dva not limited to, probable losses from
loan and other credit arrangements, general ecanooniditions, changes in credit concentrationd@dged collateral, historical loan loss
experience, and trends in portfolio volume, maigsitcomposition, delinquencies, and nonaccruattoHcal loss rates for each risk grade of
commercial loans are adjusted by environmentabfadb estimate the amount of reserve needed byesgtg Individually significant loans
require additional analysis that may include therdwer’s underlying cash flow and capacity for dedggayment, specific business conditions,
and value of secondary sources of repayment; coesdly, this analysis may result in the identifioatof weakness and a corresponding t
for a specific reserve.

Third-party collateral valuations are regularlyabed and evaluated to help management determgngotiential credit impairment and the
amount of impairment to record. Internal collateraluations are generally performed within twodarfweeks of identifying the initial
potential impairment. The internal evaluation conegahe original appraisal to current local re¢htesmarket conditions and considers
experience and expected liquidation costs. Whéiird-party evaluation is received, it is reviewed feasonableness. Once the evaluation is
reviewed and accepted, discounts are applied torfaiket value, based on, but not limited to, detdnical liquidation experience for like
collateral, resulting in an estimated net realigakdlue. The estimated net realizable value is ewatpto the outstanding loan balance to
determine the appropriate amount of specific impairt reserve. Specific reserves are generally dedofior impaired loans while third-party
evaluations are in process and for impaired lohasdontinue to make some form of payment. Whil@imgfor receipt of the third-party
appraisal, we regularly review the relationshijdientify any potential adverse developments andrbig tasks necessary to gain control of
the collateral and prepare it for liquidation, inding, but not limited to, engagement of counsepection of collateral, and continued
communication with the borrower.

Generally, the only difference between current ajged value, adjusted for liquidation costs, arddérrying amount of the loan, less the
specific reserve, is any downward adjustment taaped value that we determine appropriate, sut¢heasosts to sell the property. Impaired
loans that do not meet certain criteria and dohaoe a specific reserve have typically been writtewn through partial charge-offs to net
realizable value. Based on prior experience, thaamy rarely returns loans to performing statusrdftey have been partially charged off.
Impaired credits move quickly through the procesgatrds ultimate resolution except in cases invg\bankruptcy and various state judicial
processes, which may extend the time for ultimaselution.

Management uses an independent third party totassietermining the changes in cash flows andatheunt of possible impairment related
to our purchased performing loans and PCI loandCI loan pools are evaluated separately fromR@hloans in the determination of the
allowance. See Note 6, “Allowance for Loan Loss#s the Consolidated Financial Statements in Itemf tBis report.

Business Combination

The Company may engage in business combinatiosothier companies. Under the acquisition methaatobunting, all identifiable
acquired assets, including purchased loans, ahbilities are recorded at fair value. Fair values subject to refinement for up to one year
after the closing date of the acquisition as addél information about the closing date fair valbesomes available. Management makes
significant estimates and exercises significangent in accounting for business combinations. éxgess of the purchase price over
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the fair value of net assets acquired is recordegbadwill. If the price of the acquired businestess than the net assets acquired, a gain on
the purchase is recorded. Financial assets antitiebare typically valued using discount modgiat apply current discount rates to streams
of cash flow. Valuation methods require assumptiargch can result in alternate valuations, varylienels of goodwill, or bargain purchase
gains, and in some cases amortization expensemgtan income. Management must also make estinfiateke useful or economic lives of
certain acquired assets and liabilities. We rewigsvpurchased loan portfolio quarterly for changesash flows and possible impairment
using input provided from an independent third pavtanagement’s assumptions about purchased loaghmtangible assets may
significantly influence the allowance for loan lessSee Note 2, “Acquisitions, Divestitures, andrig@hing Activity,” and Note 6,Allowance
for Loan Losses,” to the Consolidated Financiatéteents in Item 8 of this report.

The Company may also engage in FDIC-assisted asitmmbinations. In 2012, we entered into a puechas assumption agreement with
loss share arrangements with the FDIC to purchagdaio assets and assume substantially all custdepasits and certain liabilities of
Waccamaw. Under the loss share agreements the &@red to cover 80% of covered assets, which dasfsisost loan and other real estate
losses. Gains and recoveries on covered assett pffer losses or are paid to the FDIC at the &twse percentage at the time of recovery.
The loss share agreement for single family covassets provides FDIC loss sharing and recoverybuisement to the FDIC for ten years.
The loss share agreement for commercial coveredsagsovides for FDIC loss sharing for five yeamd aecovery reimbursement to the FL
for eight years. Under the acquisition method @oamting, the FDIC indemnification asset was reedrdt fair value using projected cash
flows based on expected reimbursements and théapla loss share percentages. We incur expenisésddo covered assets, and certain of
these costs are reimbursable from the FDIC thraughthly and quarterly claims we submit. Estimateichbursements from the FDIC are
netted against covered expenses in the statemieintsomme. We regularly review the fair value of fABIC indemnification asset with input
from a third-party provider. Postequisition adjustments to the indemnification aase measured on the same basis as the undeclyiragec
assets. See Note 7, “FDIC Indemnification Asset thie Consolidated Financial Statements in IterhtBis report.

Intangible Asset:

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase prier the fair value of net assets acquired insingss combination. Goodwill is allocated
to the appropriate reporting unit when acquired.é&ntain two reporting units, Community Bankingldnsurance Services. Goodwill is
tested annually in the fourth quarter using a qatilie assessment to determine if it is more likbbn not that the fair value of each reporting
unit is less than its carrying amount. Qualitafietors may include macroeconomic conditions, itryusnd market considerations, our
financial performance, and changes in our stoatepif we conclude that it is more likely than tiwat the fair value of either reporting unit is
less than its carrying amount, we perform a tw-sgeantitative goodwill impairment test. Step 1 sists of calculating and comparing the
fair value of each reporting unit to its carrying@unt, including goodwill. If the fair value of aporting unit is greater than its book value, no
goodwill impairment exists. If the carrying amouwfita reporting unit is greater than its calculdtgdvalue, goodwill impairment may exist
and Step 2 is required to determine the amourteofrhpairment loss.

Core deposit intangible assets represent the femma@ngs potential of acquired deposit relatiopshi hese deposits are amortized over their
estimated remaining useful lives, as determinethbgagement. Other identifiable intangible assetsgrily represent the rights arising from
contractual arrangements and use the straightlimertization method. See Note 9, “Goodwill and @théangible Assets,” to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of téort.

Income Taxes

The establishment of provisions for federal antksittcome taxes is a complex area of accountingrtkalves judgments and estimates in
applying relevant tax statutes. We operate in nsate tax jurisdictions, which
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requires the appropriate allocation of income axkase to each state based on a variety of apporéint or allocation bases. Audits by
federal and state tax authorities may reveal it#sl that differ from our estimates and provisiong& continually evaluate our exposure to
possible tax assessments arising from audits amid@n estimate of possible exposure based oerduacts and circumstances.

We measure deferred tax assets and liabilitiegusiacted income tax rates applicable to the pegioghorary differences are expected to be
realized or settled. As changes in tax laws argbrate enacted, we adjust deferred tax assetsabildiés through the provision for income
taxes. When evidence indicates that it is mordyiikean not that some, or all, of the deferreddaget is not recoverable, we may record a
valuation allowance to reduce the carrying valuthefasset. Increases or decreases in the valukiovance result in increases or decreases
to the provision for income taxes. See Note 16cdme Taxes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statésneritem 8 of this report.

Performance Overview
Highlights of our results of operations in 2014ddimancial condition as of December 31, 2014,udel the following:

Our nor-covered loan portfolio increased $8.14 million camga to yee-end 2013

We realized the positive resolution of a sizablepfem credit which resulted in enhanced accraticome, reduced specific reserves,
and recovery of pri-year’ charge«offs.

Our allowance for loan losses was reduced $3.8fomitompared to year-end 2013. In 2014, we relk&38e26 million of specific
reserves related to impaired loans and removed B&&&and of the allowance related to the branebstiture.

Our credit quality metrics continued to improvenasi-covered nonaccrual loans decreased $8.61 million-covered nonperforming
loans decreased $7.19 million, and -covered nonperforming assets decreased $7.87 mdbmpared to ye-end 2013

Non-covered nonperforming loans as a percentage aifion-covered loans decreased 46 basis point8589and non-covered
nonperforming assets as a percentage of tote-covered assets decreased 34 basis points to 0.80¥aced to ye-end 2013

Non-covered delinquent loans decreased $8.88 millionpzoed to yei~end 2013
We prepaid lon-term borrowings of $60 million in keeping with astrategic goal of reducing high cost, wholesalet.c

In October we completed the purchase of seven hesftom Bank of America and assumed total depos#319 million in the
transaction

In December we completed the sale of thirteen trasito CresCom with deposits of approximately $2ilbon and loans of
approximately $70 million. The sale resulted ined gain of $755 thousan

As a result of branch acquisition and divestiturtivity, we consolidated and strengthened our frése
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Results of Operation
Net Income
The following table presents our net income andteel information in the periods indicated:

2014 Compared to 201 2013 Compared to 201.
Year Ended December 31 Increase % Increase %

(Amounts in thousands, except per share c 2014 2013 2012 (Decrease) Change (Decrease) Change
Net income $25,49( $23,31: $28,577 $ 2,17¢ 9.3% $ (5,26 -18.42%
Net income available to commu

shareholder 24,58( 22,28¢ 27,51¢ 2,29: 10.28% (5,23)) -19.01%
Basic earnings per common sh 1.3 1.1z 1.44 0.21 18.5¢% (0.3)) -21.5%%
Diluted earings per common shi 1.31 1.11 1.4C 0.2C 18.02% (0.29) -20.71%
Return on average ass 0.9%% 0.8%% 1.1(% 0.1(% 11.9% -0.2€% -23.6%%
Return on average common eqt 7.51% 6.51% 8.7(% 0.94% 14.3% -2.1% -24.48%

2014 Compared to 2013et income increased in 2014 primarily due te@wery of provision for loan losses, a decreagbkdémet
amortization related to the FDIC indemnificatiolsets a decrease in other operating expenses, agidgain on branch divestitures. These
gains and expense decreases were offset by Fétterad Loan Bank (“FHLB”) debt prepayment fees, alas$ on the sale of securities,
expenses related to acquisition and divestitureiggta decrease in other operating income, artadese in net interest income.

2013 Compared to 2012Net income decreased in 2013 due to net amddizetlated to the FDIC indemnification asset, reasréased
provision for loan losses, a one-time contracteaksance payment, and a decrease in other openatiogne resulting from an out-of-period
adjustment in 2012. These decreases were offsatrégluction in merger related expenses and a éddliimterest expense on deposits and
borrowings.

During our core system conversion in 2012, we disoed that certain loan charge-offs reported inrgperiods, beginning in 2007, were
overstated due to not recognizing the impact @ragt payments that had been applied to princgpdbfins on nonaccrual status. The
overstated charge-offs resulted in an overstatedigion for loan losses and corresponding undedtpte-tax income. Management analyzed
the error and determined that prior years werewatierially misstated and correcting the error it2®ould not materially misstate 2012
results. We recorded a $2.39 million increase (dtpgeriod adjustment) to other income in 2012 toect the understatement of pre-tax
income.
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Net Interest Incom

Net interest income, our largest contributor tnésags, comprised 75.17% of total net interest amimterest income in 2014, 75.48%

2013, and 71.04% in 2012. For the following dis@ussnet interest income is presented on a taxvadgnt basis to provide a comparison
among all types of interest earning assets. Thedaivalent basis adjusts for the tax-favored stafincome from certain loans and
investments. Although non-GAAP, management beli¢ghissfinancial measure is more widely used infthancial services industry and
provides better comparability of net interest ineoanising from taxable and tax-exempt sources. ¥éethis non-GAAP financial measure to
monitor net interest income performance and mattageomposition of our balance sheet. The folloviadge presents our average
consolidated balance sheets in the periods indicate

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Average Average Average
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/
(Amounts in thousand Balance Interest M Rate @) Balance Interest O Rate @) Balance Interest @ Rate ()
Assets
Earning assel
Loans® $1,744,521  $ 95,707 5.4% $1,699,61. $ 96,76¢ 5.6%% $1,611,55 $ 96,80 6.01%
Securities available for
sale 410,13t 12,40( 3.02% 543,69 15,18¢ 2.7% 502,41¢ 15,17( 3.02%
Securities held to
maturity 20,84: 267 1.28% 667 54 8.1(% 2,622 171 6.52%
Interes-bearing deposit 98,09( 291 0.3(% 63,56¢ 211 0.3%% 77,85: 25¢ 0.3%%
Total earning asse 2,273,58' $108,66! 4.7¢% 2,307,54. $112,21° 4.86% 2,194,441 $112,40: 5.12%
Other asset 334,98: 354,05¢ 316,48!
Total asset $2,608,57! $2,661,60: $2,510,93
Liabilities
Interes-bearing deposit
Demand deposil $ 366,93. $ 20¢€ 0.06% $ 361,97¢ $ 24C 0.0% $ 306,01¢ $ 18t 0.0€%
Savings deposil 535,25¢ 514 0.1(% 516,24 584 0.11% 471,40t 55€ 0.12%
Time deposit: 704,51¢ 6,58¢ 0.94% 772,74: 7,99¢ 1.04% 776,90: 9,231 1.19%
Total interes-bearing deposit 1,606,701 7,30¢ 0.45% 1,650,96 8,82 0.53% 1,554,32 9,97 0.64%
Borrowings
Federal funds purchas 892 3 0.34% 632 2 0.32% 49(C 2 0.41%
Retail repurchase
agreement 72,917 97 0.13% 69,14: 26t 0.38% 78,60t 44¢ 0.5
Wholesale repurchase
agreement 50,00( 1,87¢ 3.7¢% 53,11¢ 1,89( 3.56% 55,16 2,02% 3.67%
FHLB advances and
other borrowings 147,50« 6,00¢ 4.07% 168,39¢ 6,854 4.07% 175,33: 7,154 4.08%
Total borrowings 271,31: 7,982 2.94% 291,29( 9,011 3.05% 309,59: 9,62¢ 3.11%

Total interes-bearing liabilities  1,878,01! 15,29( 0.81% 1,942,25 17,83¢ 0.92% 1,863,92 19,60( 1.05%
Noninteres-bearing demand

deposits 367,31! 342,91¢ 286,95(
Other liabilities 20,61° 20,81t 25,16(
Total liabilities 2,265,95. 2,305,99 2,176,083
Stockholder' equity 342,61¢ 355,61: 334,90:
Total liabilities and equit' $2,608,57! $2,661,60: $2,510,93
Net interest income, te
equivalent $ 93,37t $ 94,38 $ 92,80
Net interest rate sprei® 3.97% 3.94% 4.07%
Net interest margi® 4.11% 4.09% 4.2%
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(1) Fully taxable equivalent at the rate of 35%1(E?). The FTE basis adjusts for the tax benefitthabme on certain tax exempt loans and
investments using the federal statutory rate of 3&%&ach period presented. The Company believesithasure to be the preferred
industry measurement of net interest income andiges relevant comparison between taxable and rabka amounts

(2) Nonaccrual loans are included in average balangessamding but with no related interest income myithe period of nonaccrui

(3) Represents the difference between the yield orireaassets and cost of fun

(4) Represents tax equivalent net interest income @dvlay average earning assi

The following table presents the impact on tax ealeint net interest income resulting from changesilume (the average volume times the
prior year's average rate), rate (the averagetirats the prior year’s average volume), and ratafwe (the average volume column times the

change in average rate) in the periods indicated:

(Amounts in thousand
Interest earned c®:
Loans
Securities available for sa
Securities held to maturi
Interes-bearing deposits with other bar

Total interes-earning asse!

Interest paid o®;
Demand deposil
Savings deposil
Time deposit:
Federal funds purchas
Retail repurchase agreeme
Wholesale repurchase agreeme
FHLB advances and other Borrowin

Total interes-bearing liabilities

Change in net interest income, tax equiva

(1) Fully taxable equivalent at the rate of 3t

Year Ended
December 31, 2014 Compared to 2013
Dollar Increase (Decrease) due to

Year Ended
December 31, 2013 Compared to 2012
Dollar Increase (Decrease) due to

Rate/

Rate/

Volume Rate Volume Total Volume Rate Volume Total
2,55 (3,399 (217) (1,06 529: (5157 (170 (35)
(3,726  1,25( (30€) (2,78) 1,246  (1,15Y) (77) 14
1,63¢ (45  (1,37¢) 213 (127) 41 (31) (1179)
114 (19 (15) 80 (47) — (1) (48)
577 (2,219 (1,916 (3,557 6,36¢ (6,27 (279 (18€)
3 (36) 1) (34) 33 31 9) 55
21 (52) (39 (70) 54 (47 21 28
(709 (779) 71 (1,41) (500  (1,16%) 17 (1,23)

1 - - 1 - - - -
14 (177) (9) (16€) (54) (149) 19 (184
(111 107 (8) (12) (75) (62) 3 (13%)
(850) — — (850)  (282) (18) — (300
(1,63)) (927) 14 (2,549 (374 (1,409 17 (1,766
2,20¢ (1,286 (1,930 (1,009 $6,73¢ $(4,862) $(29€) $1,58(
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The following table reconciles the difference betgwaet interest income under GAAP and net inténesime on a tax equivalent basis in the
periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013 2012

Net interest income, GAAP bas $90,81¢ $91,64: $90,05¢
Tax equivalent adjustme(®) 2,551 2,741 2,741
Net interest income, tax equivale $93,37¢ $94,38: $92,80:

(1) Fully taxable equivalent at the rate of 35%T(H?). The FTE basis adjusts for the tax benefitthobme on certain tax exempt loans and
investments using the federal statutory rate of 3&@&ach period presented. We believe this medsuhe preferred industry
measurement of net interest income and providesaat comparison between taxable and nontaxableirats

Interest and yield on loans include accretion inedrom acquired loan portfolios. In 2014, accrefiocome was further enhanced by discc
accretion recorded as a result of the positiveluéisn of a sizable credit. The following table peats net interest margin and related average
balance sheet information excluding the impactaf-nash purchase accounting accretion and sizableecurring discount accretion in the
periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Average Average Average
Interest Yield/ Yield/ Yield/
(Amounts in thousand @) Rate (1) Interest (1) Rate (1) Interest (1) Rate ()
Earning assel
Loans® $95,70° 54% $ 96,76¢ 56% $ 96,80! 6.01%
Accretion income 11,46¢ 14,72¢ 12,87:
Less: cash accretion incor 4,41 7,028 4,15¢
Non-cash accretion incorr 7,05 7,702 8,71
Non-recurring discount accretic 2,58¢ — —
Loans, normalize: 86,06: 4.9% 89,06¢ 5.24% 88,09( 5.47%
Other earning asse 12,95¢ 2.4%% 15,44¢ 2.54% 15,60( 2.6&%
Total earning asse 99,02( 4.36% 104,51 4.5% 103,69( 4.7%
Total interes-bearing liabilities 15,29( 0.81% 17,83¢ 0.92% 19,60( 1.05%
Net interest income, tax equivale $83,73( $ 86,68( $ 84,09(
Net interest rate sprei® 3.55% 3.61% 3.61%
Net interest margi® 3.68% 3.7¢% 3.85%

(1) Fully taxable equivalent at the rate of 35%TEZ). The FTE basis adjusts for the tax benefit;mnabme on certain tax exempt loans and
investments using the federal statutory rate of 3&@&ach period presented. The Company believssrtbasure to be the preferred
industry measurement of net interest income andiges relevant comparison between taxable and rabta amounts

(2) Nonaccrual loans are included in average balangessamding but with no related interest income myithe period of nonaccrui

(3) Represents the difference between the yield ornireaassets and cost of funi

(4) Represents tax equivalent net interest income ety average earning ass:
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2014 Compared to 2013Net interest income under GAAP decreased $824stimud, or 0.90%, and tax equivalent net interestnre
decreased $1.01 million, or 1.07%, in 2014. Chamgése average balances of and yields/rates arirgpassets and interest-bearing
liabilities resulted in a 3 basis point increasé¢hia net interest rate spread and a 2 basis pairgase in the net interest margin.

Loan interest accretion totaled $11.47 million 012 and $14.73 million in 2013. Interest accretimrome received in cash totaled $4.41
million in 2014 and $7.02 million in 2013. Accratiancome was enhanced in 2014 by non-recurringodiscaccretion of $2.59 million
related to the positive resolution of a sizablalitré&excluding non-cash and non-recurring discaauretion income, the yield on loans
decreased 31 basis points compared to a decre@8ebaiis points under GAAP. Excluding non-cashreomdrecurring discount accretion
income, the net interest margin decreased 8 basisspcompared to an increase of 2 basis pointeuBAAP. The impact of purchase
accounting interest accretion is expected to dedfirfuture periods due to acquired loan portfaliwition.

Average earning assets decreased $33.96 millich4GR6, due to a decrease in securities availablsdie offset by increases in the
noncovered loan portfolio, securities held to migtuand deposits with other banks. The yield omi®y assets decreased 8 basis points,
which was largely due to a 20 basis point decreasiee yield on loans, a result of the continued tfate environment. During 2014, we
purchased short-term bonds in the helar@turity category to provide for the funding neegggo extinguish certain wholesale borrowing:
they come due. Interest-bearing deposits with bankgrimarily comprised of excess liquidity keptree FRB of Richmond bearing
overnight market rates.

As of December 31, 2014, interest-bearing liakeditincluded interest-bearing deposits; retail refpase agreements, consisting of
collateralized retail deposits and commercial tneasaccounts; wholesale repurchase agreements; FdlBnces; and other borrowings.
Average interest-bearing liabilities decreased &&4illion, or 3.31%, primarily due to the decliimeaverage time deposits and FHLB
borrowings. In 2014, we prepaid $60 million of FHBnvertible advances, of which $50 million bor4.21% interest rate and $10 million
bore a 4.15% interest rate. The yield on interesiring liabilities decreased 11 basis points dunt8 basis point decrease in the rate on
interest-bearing deposits and a 15 basis poinedserin the rate on borrowings. Average intebesring deposits decreased $44.26 millio
2.68%, which was driven by a $68.22 million, or®@8 decrease in average time deposits, partialbebby increases in average interest-
bearing demand deposits of $4.95 million, or 1.3@#& average savings deposits, which include maorsket and savings accounts, of
$19.01 million, or 3.68%. Average borrowings desexh$19.98 million, or 6.86%, largely due to desesan FHLB and other borrowings.

2013 Compared to 2012\Net interest income under GAAP increased $1.9Bomj or 1.76%, and tax equivalent net interesbme increase
$1.58 million, or 1.70%, in 2013. Changes in therage balances of and yields/rates on earningsaasdtinterest-bearing liabilities resulted
in a 13 basis point decrease in the net interéstsiread and a 14 basis point decrease in thistasgtst margin.

Loan interest accretion totaled $14.73 million 013 and $12.87 million in 2012. Interest accretimome received in cash totaled $7.02
million in 2013 and $4.16 million in 2012. Excludimon-cash accretion income, the yield on loansedesed 23 basis points compared to a
decrease of 31 basis points under GAAP. Excludorgaeash accretion income, the net interest marginedhsed 7 basis points compared to a
decrease of 14 basis points under GAAP.

Average earning assets increased $113.10 millios,1%%, primarily resulting from a full year impaaf the increased loan portfolio from 1
Peoples and Waccamaw acquisitions and loan growdlri non-acquired portfolio. The yield on earnasgets decreased 26 basis points,
which was largely due to a 32 basis point decre@atiee yield on loans, due to the continued love tvironment, and a 23 basis point
decrease in the yield on available-for-sale sdestitlue to new investment and reinvestment obgaieceeds, maturities, prepayments, and
cash in lower yielding securities.
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As of December 31, 2013, interest-bearing liakeiitincluded interest-bearing deposits; federal Syndchased; retail repurchase agreements,
consisting of collateralized retail deposits anthomercial treasury accounts; wholesale repurchaseagents; FHLB advances; and other
borrowings. Average interest-bearing liabilitiesreased $78.34 million, or 4.20%, in 2013 primarédgulting from a full year impact of the
increased deposit portfolio from the Peoples andd&maw acquisitions. The yield on interest-bealiatgjlities decreased 13 basis points,
which was largely due to an 11 basis point decraatiee rate on interest-bearing deposits. Averatgrest-bearing deposits increased $96.64
million, or 6.22%. Average interest-bearing demdegosits increased $55.96 million, or 18.29%, anihgs deposits, which include money
market accounts and savings accounts, increase@i4pdllion, or 9.51%, while average time depodigsreased $4.16 million. Average
borrowings decreased $18.30 million, or 5.91%,drglue to the prepayment of FHLB borrowings of #¥1million and wholesale
repurchase agreements of $8.15 million acquiresh Mdaccamaw.

Provision for Loan Losse

2014 Compared to 2013The provision for loan losses is the amount adddte allowance for loan losses after net chaffehave been
deducted to bring the allowance to a level managénhetermines necessary to absorb probable lasske existing loan portfolio. The
provision charged to operations decreased $8.d®bmdue to a $3.26 million decrease in specifierees on loans identified as impaired,
lower average loss rates, lower classified assetdeand significantly lower net charge-offs. barge-offs in 2014 included a $1.60 million
recovery related to the positive resolution ofzable problem credit. In addition, activity in thlbowance in 2014 included the removal of
$682 thousand of the allowance due to loans tramesfén the branch divestiture. A recovery of $&8dusand was attributed to the PCI
provision largely due to better than expected parémce in the Waccamaw PCI loan portfolio, of wHet22 thousand was recorded through
the FDIC indemnification asset to reflect the indéfied portion of the pos&cquisition exposure and $275 thousand was apjaiederation:
See “Allowance for Loan Losses” in the “Financiar@ition” section below.

2013 Compared to 2012The provision charged to operations was increhge®l.53 million due to a significant increaséaan charge-offs,
primarily attributable to losses created by the sdlfour problem loans totaling $2.64 million, aadting a provision for the acquired PCI
portfolio. The provision attributed to PCI loanssa747 thousand, of which $296 thousand was chdageperations and $451 thousand was
recorded through the FDIC indemnification assetpiavision was recorded for PCl loans in 2012. ‘@dlewance for Loan Losses” in the
“Financial Condition” section below.

Noninterest Incom

Noninterest income consists of all revenues nduiged in interest and fee income related to earassgts. Noninterest income compri
24.83% of total net interest and noninterest incam2014, 24.52% in 2013, and 28.96% in 2012.
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The following table presents the components of,@rahges in, noninterest income in the periodscatdd:

2014 Compared to 201. 2013 Compared to 201.
Year Ended December 31 Increase Increase

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013 2012 (Decrease % Change (Decrease % Change
Wealth management $303C $3412 $3701 $ (382 -112% $ (289 -7.81%
Service charges on deposit accol 13,82¢ 13,55¢ 14,06: 27C 1.9%% (505) -3.5%
Other service charges and ft 7,581 7,151 6,462 43C 6.01% 68¢ 10.6€%
Insurance commissiot 6,55¢ 5,93: 5,74:% 622 10.48% 19C 3.31%
Net impairment los (737) (320) (942) (417) -130.3% 622 66.02%
Net (loss) gain on sale of securit (1,389 39¢ 482 (1,784  -447.19% (84 -17.3%
Net FDIC indemnification asset (amortizatic

accretion (3,979 (5,597) 45¢ 1,61¢ 28.91% (6,05%) —
Net gain on branch divestitu 75& — — 75E — — —
Other operating incom 4,35¢ 5,23¢ 6,742 (880) -16.81% (1,507 -22.3"%
Noninterest incom $30,00¢ $29,77: $36,71( $ 232 0.7¢% $ (6,939 -18.9(%

2014 Compared to 2013Noninterest income increased $232 thousand,7&9%0, in 2014. Wealth management revenues, whidhdedees
and commissions for trust and investment adviseryises, decreased due to a decline in FCWM inc@aerice charges on deposit accounts
and other service charges and fees increased jiyirfram increases in monthly service charges omaled deposit accounts, credit card
income, and interchange income offset by a decrieasensufficient fee income. Insurance commissiongeased largely due to increased
levels of contingent profit-sharing commissions argkneral increase in premium commissions. WeiadlOTTI charges of $737 thousand
in 2014 compared to $320 thousand in 2013 relatedrton-Agency mortgage-backed security (“MBS”) aadain equity securities. We
realized a net loss of $1.39 million on the saleafurities in 2014, which was driven by the séleus only remaining non-Agency MBS at a
loss of $1.62 million. See Note 3, “Investment S&ms,” to the Consolidated Financial Statementtém 8 of this report. We recorded net
amortization related to the FDIC indemnificatioseisof $3.98 million. We realized a net gain of $7Bousand on the sale of thirteen
branches to CresCom Bank during the fourth quaftg014. Other operating income decreased primdrily to a $540 thousand decrease in
secondary market income, a $378 thousand decreaseafloyalty incentive received from a third-pavgndor in 2013, and a $296 thousand
decrease in gains recognized from debt prepaynme213. These decreases in other operating inceene offset by a $536 thousand ber
related to bank owned life insurance and $400 thodditigation settlement.

Excluding the impact from OTTI charges, the salsadurities, the net amortization on the FDIC inddication asset, the net gain on branch
divestitures, the net gain on debt prepaymentsnanerecurring insurance benefit, noninterest inealacreased $180 thousand, or 0.51%, to
$34.81 million in 2014 compared with $34.99 million2013.

2013 Compared to 201Noninterest income decreased $6.94 million, 080%, in 2013. Wealth management revenues decrelaset the
departure of certain employees at FCWM. Other sergharges and fees increased primarily from ihterge fee income. We incurred OTTI
charges of $320 thousand in 2013 compared to $8A%and in 2012, related to a non-Agency MBS, aatized a net gain of $399 thousand
on the sale of securities. See Note 3, “InvestrBecurities,to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Itesfi #Bis report. We recorded 1
amortization related to the FDIC indemnificatiosetsof $5.60 million due to improved loss estimatethe covered Waccamaw loan
portfolio. Other operating income decreased in 2@arily due to the out-of-period adjustment B2 that positively affected income.
Excluding the out-of-period adjustment, other ofingeincome increased $888 thousand, or 20.43%018. Significant components of other
operating income also included a loyalty incenfieen a thirdparty vendor of $353 thousand, increases in diddeoome of $327 thousan

a net gain on debt prepayments of $296 thousamda aecrease in rental income of $209 thousand.
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Excluding the impact from OTTI charges, the nengai the sale of securities, the net accretion/timation on the FDIC indemnification
asset, the net gain on debt prepayments, and thef-period adjustment, noninterest income incrdg&@77 thousand, or 1.97%, to $34.99
million in 2013 compared with $34.32 million in 201

Noninterest Expens
The following table presents the components of,@rahges in, noninterest expense in the periodsateti:

2014 Compared to 201. 2013 Compared to 201.
Year Ended December 31 Increase Increase

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013 2012 (Decrease % Change (Decrease % Change
Salaries and employee benefits $40,71: $41,23t $38,66° $ (522 -1.27% $ 2,56¢ 6.64%
Occupancy of bank premis 6,33¢ 7,03: 6,872 (695) -9.88% 161 2.3&%
Furniture and equipme 4,95 4,96¢ 4,14¢ (14) -0.28% 821 19.81%
Amortization of intangible asse 781 72¢ 804 58 7.9¢% (75) -9.3%
FDIC premiums and assessme 1,67 1,715 1,612 (45) -2.62% 10t 6.51%
FHLB debt prepaymer 5,00¢ — — 5,00¢ — — —
Merger, acquisition, and

divestiture expens 1,15(C 57 5,09: 1,09: 1917.5% (5,03¢) -98.8¢t%
Other operating expen: 22,24 23,24¢ 21,19( (1,006 -4.3% 2,05¢ 9.71%
Total noninterest expen: $82,86: $78,98¢ $78,38! $ 3,87 491% $ 60z 0.77%

2014 Compared to 201Noninterest expense increased $3.88 million, 1%, in 2014. Salaries and employee benefits dserkdue to a
one-time charge to accrue for contractual execxerance of $1.07 million in 2013. Exclusiveld# severance charge, salaries and
employee benefits increased $549 thousand, or 1.Biployee benefits included an increase in ingertbmpensation of $836 thousand.
Full-time equivalent employees totaled 678 as afddeber 31, 2014, compared to 729 as of Decemb&03B. The decrease was primarily
due to branch consolidation and divestiture adtigibffset by the Bank of America branch acquisiti@ccupancy, furniture, and equipment
expense decreased $709 thousand, or 5.91%, whilpnivaarily due to branch closures between theogeriln 2014, we prepaid a $50
million FHLB convertible advance with a May 2017 tondty and 4.21% interest rate and $10 million &% million FHLB convertible
advance with a May 2017 maturity and 4.15% interatst, which resulted in a prepayment penalty od$illion. Expenses related to
branch acquisition and divestiture activities teth$1.15 million in 2014 in connection with the aisifion of seven branches from Bank of
America and the sale of thirteen branches to Cres@umpared to $57 thousand in 2013. The decreasthén operating expense included a
$684 thousand decrease in marketing expenses $5@Bahousand decrease in legal expenses offsat ycrease in interchange expense of
$497 thousand. Other operating expense also indladéncrease in the net loss on sales and expeglaésd to other real estate owned
(“OREQ”) of $56 thousand to $2.09 million in 201dnepared to $2.04 million in 2013.

2013 Compared to 2012Noninterest expense increased $602 thousand7d%4) in 2013. Salaries and employee benefits asae largely
from a one-time charge to accrue for contractuatative severance of $1.07 million. Exclusive @& fieverance charge, salaries and
employee benefits increased $1.50 million, or 3.8F%ployee benefits included increases in medigpeese of $735 thousand, incentive
stock compensation expense of $368 thousand, énelment plan expense of $342 thousand. Salariéemployee benefits attributed to the
Peoples and Waccamaw acquisitions totaled $5.0mih 2013, which represents an increase of $iitlion compared to 2012. Full-time
equivalent employees totaled 729 as of Decembe2(®ll3, compared to 760 as of December 31, 2012ugaccy, furniture, and equipment
expense increased $982 thousand, or 8.91%, whitindied increased depreciation costs in connectitmtive Waccamaw acquisition and
core operating system of $856 thousand. We incurredjer related costs of $57 thousand in 2013 cogdga $5.09 million in 2012 in
connection with the Peoples and Waccamaw acquisitibhe increase in other operating expense indlatdarges related to seven scheduled
branch closures/consolidations of
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$1.52 million, which occurred in the first half 2014, and a net loss on sales and expenses on ORED4 million in 2013 compared to
$1.89 million in 2012. Significant components dfiet operating expense also included increasegal fees of $469 thousand, incentive
stock compensation expense to directors of $158stmd, and communication expenses of $157 thousand.

Income Tax Expens

2014 Compared to 2013ncome tax as a percentage of pretax income ragysignificantly from statutory rates due to peneat
differences, which are items of income and expexstuded by law from the calculation of taxableam®. Our most significant permanent
differences generally include interest income omitipal securities and increases in the cash sderevalue of officers’ life insurance
policies, which are both exempt from federal incdme Income tax expense increased $2.18 millio®,84%, and the effective rate
increased 71 basis points to 32.59% in 2014. Toease in the effective tax rate was largely duentincrease in taxable revenues as a
percentage of net earnings and a decrease inldtweeamounts of nontaxable revenues.

2013 Compared to 2012ncome tax expense decreased $3.22 million, of®2, and the effective rate decreased 121 basitspto 31.88%
in 2013. The decrease in the effective tax ratelar@gly due to a decrease in taxable revenuegpascantage of net earnings.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

The efficiency ratio is a non-GAAP financial meastiat management believes provides investorsimiplortant information about our
operating expense control and efficiency of opereti Management also believes this ratio focudentain on our core operating
performance over time and is highly useful in cormgaperiod-to-period operating performance of dousiness operations. However, this
measure is supplemental and is not a substituterf@analysis of performance based on GAAP measDiesfficiency may not be
comparable to efficiency ratios reported by otlwaricial institutions.

We calculate our efficiency ratio by dividing adjed noninterest expense by the sum of tax equivaletinterest income and adjusted
noninterest income. Adjusted noninterest expenskidgs expenses and losses related to OREO, wtaghvary significantly from period to
period without substantially affecting operatioasd other non-core, nonrecurring items. Noninterestme excludes securities gains and
losses, which may vary significantly from periodotriod without substantially affecting operatio@s; Tl charges; and other non-core,
nonrecurring items. Our non-GAAP efficiency ratieasure is different from the GAABRased efficiency ratio calculation that uses namig
expense and income from the consolidated stateréirisome.
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The following table presents GAAP and non-GAAPa@éincy ratio components and calculations in théopdandicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013 2012
GAAP-based efficiency ratia
Noninterest expens $ 82,86. $ 78,98t $ 78,38:
Net interest income plus noninterest incc 120,82: 121,412 126,76t
GAAP-based efficiency rati 68.5¢% 65.05% 61.8%
Non-GAAP efficiency ratio
Noninterest expens $ 82,86 $ 78,98t $ 78,38
Non-GAAP adjustments
Merger, acquisition, and divestiture expe (1,150 (57 (5,099
FHLB debt prepayment fe: (5,00¢) — —
OREO expense and net Ic (2,099 (2,039 (1,899
Other noi-core, norrecurring expense iten (1,579 (2,700 —
Total nor-GAAP adjustment (9,829 (4,799 (6,98¢)
Adjusted noninterest expen 73,031 74,19: 71,39:
Net interest income plus noninterest incc 120,82: 121,41: 126,76t
Non-GAAP adjustments
Tax equivalency adjustme 2,557 2,741 2,74
Net impairment losses recognized in earni 737 32C 94z
Net loss (gain) on sale of securit 1,38t (399 (483)
Net gain on debt prepayme — (29€) —
Prospective correction of prior period understatn — — (2,395
Net gain on branch divestitu (755) — —
Other noi-core, nor-recurring income item (936) — —
Total nor-GAAP adjustment 2,98¢ 2,36¢ 811
Adjusted net interest income plus noninterest ing 123,80¢ 123,77¢ 127,57
Non-GAAP efficiency ratic 58.9%% 59.94% 55.96%

Financial Condition

Total assets were $2.61 billion as of Decembef814, an increase of $5.42 million, or 0.21%, coragavith $2.60 billion as of

December 31, 2013. Total liabilities were $2.26idwil as of December 31, 2014, a decrease of $1#iB6n, or 0.76%, compared with $2.27
billion as of December 31, 2013. Our book valuegseconverted common share was $18.06 as of Dece8hp2014, an increase of $1.27,
compared with $16.79 as of December 31, 2013.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, R@tdased $181.09 million compared to DecembeRB13. The increase was primarily
due to branch acquisition and divestiture actiintyvhich the Company assumed significantly moreodép than loans and other assets sold.

Investment Securitie

Available-for-sale securities as of December 31, &Z@ecreased $193.70 million, or 37.26%, comptarddecember 31, 2013. The decrease
in the available-for-sale securities portfolio wrst of our strategic initiative to shift our mik @arning assets towards loans. Heldvtaturity
securities as of December 31, 2014, increased
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$57.95 million compared to $568 thousand as of Bier 31, 2013 due to the purchase of short-ternddtmprovide funding to extinguish
certain wholesale borrowings when due. Investmeatisties classified as held to maturity are coseatiprimarily of U.S. Agency securities
and high-grade municipal bonds.

The following table presents the market value psraentage amortized cost, the average life, amdvhrage duration of the investment
portfolios:

December 31

2014 2013
Available for Available for
Held to Held to
Sale Maturity Total Sale Maturity Total
Market value to fair value 97.9%% 99.9(% 98.2%% 95.9%% 101.99% 95.9&%0
Average life (in years 8.3¢ 2.9t 7.5¢ 7.54 1.3:2 7.52
Average duration (in year 7.37 2.8¢ 6.7C 6.41 1.2t 6.4C

The following table details the amortized cost &idvalue of investment securities as of the datdgated:

December 31

2014 2013 2012
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
(Amounts in thousand Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value
Available for Sale
U.S. Treasury securitie $ — $ — $ 9,706 $ 9,015 $ — $ —
Municipal securitie: 134,78 138,91! 147,04¢ 144,28( 151,11¢ 159,21°
Single issue trust preferred secur 55,82: 46,13" 55,76¢ 46,23¢ 55,70% 44,64¢
Corporate securitie 5,00( 5,10¢ 5,00( 4,871 — —
Mortgagebacked securitie:
Agency 137,11( 135,71 306,31¢ 300,38t 310,32 315,89°
Non-Agency All-A residential — — 12,54 9,78¢ 14,21¢ 11,067
Total mortgag-backed securitie 137,11( 135,71 318,86: 310,17! 324,53t 326,96
Equity securitie: 22€ 23¢ 5,25¢ 5,24 3,44¢ 3,531
Total available for sal $332,94. $326,11°  $541,64: $519,82( $534,81( $534,35¢
Held to Maturity
U.S. Agency securitie $ 46,980 $46,958 $ 566 $ 57¢ $ 8le $ 83z
Municipal securitie: 37¢ 38¢€ — — — —
Corporate securitie 10,58: 10,54¢ — — — —
Total held to maturit $57,94¢ $5788 $ 56 $ 57¢ $ B8Ble $ 83z

Investment securities are reviewed quarterly farsgie OTTI. The review includes an analysis ofheadividual investment’s facts and
circumstances, such as the length of time fairesalas been below cost, the timing and amount dfactual cash flows, the expectation for
that securitys performance, the creditworthiness of the issared,our intent to hold the security to recoverynaturity. If a decline in value
determined to be other-thaemporary, the value of the security is reducedandrresponding charge to noninterest incomecisgréized. If i
debt security is determined to be other-than-temnilgrimpaired, we determine the amount of the impant due to credit, recognized in
earnings, and the amount due to other factorsgrézed in other comprehensive income.

We recognized credit-related OTTI charges in egsssociated with debt securities beneficially edvaf $705 thousand in 2014, $320
thousand in 2013, and $942 thousand in 2012. Ttlem@es were related to a non-Agency MBS that whsegjuently sold in November
2014. We recognized OTTI charges in earnings astamtivith certain equity securities of $32 thousan20014 and no charges in 2013 or
2012. See Note 3, “Investment Securities,” to tbagdlidated Financial Statements in Iltem 8 of thfgort.
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Loans Held for Sal

Loans held for sale as of December 31, 2014, isec2&909 thousand to $1.79 million compared to Béees 31, 2013. Loans held for sale
consist of mortgage loans sold on a best efforsgshiato the secondary market; thus, we do notrréfte interest rate risk involved in these

long-term commitments. The gross notional amoumut$tanding commitments to originate mortgageddarthe secondary market totaled
$1.39 million for 9 commitments as of DecemberZ114, and $3.68 million for 19 commitments as ot&maber 31, 2013.

Loans Held for Investme

Loans held for investment as of December 31, 26&dreased $21.31 million, or 1.25%, compared tecebdoer 31, 2013. Our loans held for
investment are grouped into three segments (comahémans, consumer real estate loans, and consanakother loans) with each segment
divided into various classes. Covered loans arme@fas loans acquired in FDIC-assisted transactivett are covered by loss share
agreements. Our covered loan portfolio as of Deeerh, 2014, decreased $29.44 million, or 19.418tpared to December 31, 2013, due
to continued runoff in the covered Waccamaw padfdlhe non-covered loan portfolio as of Decemlder2d14, increased $8.14 million, or
0.52%, compared to December 31, 2013, primarilytdwstrong growth in commercial real estate origores in Southern West Virginia and
Central North Carolina markets, which was offsetdans sold in the branch divestiture. The avetage to deposit ratio was 88.37% as of
December 31, 2014, compared to 85.24% as of Deaedih@013. The held for investment portfolio cants to be diversified among loan
types and industry segments. See Note 4, “Loaogtid¢ Consolidated Financial Statements in Iterhit8ie report.

The following table presents loans, net of uneainedme with non-covered loans disaggregated Issckas of the periods indicated. There
were no covered loans before 2012.

December 31
(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Non-covered loans held for investme
Commercial loan

Construction, development, and other I $ 4127 $ 3525 $ 5743: $ 61,766 $ 83,81
Commercial and industri 83,09¢ 95,45¢ 88,73¢ 91,93¢ 94,12:
Multi-family residentia 97,48( 70,19: 65,69 77,05( 67,82«
Single family no-owner occupiet 135,17: 135,55¢ 135,91 106,74 104,96(
Non-farm, nor-residentia 473,90¢ 475,91: 448,81( 336,00! 351,90
Agricultural 1,59¢ 2,32¢ 1,70¢ 1,37¢ 1,34:
Farmland 29,517 32,61 34,57( 37,16 36,95¢
Total commercial loan 862,04 847,31} 832,86’ 712,04( 740,91¢
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line! 110,95 111,77( 111,08: 111,38 111,62(
Single family owner occupie 485,47! 496,01: 473,54 473,06 44419
Owner occupied constructic 32,79¢ 28,70 16,22 19,57" 18,34¢
Total consumer real estate lo¢ 629,23: 636,48! 600,85: 604,03: 574,16¢
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 69,34 71,31 78,16: 67,12¢ 63,47¢
Other 6,55¢ 3,92¢ 5,66¢ 12,86" 7,64¢
Total consumer and other loa 75,90: 75,23¢ 83,82¢ 79,99¢ 71,12
Non-covered loans held for investme 1,567,147t 1,559,03¢ 1,517,54 1,396,066 1,386,201
Covered loans held for investme 122,24( 151,68: 207,10t — —
Total loans held for investme 1,689,41 1,710,72. 1,724,65. 1,396,06 1,386,201
Allowance for loan losse 20,22% 24,07 25,77( 26,20¢ 26,48:
Total loans held for investment, less allowa $1,669,18' $1,686,64. $1,698,88. $1,369,86. $1,359,72.
Loans held for sal $ 1,79 $ 88: $ 6672 $ 582( $ 4,69/
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The following table presents covered loans disagggesl by class as of the periods indicated:

December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013 2012
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other I; $ 13,10( $ 15,86¢ $ 26,59t
Commercial and industrii 2,66: 3,32¢ 6,94¢
Multi-family residentia 1,58¢ 1,93: 2,611
Single family no-owner occupiet 5,91¢ 7,44¢ 11,42¢
Non-farm, noi-residentia 25,317 34,64¢ 48,56¢
Agricultural 43 164 144
Farmland 71€ 87¢ 1,091
Total commercial loan 49,34( 64,25" 97,38:
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line! 60,39: 69,20t 81,44¢
Single family owner occupie 11,96¢ 16,91¢ 22,96
Owner occupied constructic 453 1,18¢ 1,64+
Total consumer real estate lo: 72,81: 87,30¢ 106,05(
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 88 11¢€ 3,67¢
Total consumer and other loz 88 11¢€ 3,67¢
Total covered loans held for investm: $122,241 $151,68:. $207,10¢

The following table details the percentage of loemntotal loans in the non-covered portfolio, bgihaclass, as of the periods indicated:

December 31

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Non-covered loan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other li 2.6% 2.26% 3.7t% 4.42% 6.05%
Commercial and industrii 5.3(% 6.12% 5.85% 6.5¢% 6.7<%
Multi-family residentia 6.22% 4.5(% 4.3% 5.52% 4.8%
Single family no-owner occupiet 8.62% 8.7(% 8.9¢% 7.65% 7.51%
Non-farm, nor-residentia 30.24% 30.5% 29.5% 24.01% 25.3%
Agricultural 0.1(% 0.15% 0.11% 0.1(% 0.1(%
Farmlanc 1.88% 2.0%% 2.28% 2.6€% 2.67%
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line! 7.08% 7.11% 7.32% 7.98% 8.05%
Single family owner occupie 30.98% 31.82% 31.21% 33.8%% 32.0%
Owner occupied constructic 2.09% 1.84% 1.07% 1.4(% 1.32%
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 4.42% 4.57% 5.15% 4.81% 4.58%
Other 0.42% 0.25% 0.37% 0.92% 0.55%
Total loans 100.0% 100.0(% 100.0(% 100.0(% 100.0(%
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The following table details the percentage of lomntotal loans in the covered portfolio, by lodass, as of the periods indicated:

December 31

2014 2013 2012
Covered loan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other li 10.72% 10.4€% 12.8%%
Commercial and industri 2.18% 2.1% 3.35%
Multi-family residentia 1.3(% 1.27% 1.2¢%
Single family no-owner occupiet 4.8%% 4.91% 5.52%
Non-farm, nor-residentia 20.71% 22.8% 23.45%
Agricultural 0.05% 0.11% 0.07%%
Farmland 0.5%% 0.5¢% 0.5%%
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line! 49.4(% 45.62% 39.3%
Single family owner occupie 9.7%% 11.15% 11.09%
Owner occupied constructic 0.3 0.7¢% 0.7%
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 0.07% 0.0¢% 1.77%
Other 0.0(% 0.0(% 0.0(%
Total loans 100.0% 100.0%  100.0(%

We lend primarily in the four-state region in whisle operate. We maintained no foreign loans andhloddan concentrations to any one
borrower that represented 10% or more of outstanidians as of December 31, 2014 or 2013.

As of December 31, 2014, non-covered commercialdammprised 55.01% of the non-covered loan pastf@ommercial and industrial
loans consist of loans to small to mid-size indaktcommercial, and service companies that inclixdé are not limited to, natural gas
producers, automobile dealers, and retail and velatdemerchants. Commercial real estate projectesept a variety of sectors of the
commercial real estate market, including singleifpand apartment lessors, commercial real estssolrs, and hotel/motel operators.
Commercial loan underwriting standards require tioaprehensive reviews and independent evaluatieqmerformed on credits exceeding
predefined size limits. Updates to these loan wmesiare done periodically or annually dependinghendize of the loan relationship.

As of December 31, 2014, non-covered consumeresate loans comprised 40.15% of the non-covesmadportfolio. Residential real estate
loans include loans to individuals within our marfaotprint for home equity loans and lines of dteahd for the purchase or construction of
owner occupied homes. Underwriting guidelines regjthat borrowers meet certain credit, income, @ildteral standards at origination.

As of December 31, 2014, non-covered consumer Hret tbans comprised 4.84% of the non-covered pmatfolio. Consumer loans consist
of loans to individuals within our market footprithiat include, but are not limited to, personagsirof credit, credit cards, and the purchase of
automobiles, boats, mobile homes, and other consgowals. Underwriting guidelines require that bareos meet certain credit, income, and
collateral standards at origination.
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The following table details the maturities and rsgasitivities of our non-covered loan portfoliocidecember 31, 2014:

(Amounts in thousand
Maturities
Commercial loan

Construction, development, and other [i®)

Commercial and industri;
Multi-family residentia
Single family no-owner occupiet
Non-farm, nor-residentia
Agricultural
Farmland
Total commercial loan
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line!
Single family owner occupie
Owner occupied constructic
Total consumer real estate lo¢
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan
Other
Total consumer and other loa

Total nor-covered loan

Rate sensitivities
Predetermined interest r¢
Floating or adjustable interest r:
Total nor-covered loan

One Year or Les!

$ 17,73
34,43¢
14,78¢
23,82¢
65,25¢

324
8,794
165,16¢

6,581
9,352
4,38¢
20,32:

16,33:

314

16,64¢

$ 20213

$ 120,60:
81,53¢

$ 202,13

Due After One
Year Through

Five Years

$ 12,13°
44,26°
44,38¢
56,55¢
231,40¢
671

9,85¢
399,27¢

13,15:
31,92:

87¢
45,95!

45,52
5,07¢
50,59¢

$ 495,82

$ 439,07
56,74¢

Due After Five

Years Total
$ 11,39 $ 41,27
4,39¢ 83,09¢
38,30¢ 97,48(
54,78¢ 135,17:
177,23¢ 473,90¢
604 1,59¢
10,86¢ 29,517
297,59° 862,04:
91,21¢ 110,95
444,20: 485,47"
27,53 32,79¢
562,95 629,23:
7,49¢ 69,34%
1,16¢ 6,55t
8,66( 75,90:
$ 869,21 $1,567,17
$ 362,28 $ 921,95¢
506,93 645,21¢
$ 869,21 $1,567,17!

(1) Construction loans with maturities due afteefyears include construction to permanent loaasthave not converted to principal and

interest payment:
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The following table details the maturities and rsdasitivities of our covered loan portfolio addsfcember 31, 2014:

(Amounts in thousand
Maturities
Commercial loan

Construction, development, and other [i()

Commercial and industri;
Multi-family residentia
Single family no-owner occupiet
Non-farm, nor-residentia
Agricultural
Farmland
Total commercial loan
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line!
Single family owner occupie
Owner occupied constructic
Total consumer real estate lo¢
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan
Other
Total consumer and other loa

Total covered loan

Rate sensitivities
Predetermined interest r¢
Floating or adjustable interest r:
Total covered loan

One Year or Les:

$ 6,39¢
83C

54

847

7,49:

1

134

15,751

162
1,58
6
1,75(

$ 17,50%

$ 13,65«
3,85¢
$ 17,50%

Due After One
Year Through

Five Years

$ 5,77
1,13¢

174

2,51¢
12,91(

13

30¢

22,831

4,754
4,361

447
9,56¢

88

88
$ 32,49t

$ 2148
11,00¢
$ 32,49

Due After Five

Years Total
$ 92¢ $ 13,10(
69:< 2,662
1,35¢ 1,58¢
2,552 5,91¢
4,91¢ 25,317

29 43

27¢% 71€
10,74¢ 49,34(
55,47¢ 60,39:
6,01¢ 11,96¢

— 452
61,49 72,81
— 88

— 88

$ 72,24 $122,24(
$ 10,78: $ 45,92:
61,45¢ 76,31¢
$ 72,24 $122,24(

(1) Construction loans with maturities due afteefyears include construction to permanent loaasthave not converted to principal and

interest payment:

Risk Element

Nonperforming assets consist of loans accountedriax nonaccrual basis, accruing loans contragtpakt due 90 days or more, unseasc
troubled debt restructurings (“TDRs”), and OREOahse acquired with credit deterioration with a digziocontinue to accrue interest based
on expected cash flows; therefore, PCI loans aremusidered nonaccrual. See Note 5, “Credit Qualid the Consolidated Financial

Statements in Item 8 of this report.
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The following table summarizes the components ofpeoforming assets and presents additional ddtailsonperforming and restructured
loans as of the periods indicated:

December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Non-covered nonperforming
Nonaccrual loan $10,55¢ $19,16: $23,93: $24,48" $19,41-
Accruing loans past due 90 days or m — — — — —
TDRs @ 2,72¢ 1,317 6,00¢ 60C 5,32¢
Total nonperforming loan 13,28: 20,47 29,94( 25,08 24,73¢
Non-covered OREC( 6,63¢ 7,31¢ 5,74¢ 5,91« 4,91(
Total nonperforming asse $19,92( $27,79( $35,68¢ $31,00: $29,64¢
Covered nonperforming
Nonaccrual loan $ 2,43¢ $ 3,35¢ $ 4,32¢ $ — $ —
Accruing loans past due 90 days or m — 86 — — —
Total nonperforming loan 2,43¢ 3,43¢ 4,32: — —
Covered OREC 6,324 7,541 3,25¢ — —
Total nonperforming asse $ 8,762 $10,98( $ 7,57¢ $ — $ —
Total nonperforming
Nonaccrual loan $12,99: $22,51¢ $28,25¢ $24,48; $19,41¢
Accruing loans past due 90 days or m — 86 — —
TDRs @ 2,72¢ 1,317 6,00¢ 60C 5,32¢
Total nonperforming loan 15,72( 23,91: 34,26 25,08% 24,73¢
OREO 12,96 14,85¢ 9,00¢ 5,91¢ 4,91(
Total nonperforming asse $28,68. $38,77( $43,26" $31,00: $29,64¢
Additional Information
Performing TDR<(® $11,80¢ $10,90( $ 6,03¢ $ 8,85¢ $ 6,86¢
Total TDRs® 14,53« 12,21: 12,04 9,45¢ 12,19:
Gross interest income that would have been recardddr the original
terms of restructured and non performing lo 1,171 1,54¢ 2,95¢ 1,15¢ 1,341
Actual interest income recorded on restructuredraonperforming
loans 597 511 64C 411 587
Non-covered ratios
Nonperforming loans to total loa 0.85% 1.31% 1.97% 1.8(% 1.78%
Nonperforming assets to total ass 0.8(% 1.14%% 1.42% 1.4%% 1.32%
Non-PCI allowance to nonperforming loa 151.8% 113.92% 86.05% 103.66% 107.0"%
Non-PCl allowance to total loar 1.2% 1.5(% 1.7(% 1.86% 1.91%
Total ratios
Nonperforming loans to total loa 0.99% 1.4% 1.9%% 1.8(% 1.7¢%
Nonperforming assets to total ass 1.1% 1.4% 1.5%% 1.43% 1.32%
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming lo 128.6% 100.6%% 75.21% 104.4¢% 107.0"%
Allowance for loan losses to total lozg 1.2(% 1.41% 1.4% 1.88% 1.91%

(1) TDRs restructured within the past six months, ediclg nonaccrual TDRs of $306 thousand, $734 thalis®04 million, $3.04 millio
and $108 thousand for the five years ended DeceBihet014

(2) TDRs with six months or more of satisfactoryment performance, excluding nonaccrual TDRs o8usand, $1.47 million, $792
thousand, $227 thousand, and $48 thousand foivhgéars ended December 31, 2C

(3) Perfoming and nonperforming TDRs, excludingaxsrual TDRs of $554 thousand, $2.20 million, $318Bon, $3.27 million, and
$156 thousand for the five years ended Decembe2@Y.
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Non-covered nonperforming assets as of December 3y, 2ikcreased $7.87 million, or 28.32%, from Decandi, 2013. Non-covered
nonperforming assets as a percentage of totatnwared assets were 0.80% as of December 31, 20dvhared to 1.14% as of December
2013.

Non-covered nonaccrual loans as of December 31, 2iEeteased $8.61 million, or 44.91%, from Decemle2813. As of December 31,
2014, non-covered nonaccrual loans were largefibated to the following loan classes: single fgnaiivner occupied (60.53%); non-farm,
non-residential (22.11%); home equity lines (7.51&6)d single family non-owner occupied (5.70%). Appmately $210 thousand, or
1.99%, of non-covered nonaccrual loans were atetbto performing loans acquired in business coatlins as of December 31, 2014.
Certain loans included in the nonaccrual categameheen written down to estimated realizable vahessigned specific reserves in the
allowance for loan losses based upon managemestit'sate of loss at ultimate resolution.

When restructuring loans for borrowers experiendingncial difficulty, we generally make concessan interest rates, loan terms, and/or
amortization terms. Certain TDRs are classified@sperforming at time of restructuring and aremd to performing status after six
months of satisfactory payment performance; howethese loans remain identified as impaired untildayment or other satisfaction of the
obligation occurs.

Accruing TDRs totaled $14.53 million as of DecemBg&r 2014, compared to $12.21 million as of Decanie 2013. Nonperforming
accruing TDRs totaled $2.73 million, or 18.76% ofmiing TDRs, as of December 31, 2014, compar&d 181 million, or 10.74% of
accruing TDRs, as of December 31, 2013. The allo@dor loan losses attributed to TDRs totaled $#igbisand as of December 31, 2014,
compared to $1.84 million as of December 31, 2013.

Ongoing activity in the classification and categerof nonperforming loans include collections olindgencies, foreclosures, loan
restructurings, and movements into or out of thepeoforming classification due to changing econooaieditions, borrower financial
capacity, or resolution efforts. There were no cedeaccruing loans contractually past due 90 daysave as of December 31, 2014,
compared to $86 thousand as of December 31, 2013.

Non-covered delinquent loans, comprised of loans 3@ da more past due and nonaccrual loans, tot@l&®8 million as of December 31,
2014, a decrease of $8.88 million, or 28.78%, caegbéo $ 30.86 million as of December 31, 2013. fdovered delinquent loans as a
percentage of total non-covered loans measuredda®of December 31, 2014, which is attributedéms 30 to 89 days past due of 0.73%
and nonaccrual loans of 0.67%. Non-covered nonpaifiy loans, comprised of nonaccrual loans, nompetihng TDRs, and unseasoned
TDRs, as a percentage of total non-covered loams A85% as of December 31, 2014, compared to 18166 December 31, 2013.

Non-covered OREO, which is carried at the lesser tiineied net realizable value or cost, decrease $&8isand, or 9.29%, as of
December 31, 2014, compared to December 31, 20di3-cvered OREOQO consisted of 60 properties as cébder 31, 2014, with an
average holding period of 7 months. The net losthersale of OREO totaled $1.42 million in 2014.,5%1million in 2013, and $966 thousand
in 2012. The following tables detail activity withOREO for the periods indicated:

(Amounts in thousand Non-coverec Covered Total

Beginning balance, January 1, 2013 $ 5,74¢ $ 3,25¢ $ 9,00«
Additions 9,65¢ 8,78 18,43¢
Disposals (6,997 (2,776 (9,779
Valuation adjustment (1,090 (1,720 (2,810
Ending balance, December 31, 2( $ 7,31¢ $ 7,541 $14,85¢
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(Amounts in thousand Non-coverec Covered Total

Beginning balance, January 1, 2014 $ 7,31¢ $ 7,541 $ 14,85¢
Additions 5,97¢ 6,641 12,62(
Disposals (5,740 (5,907) (11,647
Valuation adjustment (919) (1,957 (2,870
Ending balance, December 31, 2( $ 6,63¢ $ 6,32¢ $12,96:

Allowance for Loan Losst

The allowance for loan losses is maintained avel lmanagement deems sufficient to absorb probdablelosses inherent in the loan
portfolio. The allowance is increased by chargesamings in the form of provisions and recoveofgrior loan chargeffs and decreased
loans charged off. The provision for loan lossesaisulated and charged to expense to bring tbavalice to an appropriate level using a
systematic process of measurement that requiragisant judgments and estimates.

Management performs quarterly assessments to datethe appropriate level of the allowance for lt@sses. The allowance for loan losses
includes specific allocations to significant indiual loans and credit relationships and generalves to the remaining loans that have been
deemed impaired. Loans not specifically identife@d grouped into pools based on similar risk chartics. Management's general reserve
allocations are based on judgments of qualitatheguantitative factors about macro and micro esva@onditions reflected in the loan
portfolio and the economy. For loans acquired igithess combinations, a provision is recorded fgraadit deterioration after the
acquisition. Loans identified with credit impairmext acquisition are grouped into pools and evelliaeparately from the non-PCI portfolio.
The provision calculated for PCI loans is offsetdnyadjustment to the FDIC indemnification asseeftect the indemnified portion of the
post-acquisition exposure. See “Critical Accountitglimates” above, Note 1, “Significant Accountiglicies,” and Note 6, “Allowance for
Loan Losses,” to the Consolidated Financial Statesi@ Item 8 of this report.

Our allowance for loan losses totaled $20.23 mmilks of December 31, 2014, a decrease of $3.8®mibr 15.99%, compared to $24.07
million as of December 31, 2013. In 2014, we redela®3.26 million of specific reserves related tpaned loans and removed $682 thousand
of the allowance related to loans transferred éntitanch divestiture. The allowance attributeddn-RCI loans as a percentage of non-
covered loans held for investment was 1.29% asegkimber 31, 2014, compared to 1.50% at Decemb@03B, The cash flow analysis
performed as of December 31, 2014, identified tivour seven PCI loan pools as impaired with a cativg impairment of $58 thousand
compared to the analysis as of December 31, 28a8jdentified four of our seven PCI loan poolsrapaired with a cumulative impairment

of $747 thousand. The portfolio continues to be iteoed for deterioration in credit, which may resuolthe need to increase the allowance
loan losses in future periods.

Our qualitative risk factors continue to refleaealuced risk of loan losses due to improvementmamployment trends, general economic
conditions, and asset quality metrics and an irsa@aisk of loan losses due to credit concentrati@ve incurred net charge-offs of $2.89
million in 2014, $10.35 million in 2013, and $6.ddfllion in 2012. Net chargeffs decreased $7.46 million, or 72.07% in 2014@wpared t
2013 and increased $4.24 million, or 69.34% in 284 8ompared to 2012. Net charge-offs in 2014 dedua $1.60 million recovery related
to the positive resolution of a sizable problenddrdn addition, activity in the allowance in 20ixtluded the removal of $682 thousand of
the allowance due to loans transferred in the Bralivestiture. A recovery of $697 thousand washatted to the PCI provision largely due to
better than expected performance in the WaccamawvioR@ portfolio, of which $422 thousand was reeatdhrough the FDIC
indemnification asset to reflect the indemnifiedtjwm of the post-acquisition exposure and $27%usamd was applied to operations. As of
December 31, 2014, management considered the alteerta be adequate based upon analysis of thelortiowever, no assurance can be
made that additions to the allowance will not bgureed in future periods.
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The following table presents activity in our allavea for loan losses by loan type for the periodscated:

(Amounts in thousand
Beginning balance
Removal of loans transferrt
Provision charged to operations, -PCI loans
(Recovery of) provision charged to operations, B@hs
(Recovery of) provision recorded through the FDi@emnification
asse
Chargeoffs:
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other I
Commercial and industrii
Multi-family residentia
Single family no-owner occupiet
Non-farm, not-residentia
Agricultural
Farmlanc
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line!
Single family owner occupie
Owner occupied constructic
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan
Other
Total charg-offs
Recoveries
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other li
Commercial and industrii
Multi-family residentia
Single family no-owner occupiet
Non-farm, nor-residentia
Agricultural
Farmlanc
Consumer real estate log
Home equity line!
Single family owner occupie
Owner occupied constructic
Consumer and oth
Consumer loan
Other
Total recoverie:
Net charg-offs
Ending balanc:

Net charg-offs to average nc-covered loan
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Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
$24,07.  $2577C  $26,20!  $2648.  $24,27
(682) — — — —
42( 7,91z 5,871 8,84¢ 14,75
(275) 29€ (199) 201 —
(422) 451 — — —
1,23¢ 2,73¢ 28€ 1,90¢ 2,711
45¢ 72( 112 417 2,90
35 17 20¢ 2,551 697
48¢ 2,61¢ 2,50: 1,81z 1,66¢
83z 1,61 64: 1,07 1,66¢€
— 17 — — 6
— 2C 61 21¢ —
451 1,87¢ 851 691 1,08¢
98¢ 947 1,84z 1,61 1,594
30E 29t 9 19E 4
65¢ 491 40z 44¢ 514
1,02¢ 1,17¢ 58E 53C 75€
6,481 12,52, 7,50 11,46( 13,60:
84 51( 17 817 37
1,73¢ 98 93 271 83
1c 16 128 68 12
331 15¢ 10¢ 121 39
23¢ 11¢ 28( 14¢ 144
— 22 1 1 32
— 8 1 — 31
514 27¢ 76 15¢ 12
76 16¢ 21¢ 63 52
— — — 34 6
121 107 152 13¢ 162
47¢ 69E 324 31¢ 43¢
3,59( 2,17 1,391 2,13¢ 1,05
2,891 10,35: 6,11 9,32 12,55:
$20,227  $24,07.  $2577(  $26,20¢  $26,48:
0.16% 0.66% 0.41% 0.61% 0.9(%
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The following table details the allowance for Idasses, excluding PCI loans, by loan class, aBeperiods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other I; $ 1,151 $ 1,141 $ 1,21« $ 1,892 $ 3,991
Commercial and industrii 68¢ 5,21t 4,351 3,51¢ 4,511
Multi-family residentia 1,915 1,211 1,63( 1,88¢ 1,081
Single family no-owner occupiet 3,22¢ 3,54¢ 4,36 2,96( 3,212
Non-farm, nor-residentia 5,80¢ 4,65( 5,25¢ 6,93: 2,84¢
Agricultural 13 23 22 19 19
Farmland 20¢ 301 41€ 34z 70
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line! 1,33( 1,361 1,57¢ 1,36t 2,13¢
Single family owner occupie 4,93t 5,03( 5,99t 6,13¢ 6,651
Owner occupied constructic 22t 20¢ 337 212 19z
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 67( 63% 597 742 1,76¢
Other — — — — —
Total allowance, excluding PCl loa $20,16¢ $23,32. $25,76. $26,00¢ $26,48:
Non-PCI allowance to total n-covered loan 1.2%% 1.5(% 1.7(% 1.8€% 1.91%

The following table details the PCI allowance foah losses, by loan pool, as of the periods ineitat

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Commercial loan
Waccamaw commercii $37 $— $— $— $—
Waccamaw lines of crec — — — — —
Peoples commercii — 69 — — —
Other — 8 8 201 —
Consumer real estate loz
Waccamaw serviced home equity lir — 277 — — —
Waccamaw residenti: — 217 — — —
Peoples residenti: 21 184 — —

Consumer and other loa
Waccamaw consumu — — _ _

Total PCI allowanci $58 $75E $ 8 %201

711

Deposits

Total deposits as of December 31, 2014, increaS6d2 million, or 2.56%, compared to December 312 Noninterest-bearing deposits
increased $78.05 million and savings deposits, whiclude money market accounts and savings acspimcreased $1.47 million as of
December 31, 2014, compared to December 31, 2088ekt-bearing deposits decreased $7.95 millidrtiame deposits decreased $21.55
million as of December 31, 2014, compared to Deaarsth, 2013.
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Borrowings

Total borrowings as of December 31, 2014, decre$g8db6 million, or 23.52%, compared to December2BIl3. Short-term borrowings
consist of federal funds purchased and retail i@age agreements. No federal funds were purchasefdecember 31, 2014, compared to
$16.00 million as of December 31, 2013. The balaiaetail repurchase agreements increased $3.4i8mir 5.03%, as of December 31,
2014, compared to December 31, 2013. Securitiesriyiog retail repurchase agreements remain undecantrol during the terms of the
agreements. Included in other borrowings was adb&illion balance on a $15.00 million unsecurednoutted line of credit with an
unrelated financial institution. The line of credirried an interest rate of one-month LIBOR plu02 and matures in April 2015.

The following table presents the balances and weibaverage rates paid on short-term borrowings #ee periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(Amounts in thousand Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
Year-end balance $ 73,74. 0.1% $84,30¢ 0.1% $77,92: 0.52%
Average annual balan 74,168  0.14% 69,77 0.3t¢%  79,09¢ 0.57%
Maximum montl-end balanc: 117,10! 84,30¢ 88,90¢

Long-term borrowings consist of wholesale repurehagreements; FHLB borrowings, including conveetibhd callable advances; and other
obligations. The balance and weighted averageofatdolesale repurchase agreements remained corsthh0.00 million and 3.71%,
respectively, as of December 31, 2014, compar@&ktember 31, 2013. As of December 31, 2014, whidespurchase agreements had
contractual maturities between two and five ye@he balance of FHLB borrowings decreased $60.00amjlor 40.00%, and the weighted
average rate decreased 5 basis points to 4.07%sescember 31, 2014, compared to December 31, 284 8f December 31, 2014, FHLB
borrowings had contractual maturities between tnw seven years. In 2014, we prepaid a $50 millidhB convertible advance with a May
2017 maturity and 4.21% interest rate and $10 onilof a $50 million FHLB convertible advance witiViay 2017 maturity and 4.15%
interest rate, which resulted in a prepayment premdl$5.01 million.

Included in other borrowings is $15.46 million ahjor subordinated debentures (“Debentures”) therevissued by the Company in October
2003 through the Trust with an interest rate of¢hmonth London InterBank Offered Rate (“LIBOR"upl2.95%. The Debentures mature in
October 2033 and are currently callable at theooptif the Company.

Stockholders’ Equity

Total stockholders’ equity increased $22.77 million6.93%, to $351.37 million as of December 3114 compared to $328.61 million as of
December 31, 2013. The change in stockholdersteauas largely affected by net income of $25.49ioml dividends declared on our
common and Series A Preferred Stock of $10.11 anillthe repurchase of 132,773 shares of our constoak totaling $2.17 million, and an
increase in accumulated other comprehensive in¢t&@ClI") of $9.14 million. AOCI was driven by unréaed gains on available-for-sale
securities.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity
Liquidity is a measure of our ability to raise scint cash, or convert assets to cash, to medirmarncial obligations. We maintain a liquidity

risk management policy and contingency fundinggyo{i'Liquidity Plan”) that is designed to detecttential liquidity issues to protect
depositors, creditors, and shareholders. The
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Liquidity Plan includes various internal and extdrimdicators that are reviewed on a recurringhbgiour Asset/Liability Management
Committee (“ALCQO”") and the Board of Directors. ALG®views liquidity risk exposure and policies retdito liquidity management, ensures
that systems and internal controls are consistéhtliguidity policies, and provides accurate repabout liquidity needs, sources, and
compliance.

The Liquidity Plan involves ongoing monitoring aestimation of potentially credit sensitive liab#s and the sources and amounts of bal
sheet and external liquidity available to replaa#flows during a funding crisis. Several scenados analyzed based on varying assumptions
about the funding crisis’ severity and duratiorglsas decreases in earnings, asset quality detéoioy adverse market conditions, and
reductions in borrowing capacity and availabildyspecific action plan is formulated and activatdten a financial shock that affects our
normal funding activities is identified. Generalliie plan will reflect a strategy of replacing liél outflows with alternative liabilities, rathe
than balance sheet asset liquidity, to the extattgignificant premiums can be avoided. If altduealiabilities are not available, outflows v

be met through liquidation of balance sheet asswtliding unpledged securities.

As of December 31, 2014, available liquidity inadddunencumbered cash on hand and deposits withfothacial institutions of $237.66
million, federal funds lines with correspondent kaof $105.00 million, the Federal Reserve Bankalisit window of $9.09 million, unused
borrowing capacity with the FHLB of $409.19 millioand unpledged available-for-sale securities Gt $% million. Cash on hand and
deposits with other financial institutions, as wadllines of credit extended from correspondenkband the FHLB, are immediately availe
to satisfy deposit withdrawals, customer creditdse@nd our operations. Unused borrowing capadity tiwe FHLB is reported net of letters
of credit held to secure public unit deposits. A®ecember 31, 2014, we held letters of credit wthigan FHLB totaling $6.18 million.
Available-for-sale securities represent a secondawyce of liquidity upon conversion to a liquicdes Our approved lines of credit with
correspondent banks are available as backup lignsdurces.

As a holding company, the Company does not corslgatificant operations. The Company’s primary searof liquidity are dividends
received from the Bank and borrowings. Dividendis! iy the Bank are subject to certain regulatamjthtions. As of December 31, 2014,
Company’s liquid assets consisted of cash and imers securities totaling $29.82 million. The Comypa cash reserves and investments
provide adequate working capital to meet obligatiand projected dividends to shareholders for &x¢ tawvelve months. The Company
maintains a $15.00 million unsecured, committed bif credit with an unrelated financial institutidks of December 31, 2014, the
outstanding balance on the line was $2.00 million.

Cash Flows
The following table presents the major componehtsash flow in the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013 2012

Net cash provided by operating activit $ 41,68¢ $ 4451¢ $ 56,63¢
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi 280,95! (1,167 252,47-
Net cash used in financing activiti (141,55) (131,63) (211,56()
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 181,09: (88,28() 97,55
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning bal. 56,56 144,84 47,29¢
Cash and cash equivalents, ending bal: $ 237,66( $ 56,56 $ 144,84

2014 Compared to 2013et cash provided by operating activities de@da&2.83 million, or 6.35%, to $41.69 million in12Dprimarily due

to decreases in the provision for loan losses aodgeds from the sale of mortgage loans offsetdif drepayment penalties, a cash decrease
in other operating activities, and a decrease irntgage loans originated for sale. Net cash provldethvesting activities increased $282.12
million in 2014
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compared to net cash used of $1.17 million in 20&8ch was largely the result of acquisition andedtiture activity in 2014 and a decrease
in the purchase of available-for-sale securitiest dash used in financing activities increased Zenflion, or 7.54%, to $141.55 million in
2014 primarily due to a decrease in federal fundsimsed and the prepayment of FHLB borrowingsebfiy an increase in time deposits
repurchase agreements and repurchases of treascky he net effect of cash flow activity was 88$109 million increase in cash and cash

equivalents in 2014.

2013 Compared to 2012\et cash provided by operating activities deadail2.12 million, or 21.40%, in 2013 primarily dioea decrease
net income of $5.27 million. Net cash used in itivegactivities totaled $1.17 million in 2013 comed to net cash provided of $252.47
million in 2012, which was largely the result of acquisition activity in 2013, coupled with a $7®®illion decrease in proceeds from
securities and an $86.75 million increase in nahloriginations. Net cash used in financing adésitlecreased $79.93 million in 2013, which
was primarily due to a decline in the annual desees interest-bearing deposits. The net effectsh flow activity was an $88.28 million

decrease in cash and cash equivalents in 2013.

Capital Resources

Risk-based capital guidelines, issued by statefegeral banking agencies, include balance sheetsaard off-balance sheet arrangements
weighted by the risks inherent in the specific asgee. These guidelines require a minimum riskeldasapital ratio of 8%, Tier 1 risk-based

capital ratio of 6%, and Tier 1 leverage ratio .3

The following table presents our regulatory capitdios as of the dates indicated:

December 31

2014 2013 2012
Total risk-based capital rati
First Community Bancshares, Ir 17.6¢% 16.4%% 16.7(%
First Community Banl| 15.7%% 14.55% 15.22%
Tier 1 risk-based capital rati
First Community Bancshares, Ir 16.42% 15.1% 15.42%
First Community Banl 14.4¢% 13.3(% 13.9%
Tier 1 leverage rati
First Community Bancshares, Ir 10.12% 9.95% 9.9€%
First Community Banl| 8.81% 8.65% 8.9&8%

As of December 31, 2014, our regulatory capitabsaincreased primarily due to an increase in netiearnings while average assets
remained relatively stable. Our regulatory capitios declined between the years ended Decemh@0338 and 2012 as a result of treasury
stock repurchases and net unrealized losses ostingat securities. As of December 31, 2014, outaag@tios were well in excess of the
minimum standards and classified as “well capitalizunder regulatory capital adequacy standards Nége 21, “Regulatory Capital
Requirements and Restrictions,” to the Consolid&iedncial Statements in Item 8 of this report.
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Contractual Obligations

We maintain certain contractual cash obligatioms thquire future cash payments. Management balierechave adequate resources to fund
our outstanding commitments and, in a changingéstaate environment, the ability to adjust rate<ertificates of deposit; attract new
deposits; and replace deposits with FHLB advancesher fund providers, if cost effective. The énlling table presents our contractual cash
obligations, detailed by payment date, as of Deegrl, 2014:

More than
Less Than One to Three to

(Amounts in thousand Total One Year Three Years Five Years Five Years
Deposits without a stated maturity $1,297,08. $1,297,08 $ — $ — $ —
Overnight security repurchase agreem: 69,55: 69,55: — — —
Certificates of depos@@ 716,17 473,39¢ 150,73 81,44( 10,60z
Term security repurchase agreems 57,60( 3,91t 27,76¢ 25,917 —
FHLB advance®® 105,91° 3,66( 46,22 4,00( 52,03
Trust preferred indebtedne 27,37 2,63( 1,23¢ 1,192 22,31
Leases 5,70% 67% 1,12¢ 85¢ 3,04¢
Total contractual cash obligatio $2,279,40. $1,850,91 $ 227,09 $113,40¢ $87,99:

(1) Excludes interes

(2) Includes interest on fixed and variable ratkgaltions. The interest associated with variabte abligations is based upon interest rates
in effect at December 31, 2014. The interest tpdid on variable rate obligations is affected bgraes in market interest rates, which
materially affect the contractual obligation amaurtt be paid

(3) Excludes carrying value adjustments such as un@adrpremiums or discount

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We extend contractual commitments with off-balasiceet risk in the normal course of business to tiveetinancing needs of our customers.
Our exposure to credit loss in the event of norgraréince by other parties to financial instrumesthé same as the contractual amount ¢
instrument. See Note 20, “Litigation, Commitmentsl £ontingencies,” to the Consolidated Financiat&hents in Item 8 of this report.
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The following table presents our off-balance ska@eingements, detailed by commitment expiratiomfd&ecember 31, 2014:

More than
Less than
One Year One to Three to Five
(Amounts in thousand Total 1) Three Years Five Years Years
Commitments to extend credit
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other I $ 17,37 $ 7,98¢ $ 9,38¢ $ — $ —
Commercial and industri 33,02¢ 29,40¢ 3,44¢ 9 167
Multi-family residentia 2,70¢ 2,58¢ 25 — 92
Single family no-owner occupiet 1,71 1,71 — — —
Non-farm, nor-residentia 27,14¢ 13,37: 12,51( 1,13¢ 131
Agricultural 344 324 20 — —
Farmland 1,66¢ 1,347 321 — —
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line! 110,28! 11,777 15,65¢ 17,73 65,11¢
Single family owner occupie 31t 237 6 — 72
Owner occupied constructic 16,87( 15,20( 1,64( — 30
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 23,20¢ 16,48: 911 55C 5,26¢
Other 1,81: 64 1,74¢ — —
Total unused commitmen $236,47: $100,49¢ $ 45,67 $19,42¢ $70,87¢
Letters of credit
Financial letters of cred $ 487 $ 277 $ 20C $ — $ 10
Performance letters of cre( 3,09/ 2,981 14 5 94
Total letters of credi $ 3,581 $ 3,25¢ $ 214 $ 5 $ 104

(1) Lines of credit with no stated maturity date arguded in commitments for less than one y

Impact of Inflation and Changing Price:

Our consolidated financial statements and relatedsnare presented in accordance with GAAP, whagaires the measurement of results of
operations and financial position in historicallddd. Inflation may cause a rise in price leveld ahanges in the relative purchasing power of
money. These inflationary effects are not refledtehistorical dollar measurements. The primargefiof inflation on our operations is
increased operating costs. In management’s opiniterest rates have a greater impact on our fiahperformance than inflation. Interest
rates do not necessarily fluctuate in the sametiine, or to the same extent, as the price of g@mdisservices; therefore, the effect of infla
on businesses with large investments in propetntpand inventory is generally more significamr the effect on financial institutions. The
U.S. inflation rate continues to be relatively &aland management believes that any changeslatiamf will not be material to our financial
performance.

Ite m 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk.

Our profitability is largely dependent upon netigst income, which is the difference between @sieincome on interest-earning assets, suct
as loans and securities, and interest expenseenest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits anmdomongs. Our Company, like other financial
institutions, is subject to interest rate riskhe tegree that interest-earning assets repricereliffly than interest-bearing liabilities. We
manage our mix of assets and liabilities with tbalgf limiting exposure to interest rate risk, ensg adequate liquidity, and coordinating
sources and uses of funds while maintaining anpabge level of net interest income given the aurieterest rate environment.
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Net interest income, our primary component of opi@nal revenue, is subject to variation due to ¢feanin interest rate environments
unbalanced repricing opportunities on earning asmed interest-bearing liabilities. Interest rag& has four primary components: repricing
risk, basis risk, yield curve risk, and option riflepricing risk occurs when earning assets anthgdiabilities reprice at differing times as
interest rates change. Basis risk occurs when lyidgrates on assets and liabilities change dtdifit levels or in varying degrees. Yield
curve risk is the risk of adverse consequencesoitairs when the same instrument experiences uhelgarage in the spread between two or
more rates for different maturities. Lastly, optigsk occurs from embedded options, often put diragaions, given or sold to holders of
financial instruments.

To mitigate the effect of changes in the generadllef interest rates, we manage repricing oppdrasiand thus, our interest rate sensitivity.
We seek to control our interest rate risk exposmiiasulate net interest income and net earnings ftuctuations in the general level of
interest rates. To measure our exposure to inteatstisk, quarterly simulations of net interestdme are performed using financial models
that project net interest income through a rangeoskible interest rate environments, includingngsdeclining, most likely, and flat rate
scenarios. We use a simulation model that capalresirning assets, interest-bearing liabilitiex] aff-balance sheet financial instruments
and combines the various factors affecting ratsitieity into an earnings outlook for a range ofasied interest rate scenarios. Simulation
results show the existence and severity of intesstrisk in each rate environment based on threeigubalance sheet position, assumptions
about changes in the volume and mix of interestiagrassets and interest-paying liabilities, andestimate of yields earned on assets and
rates paid on deposit instruments and borrowinhges& assumptions are inherently uncertain andresult, the model cannot precisely
predict the impact of fluctuations in interest sata net interest income. Actual results will difiom simulated results due to the timing,
magnitude, and frequency of interest rate changdshanges in market conditions and our strategjites.earnings simulation model provit
the best tool for managing interest rate risk add to us and the industry.

We have established policy limits for tolerancendérest rate risk in various interest rate scasaiin addition, the policy addresses exposure
limits to changes in the economic value of equéy predefined policy guidelines. The most recemiusation indicates that current exposure
to interest rate risk is within our defined poliayits.

The following table summarizes the impact of imnageliand sustained rate shocks in the intereseraieonment on net interest income. The
model simulates rate changes of plus 300 to mif0sbasis points from the base simulation and ilhies the prospective effects of
hypothetical interest rate changes over a twelvatmperiod. This modeling technique, although usefoes not take into account all
strategies that management might undertake in nsgpim a sudden and sustained rate shock as akphstenarket conditions vary from the
assumed in the sensitivity analysis, actual resuiltdiffer due to prepayment and refinancing lkesvikely deviating from those assumed, the
varying impact of interest rate change caps orfl@m adjustable rate assets, the potential effexttanging debt service levels on customers
with adjustable rate loans, depositor early withgiig and product preference changes, and othenaitand external variables. As of
December 31, 2014, the Federal Open Market Comenitigintained a target range for federal fundstof 26 basis points, rendering a
complete downward shock of 200 basis points medegsgthus, downward rate scenarios are limiteditms 100 basis points. In the
downward rate shocks presented, benchmark intexrtest are assumed to have floors near 0%.

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013

Change in Percent Change in Percent
(Amounts in thousands, except basis points) Net Net
Increase (Decrease) in Basis Poin Interest Income Change Interest Income Change
300 $ 3,61¢ 4.2 $ 2,64¢ 3.1
200 2,18t 2.5 1,51 1.8
100 871 1.0 454 0.5
(100) 29C 0.3 497 0.€
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per shate

Assets

Cash and due from ban

Federal funds sol

Interes-bearing deposits in ban
Total cash and cash equivale

Securities available for sa

Securities held to maturit

Loans held for sal

Loans held for investment, net of unearned incc
Covered under loss share agreem
Not covered under loss share agreem
Less allowance for loan loss

Loans held for investment, n

FDIC indemnification asst

Premises and equipment, |

Other real estate owne
Covered under loss share agreem
Not covered under loss share agreem

Interest receivabl

Goodwill

Other intangible asse

Other asset

Total asset
Liabilities
Deposits:
Noninteres-bearing
Interes-bearing
Total deposit:
Interest, taxes, and other liabiliti
Federal funds purchas
Securities sold under agreements to repurc
FHLB borrowings
Other borrowing:
Total liabilities

Stockholders' equity

Preferred stock, undesignated par value; 1,0006s886es authorized: Series A Noncumulative Convertib
Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value; 25,000 sharéwened; 15,151 and 15,251 shares outstanding at

December 31, 2014 and 2013, respecti'

Common stock, $1 par value; 50,000,000 shares am# 20,499,683 and 20,493,057 shares issued at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively; 2,0934841,978,478 shares in treasury at December 31

2014 and 2013, respective
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning
Treasury stock, at co
Accumulated other comprehensive I

Total stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

December 31

2014 2013
$ 3945( $ 43,59¢
196,87 1,817
1,337 11,15:
237,66 56,56
326,11° 519,82
57,94¢ 56¢
1,79 88¢
122,24( 151,68:
1,567,171 1,559,03!
(20,22) (24,07)
1,669,18  1,686,64
27,90 34,69
55,84 61,11¢
6,32 7,541
6,63¢ 7,31¢
6,31¢ 7,521
100,72 105,45!
6,421 2,86¢
105,06t 111,52
$2,607,931  $2,602,51
$ 417,72¢ $ 339,68(
1583,03  1,611,06
2,000,75  1,950,74
26,06 22,717(
— 16,00(
121,74 118,30t
90,00( 150,00
17,99¢ 16,08¢
2,256,56. 2,273,900
15,15 15,25
20,50( 20,49
215,87 215,66
141,20 125,82
(35,75) (33,88
(5,605) (14,740
351,37 328,60
$2,607,931  $2,602,51
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F IRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per shate 2014 2013 2012
Interest Income
Interest and fees on loans held for investn $ 95,49 $  96,60( $ 96,68
Interest on securitie— taxable 5,97¢ 7,87¢ 7,83(
Interest on securitie— nontaxable 4,35( 4,79( 4,88:
Interest on deposits in ban 291 211 25¢
Total interest incom 106,10t 109,47¢ 109,65t
Interest Expense
Interest on deposi 7,30¢ 8,82: 9,97
Interest on sho-term borrowings 2,02¢ 2,22: 2,51t
Interest on lon-term deb: 5,95¢ 6,78¢ 7,118
Total interest expens 15,29( 17,83¢ 19,60(
Net interest incom 90,81¢ 91,64: 90,05¢
Provision for loan losse 14k 8,20¢ 5,67¢
Net interest income after provision for loan los 90,67 83,43« 84,37¢
Noninterest Income
Wealth managemel 3,03( 3,412 3,701
Service charges on deposit accol 13,82¢ 13,55¢ 14,06
Other service charges and ft 7,581 7,151 6,462
Insurance commissiot 6,55¢ 5,93: 5,74:
Impairment losses on securiti (737) (320 (942)
Portion of losses recognized in other compreheriaiv@me — — —
Net impairment losses recognized in earni (737) (320 (942)
Net (loss) gain on sale of securit (1,38 39¢ 48:
Net FDIC indemnification asset (amortization) atiore (3,979 (5,597) 45¢
Net gain on branch divestitu 75E — —
Other operating incom 4,35k 5,23t 6,742
Total noninterest incom 30,00s 29,77: 36,71(
Noninterest Expense
Salaries and employee bene 40,71 41,23¢ 38,66
Occupancy expense of bank premi 6,33¢ 7,03: 6,872
Furniture and equipme 4,95 4,96¢ 4,14~
Amortization of intangible asse 787 72¢ 804
FDIC premiums and assessme 1,672 1,715 1,612
FHLB debt prepayment fe: 5,00¢ — —
Merger, acquisition, and divestiture expe 1,15(C 57 5,09:
Other operating expen: 22,24: 23,24¢ 21,19(
Total noninterest expen: 82,86 78,98t 78,38
Income before income tax 37,81 34,22( 42,70¢
Income tax expens 12,32« 10,90¢ 14,12¢
Net income 25,49( 23,31 28,57%
Dividends on preferred stot 91C 1,02¢ 1,05¢
Net income available to common shareholc $ 24,58 $  22,28¢ $ 27,51
Basic earnings per common sh $ 1.34 $ 1.13 $ 1.4¢
Diluted earnings per common shi 1.31 1.11 1.4C
Cash dividends per common sh 0.5C 0.4¢ 0.4z
Weighted average basic shares outstan 18,406,36 19,792,09 19,127,06
Weighted average diluted shares outstan 19,483,05 20,961,80 20,419,56

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)

(Amounts in thousand
Comprehensive Income
Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss), before
Available-for-sale securities
Unrealized (losses) gains on securities availainasdle with othe-thar-temporary impairmer
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities availatisdle without oth-thar-temporary impairmer
Less: reclassification adjustment for losses (daalized in net incom
Less: reclassification adjustment for credit redat¢her-thartemporary impairments recognizet
net income
Unrealized gains (losses) on avail-for-sale securitie
Employee benefit plan:
Net actuarial (loss) gain on pension and otherrptisgment benefit plar
Net prior service cost attributed to plan amendm
Less: reclassification adjustment for amortizatsbprior service cost and net actuarial loss
included in net periodic benefit cc

Unrealized (losses) gains on employee benefit f

Other comprehensive income (loss), before
Income tax (expense) bene

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of
Total comprehensive incon

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
$2549( $2331: $28,57
) (1,277) 1,03¢
12,91 (19,969 7,28(
1,38¢ (39¢) (48%)
737 32¢ 942
15,03 (21,320 8,77¢
(642) 75¢ (195)

— (380) —
26C 327 26¢
(382) 705 73
14,65 (20,619 8,84¢
(5,515) 7,700 (3,345
9,13t (12,91 5,50:
$34,62¢ $10,397  $34,08(
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share
data)

Balance January 1, 2012

Net income

Other comprehensive incor

Common dividends declar— $0.43 per shar

Preferred dividends declar— $60.00 per shar

Preferred stock converted to common st— 103,500 share
Equity-based compensation expel

Common stock options exercis— 5,223 share

Restricted stock awar— 5,300 share

Purchase of treasury sha— 67,438 shares at $15.00 per st
Acquisition of Peoples Bank of Virgin— 2,157,005 share
Balance December 31, 20

Balance January 1, 20:

Net income

Other comprehensive incor

Common dividends declar— $0.48 per shar

Preferred dividends declar— $60.00 per shar

Preferred stock converted to common st— 149,730 share
Equity-based compensation expel

Common stock options exercis— 5,850 share

Restricted stock awar— 40,371 share

Purchase of treasury sha— 1,739,601 shares at $16.31 per sl
Balance December 31, 20

Balance January 1, 20:

Net income

Other comprehensive incor

Common dividends declar— $0.50 per shar

Preferred dividends declar— $60.00 per shar

Preferred stock converted to common st— 6,900 share
Equity-based compensation expel

Common stock options exercis— 3,854 share

Restricted stock awar— 13,933 share

Purchase of treasury sha— 132,773 shares at $16.29 per st

Balance December 31, 20

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

EQUITY
Accumulated
Additional Other
Preferred Common Retainec Treasury Comprehensive
Paid-in
Stock Stock Capital Earnings Stock Income (Loss) Total
$ 18,92 $ 18,08! $ 188,11t $ 93,65¢ $ 5,72) % (7,32¢)  $305,72!
— — — 28,57: — — 28,57:
— — — — — 5,50: 5,50:
— — — (8,167) — — (8,167)
— — — (1,05¢) — — (1,05¢)
(1,500) 102 1,397 — — — —
— — alils — 17 — 132
— — (55) — 13C — 75
— — (59) — 12¢ — 69
— — — — (1,01 — (1,017
— 2,151 24,31 — — — 26,47(
$ 17,42 $ 20,34! $ 213,82 $113,01: $ (6459 $ (1,82f)  $356,32
$ 17,42: $ 20,34: $ 213,82 $113,01: $ (6459 $ (1,825  $356,32
— — — 23,31 — — 23,31
— — — — — (12,91%) (12,91%)
— — — (9,47%) — — (9,47%)
— — — (1,029 — — (1,029
(2,170 15C 2,02( — — — —
— — 18 — — — 18
— — (21) — 10€ — 85
— — (183%) — 88€ — 702
— — — — (28,42)) — (28,42)
$ 15,25 $ 20,49: $ 215,66: $125,82! $(3388) $ (14,740  $328,60t
$ 15,25 $ 20,49: $ 215,66: $125,82t $(3388) $ (14,74()  $328,60t
— — — 25,49( — — 25,49(
— — — — — 9,13t 9,13t
— — — (9,200 — — (9,200
— — — (910 — — (910
(100 7 92 — — — —
— — 33z — — — 33z
— — (23) — 66 — 58
— — (202) — 23¢ — 36
— — — — (2,16%) — (2,16%)
$ 15,15 $ 20,50( $ 215,87: $141,20¢ $(3575) $ (5,605  $351,37:

70



Table of Contents

FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Amounts in thousand
Operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activitie:
Provision for loan losse
Depreciation and amortization of property, plant @quipmen
Amortization of premiums on investments,
Amortization (accretion) of FDIC indemnificationszs, ne
Amortization of intangible asse
Gain on acquisitions and divestitures,
Gain on sale of loar
Equity-based compensation expel
(Gain) loss on sale of property, plant, and equipr
Loss on sales of other real est
Loss (gain) on sale of securiti
Impairment losses recognized in earnings.
FHLB debt prepayment fe«
Deferred income tax bene
Proceeds from sale of mortgage lo
Origination of mortgage loar
Decrease in accrued interest receivi
(Increase) decrease in other operating activ
Net cash provided by operating activit
Investing activities
Proceeds from sale of securities available for
Proceeds from maturities, prepayments, and cabeairities available for sg
Proceeds from maturities and calls of securitidd teematurity
Payments to acquire securities available for
Payments to acquire securities held to mat
(Criginations) collections of loans, r
Proceeds from the redemption of FHLB stock,
Cash received (paid) in acquisitions and divestigune’
Proceeds from the FDI
Payments to acquire property, plant, and equipt
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipi
Proceeds from sale of other real es
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi
Financing activities
Increase (decrease) in noninte-bearing deposits, n
Decrease in intere-bearing deposits, n
(Decrease) increase in federal funds purchasel
Proceeds from (repayments of) securities sold uagerements to repurche
Repayments of lor-term debr
Proceeds from stock options exerci:
Excess tax benefit from equ-based compensatic
Payments for repurchase of treasury s
Payments of common dividen
Payments of preferred dividen
Net cash used in financing activiti
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

Supplemental transactions— noncash items
Transfer of loans to other real est
Loans originated to finance other real es
Supplemental disclosure— cash flow information
Cash paid for intere:
Cash paid for income tax

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
$ 25,49 $ 2331 $ 2857
145 8,20¢ 5,67¢
4,40¢ 4,66€ 4,03
961 884 2,32¢
3,97¢ 5,591 (45¢)
787 72¢ 804
(758) — —
(677 (1,219) (1,069
332 18 132
(119 (159 82
3,22 2,788 1,86¢
1,38t (399 (489
731 32C 942
5,00¢ — —
— = (896)
28,44 75,34¢ 67,50:
(28,68) (68,349 (67,289
1,20¢ 321 2,35¢
(4,196 (7,559 12,528
41,68¢ 44,51¢ 56,63
162,44 105,93 155,60(
48,91t 87,05t 105,83(
19C 25C 2,69(
(6,047 (201,139 (245,349
(57,679 — —
(64,115 (11,662 75,00
4,34¢ 47c 2,10
178,60 (697) 152,28
4,770 14,31 2,97
(2,146 (2,779 (8,009
1,04¢ 48¢ 1,151
10,61 6,60: 8,10¢
280,95! (1,169) 252,47
68,24¢ (3,679 12,65’
(121,91) (75,76 (175,13)
(16,000 16,00 —
3,43: (17,810 (13,179
(63,09) (11,599 (25,769
53 85 144

5 9 6
(2,169 (28,42) (1,019
(9,200 (9,479 (8,16
(910 (992) (1,120
(141,55) (131,63) (211,561
181,00 (88,280 97,55
56,56 144,84’ 47,29
$ 237,66 $ 56,56 $ 144,84
$ 12,62 $ 18,43t $ 9,08
671 3,19¢ 1,408
15,28t 18,14¢ 19,65¢
12,55: 3,00( 10,38t
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Operations

First Community Bancshares, Inc. (the “Company’a financial holding company headquartered in Béléf Virginia that provides banking
products and services to individuals and commectiatomers through its wholly-owned subsidiarysF@ommunity Bank (the “Bank”), a
Virginia-chartered banking institution. The Bankeoptes 53 branches in 4 states under the tradesrf@inse Community Bank in Virginia,
West Virginia, and North Carolina and People’s Camity Bank, a Division of First Community Bank, Tennessee. The Company offers
personal and commercial insurance products andcesrfrom 11 locations through its wholly owned sidiary Greenpoint Insurance Group,
Inc. ("Greenpoint”)which is headquartered in High Point, North CamliGreenpoint operates under the Greenpoint natherader the trac
names First Community Insurance Services (“FCI®Y Garolina Insurers Associates in North Carol®arr &Hyde Insurance and FCIS in
Virginia, and FCIS in West Virginia. The Bank offewealth management services and investment athnoegh its Trust Division and
wholly-owned subsidiary First Community Wealth Mgeaent (“FCWM?”), a registered investment advisamnf The Trust Division and
FCWM managed $712 million in combined assets d3eafember 31, 2014. These assets are not asshts @btpany, but are managed
under various fee-based arrangements as fiduciaagent. The Company reported consolidated ast8& @l billion as of December 31,
2014. Unless the context suggests otherwise, the"t@ompany” refers to First Community Bancshatas, and its subsidiaries as a
consolidated entity.

The Company operates in one business segment, CoityrBanking, which consists of all operations,luting commercial and consumer
banking, lending activities, wealth management, iasdrance services.

Principles of Consolidation

The accounting and reporting policies of the Comnypaomform to generally accepted accounting priresl'GAAP”) in the United States at
to predominant practices in the banking industtye TCompany'’s consolidated financial statementsigethe accounts of all wholly-owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balaneesl transactions have been eliminated in consmitnlaAssets held in an agency or
fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Compaiyaaa not included in the Company’s consolidatddrz® sheets.

The Company has investments in certain entitiesateaconsidered variable interest entities (“V)Esider GAAP. These VIEs include the
Company’s trust subsidiary, FCBI Capital Trust (tfieust”); certain tax credit limited partnershigmd limited liability companies that
provide aviation services, insurance brokerade, itisurance, and other related financial servigéSs are legal entities in which the equity
investors do not have sufficient equity at risk thoe entity to independently finance its activite¥she collective holders do not have the
power through voting or similar rights to direcetactivities of the entity that most significaniiypact its economic performance, the
obligation to absorb the expected losses of thigyent the right to receive expected residual meswf the entity. Consolidation of a VIE is
considered appropriate if a reporting entity isphienary beneficiary, the party that has both digant influence and control over the VIE.
Management periodically performs a qualitative gsiglto determine if the Company is the primarydfimary of a VIE. This analysis
includes review of the VIES’ capital structuresnwactual terms, and primary activities, includthg Companys ability to direct the activitie
of the VIEs and obligations to absorb losses, eritht to receive benefits, significant to the ¥lBased on the Company’s analysis for the
periods presented in this report, it is not thenaly beneficiary of its VIEs. Since these entilesnot meet the criteria for consolidation, they
are reported in other assets in the Company’s didiased balance sheets. The carrying value and manxi potential loss exposure of VIEs
totaled $1.26 million as of December 31, 2014, $2@9 million as of December 31, 2013.
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Use of Estimates

In preparing consolidated financial statementsoimfarmity with GAAP, management is required to makémates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liaslitis of the date of the balance sheet and reparednts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. The Company has identifieditems that require the most subjective assumptiorcomplex judgments: investment
securities, the allowance for loan losses, theiprav for income taxes, and business combinatimeiuding intangible assets.

Reclassification

Certain amounts reported in prior years have beelassified to conform to the current year’s prégtion. These reclassifications had no
effect on the Company’s results of operations,raial position, or cash flow.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and duelfaois, time deposits with other banks, federai$uisold, and interest-bearing balances
on deposit with the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLBiat are available for immediate withdrawal.

Investment Securities

Management determines the proper classificatioseolirities at the time of purchase. Debt secuttiasmanagement has the intent and
ability to hold to maturity are classified as hétdmaturity securities and carried at amortized c®sturities not classified as held to matu
including equity securities with readily determiteafair values, are classified as available-foesacurities and carried at estimated fair
value. Securities classified as available for salgsist of securities management intends to halehfiefinite periods of time, including
securities to be used as part of the Company’s/babéity management strategy and securities thay be sold in response to changes in
interest rates, prepayment risk, or other siméatdrs. Unrealized appreciation or depreciatiofainvalue above or below amortized cost is
included in stockholders’ equity, net of incomedsxunder the category of accumulated other corepsgte income (“AOCI"). Gains or
losses on the call, maturity, or sale of investnseturities are recorded based on the specifidifibtion method. Purchase premiums and
discounts are amortized or accreted over the filesecurity into interest income.

The Company performs an extensive quarterly rev@edetermine if impairment exists in the investmeamittfolio. If a security is deemed
impaired, management evaluates the causes of ineg&bsses to determine whether the impairmeteinigorary or other-than-temporary in
nature. If a security is determined to be othentteamporarily impaired, the value of the securityeduced and a corresponding charge to
noninterest income is recognized. If the other-tteanporary impairment (“OTTI") is related to a delgicurity, the Company determines the
amount of the impairment related to the credit,ledsich is recognized in noninterest income, argdaimount related to all other factors,
which is recognized in other comprehensive income.

Loans Held for Sale

Loans classified as held for sale are originatet thie intent to sell in the secondary market. Isoaeld for sale consist primarily of one to
four family residential loans and are carried atlthwer of cost or estimated fair value as deteethion an aggregate basis. These long-term,
fixed rate loans are sold to investors on a bdsttefbasis; consequently, the Company does nairbltbe interest rate risk involved in these
loans. The fair value of loans held for sale isdmined by quoted market prices for loans with Eimtoupon rates and terms.
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

The Company enters into interest rate lock commité1RLCs”) with customers on mortgage loans muted to be sold in the secondary
market and commitments to sell mortgages. Thes€#dnd forward sale loan commitments are recorti&adravalue in other assets and
liabilities with any changes in fair value recogrdzin other income. These derivative instrumentaataqyualify as hedges. The fair value of
IRLCs is determined by quoted market prices fonfwith similar coupon rates and terms. The faine@f forward sale loan commitment:
based on changes in the value of the commitmeintipally because of changes in interest rates.

Loans Held for Investment

Loans classified as held for investment are origidavith the intent to hold indefinitely, until maity, or until pay-off. Loans held for
investment are carried at the principal amounttantting, net of unearned income, less any writerdomecessary to reduce individual loans
to net realizable value. Loan origination fees|uding loan commitment and underwriting fees, aduced by direct costs associated with
loan processing, including salaries, legal reviemd appraisal fees. Net deferred loan fees arerddfand amortized over the life of the
related loan or commitment period.

The Company maintains an active and robust prolleiit identification system through its ongoinegdit review function. When a credit is
identified as exhibiting characteristics of weakegpithe Company assesses the credit for potemt@irment. Loans are considered impaired
when, in the opinion of management and based aemtinformation and events, the collection of piial and interest payments due under
the contractual terms of the loan agreements arertain. The Company’s Special Asset departmemwesyloans with balances of $250
thousand or greater that are deemed to be impgiraderly. Factors considered in determining impaint include, but are not limited to, the
borrower’s cash flow and capacity for debt repayimere valuation of collateral, historical loss gemtages, and economic conditions.
Impairment allowances allocated to individual laansluding individual credit relationships and topools grouped by similar risk
characteristics, are reviewed quarterly by managénh@erest income realized on impaired loansanatcrual status, if any, is recognized
upon receipt. The accrual of interest, which isaglly based on the daily amount of principal oamsting, on impaired loans is generally
continued unless the loan becomes delinquent 9 alasnore.

The Company’s Special Assets department also nrgratod manages part due loans. Loans are consigasedue when either principal or
interest payments become contractually delinqugr&tbdays or more. The Company’s policy is to dittme the accrual of interest, if
warranted, on loans based on the payment statakjagon of the related collateral, and the finahstrength of the borrower. Loans that are
90 days or more past due are placed on nonacdatassManagement may elect to continue the acofuiaterest when the loan is well
secured and in process of collection. When intexestuals are discontinued, interest accrued ahdallected in the current year is reversed
from income, and interest accrued and not collefttad prior years is charged to the allowance é@amnl losses. Loans in nonaccrual status
may be returned to accrual status provided theiAnmought current, all principal and interest amis contractually due (including past due
payments) are reasonably assured of repaymentwétreasonable period, and there is a periodlefat six months of repayment
performance (one year for loans providing for gerdytor semi-annual payments) by the borrower toetance with the contractual terms.

Seriously delinquent loans are evaluated for logigation options, including charge-off. Closed-ewthil loans are generally charged off
against the allowance for loan losses when theslbaecome 120 days past due. Open-end retail loghseaidential real estate secured loans
are generally charged off when the loan becomesda86 past due. Unsecured loans are generally ethaf§when the loan becomes 90 d
past due. All other loans are charged off agalmest@ilowance for loan losses after collection agtsnmave been exhausted, which generally is
within 120 days. Recoveries of loans previouslyrghd off are credited to the allowance for loarséssin the period received.
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Loans are considered troubled debt restructurifiBRs”) when the Company grants concessions, fgaller economic reasons, to
borrowers experiencing financial difficulty that uld not otherwise be considered. The Company gépenakes concessions in interest
rates, loan terms, and/or amortization terms. AIRE $250 thousand or greater are evaluated foe@fgpreserve based on either the
collateral or net present value method, whichesenast applicable. TDRs under $250 thousand arjeciub the reserve calculation for
classified loans based primarily on the historioak rate. At the date of modification, nonacctaahs are classified as nonaccrual TDRs.
TDRs classified as nonperforming at the date ofifraadion are returned to performing status afigmsonths of satisfactory payment
performance; however, these loans remain identdgdnpaired until full payment or other satisfaotdf the obligation occurs.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is maintained avel lmanagement deems sufficient to absorb probabtelosses inherent in the loan
portfolio. The allowance is increased by chargesamings in the form of provisions and recoveoigrior loan chargeffs and decreased
loans charged off. The provision is calculated elmarged to earnings to bring the allowance to allthat, through a systematic process of
measurement, reflects the amount management essinsateeded to absorb probable losses in theoporthile management uses its best
judgment and information available, the ultimateguhcy of the allowance is dependent upon a vaoidigctors beyond the Compé's
control: the performance of the Company’s loanfptid, the economy, changes in interest ratesyibe of regulatory authorities towards
loan classifications, and other factors. While ngmaent has allocated the allowance for loan losssepecific loans and general portfolio
segments, the entire allowance is available foragsenst any type of loan loss deemed appropriatadnagement.

Management performs quarterly assessments to daetethe appropriate level of the allowance for lézsses. The Company'’s allowance is
segmented into commercial, consumer real estate¢@msumer and other loans with each segment divide classes with similar
characteristics, such as the type of loan andteolih The allowance for loan losses includes s$igeailocations to significant individual loal
and credit relationships and general reservesetoetimaining loans that have been deemed impaihd.not specifically identified are
grouped into pools based on similar risk charasties. A loan that becomes adversely classifiegraded is moved into a group of adversely
classified or graded loans with similar risk chaggistics for evaluation. Management's generalmesallocations are based on judgments of
gualitative and quantitative factors about macrad iicro economic conditions reflected in the loantfolio and the economy.

No allowance for loan losses is carried over caldighed at acquisition for purchased loans acduirdousiness combinations. A provisi

for loan losses is recorded for any credit detation in purchased performing loans after the agition date. Purchased credit impaired
(“PCI”) loans are grouped into pools and evaluaeparately from the non-PClI portfolio. The Compasiimates cash flows to be collected
on PCI loans and discounts those cash flows atreeneate of interest. If cash flows for PCI loare expected to decline, generally a
provision for loan losses is charged to earningsylting in an increase to the allowance for l@amsés. If cash flows for PCI loans are
expected to improve, any previously establishealahce is first reversed to the extent of priorrgha and then interest income is increased
using prospective yield adjustment over the remaitife of the loan, or pool of loans. Any provisiestablished for PCI loans covered under
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIIGSs share agreements is offset by an adjustmehetBDIC indemnification asset to
reflect the indemnified portion of the post-acqtisi exposure.

Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned (“OREQ”) and acquired thihciereclosure, or other settlement, is carriethaiower of cost or fair value less
estimated selling costs. The fair value is gengitzdised on current third-party
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appraisals. When a property is transferred into OR&ny excess of the loan balance over the nezadde fair value is charged against the
allowance for loan losses. Operating expensessgaimd losses on the sale of OREO are includethar moninterest expense in the
Company'’s consolidated statements of income aftgifair value write-downs are recorded as valuaidjustments.

Business Combinations

The Company may engage in business combinatiomsothier companies. These transactions are accofortading Topic 805 of the
Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (“FASB”) Acnting Standards Codification (“ASC”), which rergs the acquisition method of
accounting. Under the acquisition method of acdagngll identifiable assets acquired, includingghased loans, and liabilities are recorded
at fair value. Any excess of the purchase price twe fair value of net assets acquired is recoedegoodwill. In instances where the price of
the acquired business is less than the net agspiged, a gain on the purchase is recorded.

Management makes significant estimates and judgme@tccounting for business combinations. Fawmeslare assigned based on quoted
prices for similar assets, if readily availableappraisals by qualified independent parties flaviant asset and liability categories.
Management must also make estimates for the ugse&donomic lives of certain acquired assets atillliies. These lives are used in
establishing the amortization and accretion of sortengible assets and liabilities, such as copsli¢s obtained in the acquisition of
commercial banks. Fair values are subject to refer for up to one year after the closing datéefacquisition as additional information
about the closing date fair values becomes availdliie results of operations of an acquired eati¢yincluded in the Comparsytonsolidate
results of operations from the closing date ofrttezger.

Purchased loans are recorded using the fair vakibadology outlined in Topic 820 of the FASB AS&clesive of loss share agreements
with the FDIC. The fair value estimates associatél loans include expected prepayments and theuatrand timing of expected principal,
interest, and other cash flows. No allowance fanltosses is recorded at acquisition for purchéssts because the fair values of the
acquired loans incorporate credit risk assumptions.

When purchased loans exhibit evidence of credérdmation after the acquisition date, and it isliable at acquisition the Company will not
collect all contractually required principal anderest payments, the loans are referred to asd2@t! PCI loans are accounted for using 1
310-30 of the FASB ASC, formerly the American Ihgg of Certified Public Accountants’ Statemenfafsition 03-3, “Accounting for
Certain Loans or Debt Securities Acquired in a fan” PCI loans are initially measured at fairuglwhich includes estimated future credit
losses expected to be incurred over the life ofdhas. Per the guidance, the Company aggregatelo&ts that have common risk
characteristics into loan pools. The Company htabéished the following loan pools related to teguisitions of Peoples Bank of Virginia
(“Peoples”) and Waccamaw Bank (“Waccamaw’) for eatibn: Waccamaw commercial, Waccamaw lines ofitrBéoples commercial,
Waccamaw serviced home equity lines, Waccamawegsal, Peoples residential, and Waccamaw consusvatence of credit quality
deterioration at acquisition may include measuues @s nonaccrual status, credit scores, declinesliateral value, current loan to value
percentages, and days past due. The Company coneigeected prepayments and estimates the amaotitit@ing of expected principal,
interest, and other cash flows for each loan ot pblwans identified as credit impaired. If corgtaally required payments at acquisition
exceed cash flows expected to be collected, thessxs the noaccretable difference, which is available to abswddlit losses on those log
or pools of loans. If the cash flows expected guasition exceed the estimated fair values, thessds the accretable yield, which is
recognized in interest income over the remainingdliof those loans or pools of loans when theaeré&asonable expectation about the amoun
and timing of such cash flows.
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Purchased performing loans are accounted for uemgontractual cash flow method of accounting,civliesults in these loans being
recorded at fair value with a credit discount. Thie value discount is accreted as an adjustmeyield over the estimated contractual lives of
the loans. Information about the accounting andatén of the allowance for loan losses relatepuichased loans, intangible assets, and
receivables resulting from FDIC-assisted transastie found in this note of the consolidated finahstatements.

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Indemnificaton Asset

The FDIC indemnification asset represents the aagrgmount of the right to receive payments from FDIC for losses incurred on specified
assets purchased from the FDIC that are coverdaiskyshare agreements. The FDIC indemnificatioatassneasured separately from rel:
covered assets because it is not contractually eéddakin the assets or transferable should thesassatisposed. Under the acquisition
method of accounting, the FDIC indemnification aseas recorded at fair value using projected chshsfbased on expected reimbursem
and applicable loss share percentages as outlinde loss share agreements with the FDIC. Theategeeimbursements did not include
reimbursable amounts related to future coveredredipges. The cash flows were discounted to refleettiming and receipt of
reimbursements from the FDIC. The discount is dedréhrough noninterest income over future peridthie Company regularly reviews the
fair value of the FDIC indemnification asset wittput from a third-party provider. Post-acquisitexjustments to the indemnification asset
are measured on the same basis as the underlyiegecbassets. Increases in the cash flows of cdveaas reduce the FDIC indemnification
asset balance, which is recognized as amortizéttimugh noninterest income over the shorter of¢imeaining life of the FDIC
indemnification asset or the underlying loans. ases in the cash flows of covered loans incréesEDIC indemnification asset balance,
which is recognized as accretion through nonintéeneeme. The realization of the FDIC indemnificatiasset ultimately depends on the
performance of the underlying covered assets, &lssgpe of time, and claims paid by the FDIC; tloeestthe amount the Company realizes
could differ materially from the carrying value.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost lesmatated depreciation and amortization. Depreciatiod amortization are computed by the
straight-line method over the estimated usefukligéthe respective assets. Useful lives range Bdam10 years for furniture, fixtures, and
equipment; 3 to 5 years for software, hardware,datd handling equipment; and 10 to 40 years fddings and building improvements.
Land improvements are amortized over a period ofeis and leasehold improvements are amortizedtbgdesser of the term of the
respective leases plus the first optional renewebp, when renewal is reasonably assured, ordtimated useful lives of the improvements.
The Company leases various properties within s network. Leases generally have initial teringpato 20 years and most contain
options to renew with reasonable increases in fdhteases are accounted for as operating leddamtenance and repairs are charged to
current operations while improvements that extéredetconomic useful life of the underlying assetcagitalized. Disposition gains and los
are reflected in current operations.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of goodwill, core depiasitngible assets, and other identifiable intalegétssets that result from business
combinations. Goodwill represents the excess opthiehase price over the fair value of net assataieed that is allocated to the appropriate
reporting unit when acquired. The Company maintéirsreporting units, Community Banking and Insuai$ervices. Goodwill is tested
annually in the fourth quarter using a qualitatigsessment to determine if it is more likely thahthat the fair value of each reporting unit is
less than its carrying amount. If the Company aethes that it is more likely than not that the faitue of either reporting unit is less than its
carrying amount, the two-step quantitative goodimilpairment test is performed.
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Step 1 consists of calculating and comparing tivevédue of each reporting unit to its carrying amg including goodwill. If the fair value of
a reporting unit is greater than its book valuegoodwill impairment exists. If the carrying amowfita reporting unit is greater than its
calculated fair value, goodwill impairment may éxiad Step 2 is required to determine the amoutiteofmpairment loss.

The Company performed its annual impairment tegfoofdwill as of October 31, 2014. The Step 1 vabmaanalysis included a market
approach, using public company and transaction agsthand an income approach, using a discountédfloas method. The Step 1 analysis
indicated that no impairment charge was necessaieer reporting unit. An impairment charge t@dwill and other intangible assets may
be required in the future if the Company’s futuaergngs and cash flows decline or discount rates s determining fair value increase.

Core deposit intangible assets represent the femma@ngs potential of acquired deposit relatiopshinat are amortized over their estimated
remaining useful lives. Other identifiable intangilassets primarily represent the rights arisiognfcontractual arrangements that are
amortized using the straight-line method.

Other Investments

As a condition of membership in the FHLB and thddtal Reserve Bank (“FRB”), the Company is requiedubscribe to a minimum level
of stock in the FHLB of Atlanta and FRB of Richmorithese securities are reported in other assditei€ompany’s consolidated balance
sheets. There is no market for these securitieoamership is restricted; therefore, readily deiaable fair values are not available. The
Company carries these nonmarketable securitiessatatid reviews the FHLB of Atlanta stock quartéolyimpairment. The Company
believes the FHLB of Atlanta ownership positionyides access to relatively inexpensive wholesateaernight funding. The FHLB of
Atlanta repurchased excess activity-based stockpaitiquarterly cash dividends in each of the tlyeses ended December 31, 2014. Based
on publicly available information as of December 2014, the Company believes that its FHLB of Atidastock is not impaired. The
investment in FHLB of Atlanta stock was $6.37 roiflias of December 31, 2014, and $10.72 millionfd3egember 31, 2013. The
investment in FRB of Richmond stock was $5.58 wnillas of December 31, 2014, and December 31, 2013.

The Company maintains long-term investments inotegrientities, including the Trust; certain tax @réchited partnerships; and other limited
liability companies that provide aviation servicesurance brokerage, title insurance, and otHate financial services. These entities are
reported in other assets in the Company’s condelitlaalance sheets. Investments in entities tieaCtimpany has no significant influence or
control over, generally ownership interests of ks 20%, are recorded using the cost methodaanfuenting. Under the cost method, these
investments do not have readily determinable falues and dividends received are generally recoadédcome. Investments in entities that
the Company has the ability to exercise signifigafitence over but not control, generally ownepsiniterests ranging from 20% to 50%, are
recorded using the equity method of accounting.ddiide equity method, dividends received generatliiuce the carrying amount of the
investment, and the investment is adjusted to mzeghe Company’s share of the entity’s earnitagses, and changes in capital, if any.
Management believes any future adjustments toyquiestments will be immaterial. All long-term iestments are reviewed periodically for
possible impairment. The carrying value and maxinpatential loss of equity investments totaled $86Gfusand as of December 31, 2014,
and $786 thousand as of December 31, 2013.

Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

Securities sold under agreements to repurchasgearxally accounted for as collateralized finangmagsactions. Securities, generally U.S.
government and federal agency securities, pledgetltateral under these arrangements can be sotbledged only if replaced by the
secured party. The fair value of the collateralted to a third party is continually monitored aamdtlitional collateral is provided as
appropriate.
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Advertising Expenses

Advertising costs are generally expensed as indufiee Company may establish accruals for expeadedrtising expenses in the course
fiscal year.

Equity-Based Compensation

The cost of employee services received in exchéorgequity instruments, including stock options aesitricted stock awards, is generally
measured at fair value on the grant date. A Blackeles model is used to estimate the fair valustaufk options, while the market price of
Company’s common stock at the date of grant is asetlie fair value of restricted stock awards. Cemsption cost is recognized over the
required service period, generally defined as #sting period for stock option awards and as th&iotion period for restricted stock awards.
For awards with graded vesting, compensation sastdognized on a straight-line basis over theisitgservice period for the entire award.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense is comprised of the currentdafiekred tax consequences of events and transactimady recognized. The Company
includes interest and penalties related to incawdiabilities in income tax expense. The effectiae rate, income tax expense as a perce
of pre-tax income, may vary significantly from si&try rates due to tax credits and permanent @iffees. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized for the estimated future tax coresecps attributable to differences between the &aed of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purpod@sferred tax assets and liabilities are adjustesligh the provision for income taxes as
changes in tax laws or rates are enacted.

The Company'’s tax filings for the years ended Ddoen31, 2010 through 2013, are open to audit usidéutes of limitation by the Internal
Revenue Service and various state tax departments.

Earnings per Common Share

Basic earnings per common share is calculated\nglidg net income available to common shareholtgrthe weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. Qdle&rnings per common share includes the dilufffezteof potential common stock that
could be issued by the Company. Under the treastonk method of accounting, potential common stoely be issued for stock options,
nonvested restricted stock awards, performancedtsisek awards, and convertible preferred stockitBd earnings per common share is
calculated by dividing net income by the weightedrage number of common shares outstanding fopehied plus the number of dilutive
potential common shares. The calculation of dilgathings per common share excludes potential conghares that have an exercise price
greater than the average market value of the Coygpanmmon stock because the effect would be duatidé.
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The following table presents the calculation ofibasid diluted earnings per common share for thmgg indicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per steteg 2014 2013 2012
Net income $ 25,49 $ 23,310 $ 28,57
Dividends on preferred stox 91C 1,024 1,05¢
Net income available to common shareholc $  24,58( $ 22,28t $ 27,51
Weighted average number of common shares outsignusic 18,406,36 19,792,09 19,127,06
Dilutive effect of potential common shares frc
Stock options 18,601 19,331 4,54¢
Restricted stoc 461 5,01 2,10
Convertible preferred stoc 1,046,17! 1,132,99i 1,285,84:
Contingently issuable shar 11,44¢ 12,35: —
Weighted average number of common shares outsigndiinted 19,483,05 20,961,80 20,419,56
Basic earnings per common sh $ 1.34 $ 1.1z $ 1.44
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 1.31 $ 1.11 $ 1.4C
Antidilutive potential common share
Stock options 222,65: 317,42( 420,80:
Restricted stoc — 271 —
Total potential antidilutive shart 222,65: 317,69: 420,80:.

The Company’s Series A Noncumulative Convertiblef€red Stock (“Series A Preferred Stock”) caraeg? dividend rate. Each share of
the Series A Preferred Stock is convertible intsbBares of the Company’s common stock at any fithe.Company may redeem the shares
at face value and the shares mandatorily conveMayn20, 2016. The Series A Preferred Stock outstantotaled 15,151 shares as of
December 31, 2014, 15,251 shares as of Decemb2033, and 17,421 shares as of December 31, 2012.

Derivative Instruments

A derivative is an instrument whose value is datifrem an underlying instrument or index, suchrdsrest rates, equity security prices,
currencies, commodity prices, or credit spreadsivagves include futures, forwards, swaps, optiontracts, and other financial instruments
with similar characteristics. Derivative contraoften involve future commitments to exchange irgepalyment streams or currencies based
on a notional or contractual amount (e.g., interas swaps or currency forwards) or to purchaslhiother financial instruments at speci
terms on a specified date (e.g., options to bugetirsecurities or currencies). The Company eritgosderivative transactions principally to
protect against the risk of adverse price or irsterate movements on the value of certain asset$iailities and on future cash flows. All
derivative instruments are reported at fair vatuthe balance sheets.

If certain conditions are met, a derivative maydbsignated as a hedge related to fair value, ¢ash dr foreign exposure risk. Changes in
fair value of a derivative instrument vary depemgdim the intended use of the derivative and thalting designation. The Company accounts
for fair value hedges using the regression analysithod. The hedged item is regressed with theihgdgstrument and if the coefficient of
determination is at least 0.80 the hedge will bentled effective. The change in fair value of thediregl derivative and the change in fair ve

of the hedged exposure are recorded in earningshadge
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ineffectiveness is also reflected in current eaggirChanges in the fair value of derivatives naigieated as hedging instruments are
recognized as a gain or loss in earnings. The Coynframally documents any relationships betweergiredinstruments and hedged items
and the risk management objective and strategyridertaking each hedged transaction. As of DeceBihe2014, the Company had one
interest rate swap that qualified as a fair valeeding instrument. The Company’s other derivathstruments include various IRLCs and
forward sale loan commitments that do not qualgihadging instruments.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would lmeired to sell an asset or paid to transfer alitglin an orderly transaction between market
participants. A fair value measurement assumedhiearansaction to sell the asset or transfelidhdity occurs in the principal market for t
asset or liability or, in the absence of a printiparket, the most advantageous market for thet asdiability. The price in the principal, or
most advantageous, market used to measure theafa@ of the asset or liability must not be adjddtg transaction costs. An orderly
transaction is a transaction that assumes exptstine market for a period before the measurematet tv allow for marketing activities that
are usual and customary for transactions involgimch assets and liabilities; it is not a forceddetion. Market participants are buyers and
sellers in the principal market that are indepehdarowledgeable, able to transact, and willingrémsact.

The fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 Inputs — Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets fortidahassets or liabilities that the reporting Bnkias the ability to
access at the measurement d

Level 2 Inputs — Inputs other than quoted prices included in Levidat are observable for the asset or liabilitthesi directly or
indirectly. These might include quoted prices fionikar assets or liabilities in active markets, tpprices for identici
or similar assets or liabilities in markets that aot active, inputs other than quoted pricesdahaibbservable for the
asset or liability and provide a reasonable bagi$dir value determination, such as interest ratedd curves,
volatilities, prepayment speeds, default rates,aadit risks, or inputs that are principally dexivfrom observable
market data

Level 3 Inputs — Unobservable inputs for determining the fair valogassets or liabilities when there is little @ market activity at the
measurement date, using reasonable inputs and pssnmbased on the best information at the timéhé extent that
inputs are available without undue cost and efftinese inputs and assumptions may include modatetemputs that
are not corroborated by observable market dataaarenhtity s own assumption

These valuation methodologies were applied tchallGompany’s assets and liabilities carried atfaiue. In general, fair value is based upon
guoted market prices, where available. If such egioharket prices are not available, fair valuesisdal upon third-party models that primarily
use, as inputs, observable market-based paramétdumtion adjustments may be made to ensureithetdial instruments are recorded at
fair value. These adjustments may include amountsftect counterparty credit quality, the Compangreditworthiness, among other things,
as well as unobservable parameters. Any such vatuatijustments are applied consistently over tiile Company’s valuation
methodologies may produce a fair value calculati@i may not be indicative of net realizable valueeflective of future fair values. While
management believes the Company’s valuation metbgits are appropriate and consistent with otheketaarticipants, different
methodologies or assumptions to determine thev&ire of certain financial instruments could regula different estimate of fair value at the
reporting date.
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Recent Accounting Standards

The FASB issued several Accounting Standards Update014; however, no updates impacted, or areagd to impact, the Company’s
financial condition or results of operation.

In February 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Steaslblpdate (“ASU”) 2013-02, “Reporting of Amounts@assified Out of Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income.” ASU 2013-02 is intehieimprove the reporting of reclassifications otIAOCI of various components.
ASU 2013-02 requires entities to disclose in alsihgcation, either on the face of the financialtstment that reports net income or in the
notes, the effects of reclassification out of acalated other comprehensive income (AOCI). For iteettassified out of AOCI and into net
income in their entirety, such as realized gain®sses on available-for-sale securities reclassifito net income on sale, entities must
disclose the effect on the reclassification on etdrted net income item. For AOCI reclassificatitems that are not reclassified in their
entirety into net income, such as actuarial gainesses amortized into pension cost that may péatzed into inventory or other assets,
entities must provide a cross reference to othgarired U.S. GAAP disclosures. ASU 2013-02 was diffegprospectively for interim and
annual periods beginning on or after December A522The Company adopted the guidance in 2013 asdhicluded the related disclosures
in Note 17, “Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incgneethe Consolidated Financial Statements of thsort.

In October 2012, the FASB issued ASU 2012-06, “Bass Combinations (Topic 805) — Subsequent Accogirfitir an Indemnification Asset
Recognized at the Acquisition Date as a Result@baernment-Assisted Acquisition of a Financialtitugion (a consensus of the FASB
Emerging Issues Task Force),” to address the diyemspractice about how to subsequently measarmdemnification asset recognized as a
result of a government-assisted acquisition oharftial institution. The amendments in ASU 2012dXuire a reporting entity to
subsequently account for a change in the measutevhére indemnification asset on the same basikeashange in the assets subject to
indemnification. ASU 2012-06 further requires thay amortization of changes in value be limitethilesser of the term of the
indemnification agreement and the remaining liféhaf indemnified assets. The amendments in ASU-PB1&re effective prospectively for
fiscal years beginning on or after December 1522@hd early adoption is permitted. The Companypsstbthe guidance in 2013 and has
recognized negative accretion related to the indfération asset.

Note 2.  Acquisitions and Divestitures
Peoples Bank of Virgini

On May 31, 2012, the Company completed the acquisitf Peoples, based in Richmond, Virginia. Pespdefull service community bank,
operated four branches throughout the Richmond &teacquisition, Peoples had total assets of $Z&rkillion, loans of $184.84 million,
and deposits of $232.75 million. The purchase paias $40.28 million, including common stock val@d26.47 million and cash
consideration of $12.26 million. The Company issBelb7,005 shares of common stock with an estinfaiedalue of $12.27 per share. E
outstanding share of Peoples was exchanged fo8 §6 &ash and 1.07 shares of the Company’s commeai.sThe Company recorded
goodwill of $10.32 million from the acquisition.

Waccamaw Bank

On June 8, 2012, the Company entered into a puedras assumption agreement with loss share arrargsmwith the FDIC to purchase
certain assets and assume substantially all depasit certain liabilities of Waccamaw, headquadi@né/Nhiteville, North Carolina.
Waccamaw, a full service community bank, operabetésn branches throughout North Carolina and S@attolina. At acquisition,
Waccamaw had total assets of $500.64 million, ladr$318.35 million, and deposits of $414.13 milliddnder the loss share agreements
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FDIC covers 80% of most loan and foreclosed rei@tesosses. The Company recorded an indemnificasset of $49.76 million at
acquisition representing the present value of edBthlosses on covered assets to be reimbursée l5XIC. The Company recorded
goodwill of $10.62 million from the acquisition.

Bank of Americ:

On October 24, 2014, the Company completed theisitiqn of seven branches from Bank of America,iblal Association. At acquisition,
the branches had total deposits of $318.88 millidre Company assumed the deposits for a premius.@® million. Noloans were include
in the purchase. Additionally, the Company purckabe real estate or assumed the leases assowitttettie branches. The acquisition
expands the Company’s presence by six branchesuth®estern Virginia and one branch in Central N&#arolina.

CresCom Bank

On December 12, 2014, the Company completed tleeodhirteen branches to CresCom Bank (“CresCo@¥igrleston, South Carolina. T
divestiture consisted of ten branches in the Sastteen, Coastal region of North Carolina and tiraaches in South Carolina, all of which
were previously acquired in the FDIC-assisted &itian of Waccamaw. At closing, CresCom assumedl ti#posits of $215.19 million and
total loans of $70.04 million. The transaction exigld loans covered under FDIC loss share agreenfdr@<Company recorded a net gain of
$755 thousand in connection with the divestiturkicl included a deposit premium received from Cara®@f $6.45 million and goodwiill
allocation of $6.45 million.

Insurance Service

In 2013 the Company issued cash consideration @ $iousand to purchase one agency. The acquisiiors call for further cash
consideration of $253 thousand if certain operatamgets are met. The fair value of these paymeassbooked at acquisition and added $324
thousand of goodwill and other intangibles to tlmpany’s consolidated balance sheet as of Dece&ih@013.

Acquisitions that occurred before 2009 call fouisg further cash consideration if certain opeatargets are met. If those targets are met,
the value of the consideration will be added todbst of the acquisition. Eamut payments related to these acquisitions totBB&® thousan
in 2014, $442 thousand in 2013, and $692 thousa2012.
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Net Cash Paid (Received) in Acquisitions and Diutasts

The following table presents the components ottash acquired, or paid, in acquisitions and ditw®ts, an investing activity in the
Company’s statements of cash flows, in the perindgated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013 2012
Acquisitions
Fair value of assets and liabilities acquir
Investments $ — $ — $ 62,91¢
Loans 14C 281 419,32(
Premises and equipme 4,54 — 7,53t
Other asset 4,56: — 255,92.
Deposits (318,87) — (649,18:)
Other liabilities (76) — (60,08%)
Purchase price in excess of net assets acq 1,721 663 21,81(
Total purchase pric (307,98) 944 58,23¢
Non-cash purchase pric — 247 26,46
Cash acquire — — 184,05:
Net cash (received) paid in acquisitic (307,98) 697 (152,28))
Divestitures
Book value of assets sc (83,287 — —
Book value of liabilities solr 215,26¢ — —
Sales price in excess of net liabilities assul (759 — —
Total sales pric 131,23 — —
Cash solc (1,852) — —
Net cash paid (received) in divestitu 129,37¢ — —
Net cash (received) paid in acquisitions and ditests $(178,609) $ 697 $(152,28)

Note 3. Investment Securities

The following tables present the amortized costfaidvalue of available-for-sale securities, irdihg gross unrealized gains and losses, as o
the dates indicated:

December 31, 201

OTTIin
Unrealized Unrealized

Amortized Fair AOCI

(Amounts in thousand Cost Gains Losses Value (1)
U.S. Agency securities $ 34,60 $ 11 $ (1,017 $ 33,59¢ $ —
Municipal securitie: 134,78« 4,82: (692) 138,91! —
Single issue trust preferred securil 55,82 — (9,68%) 46,13’ —
Corporate securitie 5,00( 10¢ — 5,10¢ —
Mortgagebacked Agency securitie 102,50¢ 47( (857) 102,11¢ —
Equity securitie: 22€ 19 (6) 23¢ —
Total $332,94. $ 5,43: $(12,257)  $326,11 $ —
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December 31, 201

Unrealizec Unrealized
Amortized Fair OTTlin
(Amounts in thousand Cost Gains Losses Value Aocl (D
U.S. Treasury securities $ 9,70¢ $ — $ (69%) $ 9,01 $ —
Municipal securitie: 147,04¢ 1,86¢ (4,637 144,28l —
Single issue trust preferred securil 55,76¢ — (9,530 46,23¢ —
Corporate securitie 5,00( — (129 4,871 —
Mortgagebacked securitie:
Agency 306,31¢ 2,57t (8,50¢) 300,38t —
Non-Agency All-A residential 12,54: — (2,759 9,78¢ (2,759
Total mortgag-backed securitie 318,86: 2,57¢ (11,267) 310,17! (2,759
Equity securitie: 5,25¢ 24 (36) 5,24 —
Total $541,64. $ 4,461 $(26,289) $519,82! $(2,759)

(1) Otherthar-temporary impairment in accumulated other comprsiverincome

The following table presents the amortized cost,alue, and weighted-average yield of availalledale securities, by contractual maturity,
as of December 31, 2014. Actual maturities couffiédfrom contractual maturities because issuerg have the right to call or prepay
obligations with or without penalties.

u.s.
Agency Municipal Tax Equivalent
(Amounts in thousand Securities Securities Corporate Notes Total Purchase Yield (1)
Amortized cost maturity
Within one yea $ — $ 2,46¢ $ — $ 2,46¢ 4.07%
After one year through five yea 3 6,06¢ — 6,072 6.04%
After five years through ten yee 3,15¢ 45,13’ 5,00( 53,29: 4.55%
After ten year: 31,44t 81,11: 55,82: 168,37¢ 2.9%%
Amortized cos $34,60¢ $134,78: $ 60,82: 230,21(
Mortgagebacked securitie 102,50¢ 1.4<%
Equity securitie: 22€ 8.2(%
Total amortized cos $332,94.
Tax equivalent purchase yie 1.95% 4.61% 1.45% 3.4(%
Average contractual maturity (in yea 16.7¢ 9.8¢ 12.5¢ 11.62
Fair value maturity
Within one yeal $ — $ 2,47( $ — $ 2,47(
After one year through five yea 3 6,22¢ — 6,232
After five years through ten yee 3,09¢ 47,20" 5,10¢ 55,41t
After ten year: 30,49¢ 83,00¢ 46,13% 159,64.
Fair value $33,59¢ $138,91! $ 51,24¢ 223,75¢
Mortgage-backed securitie 102,11¢
Equity securitie: 23¢
Total fair value $326,11°

(1) Fully taxable equivalent at the rate of 3t
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The following tables present the amortized costfairdvalue of held-to-maturity securities, incladigross unrealized gains and losses, as of
the dates indicated:

December 31, 201.

Amortized Unrealizec Unrealized
Fair
(Amounts in thousand Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. Agency securities $46,98" $ 22 $ (59 $46,95¢
Municipal securitie: 37¢ 7 — 38¢
Corporate securitie 10,58: — (34) 10,54¢
Total $57,94¢ $ 2¢ $ (89 $57,88¢
December 31, 201
Amortized Unrealizec Unrealized
Fair
(Amounts in thousand Cost Gains Losses Value
Municipal securities $ 56¢ $ 11 $ — $ b57¢
Total $ b56¢ $ 11 $ — $ 57¢

The following table presents the amortized costMalue, and weighted-average yield of held-toumi&t securities, by contractual maturity,
as of December 31, 2014. Actual maturities couffiédfrom contractual maturities because issuerg hae the right to call or prepay
obligations with or without penalties.

U.S. Agenc: Municipal
Tax Equivalent
(Amounts in thousand Securities Securities Corporate Notes Total Purchase Yield ()
Amortized cost maturity
Within one yea $ — $ 19C $ — $ 19 8.1%%
After one year through five yea 46,98 18¢ 10,58: 57,75¢ 1.15%
After five years through ten yee — — — — —
After ten year — — — — —
Total amortized cos $ 46,98: $ 37¢ $ 10,58: $57,94¢
Tax equivalent purchase yie 1.01% 8.17% 1.64% 1.17%
Average contractual maturity (in yea 2.8¢ 0.8: 3.5¢€ 2.9t
Fair value maturity
Within one yeal $ — $ 19¢ $ — $ 19:
After one year through five yea 46,95¢ 192 10,54¢ 57,69¢
After five years through ten yee — — — —
After ten year — — — —
Total fair value $ 46,95¢ $ 38¢ $ 10,54¢ $57,88¢

(1) Fully taxable equivalent at the rate of 3t
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The following table presents municipal securitl®s state, for the states where the largest voluitleese securities are held in the Company’
portfolio. The table also presents the amortizest aad fair value of the municipal securities, intthg gross unrealized gains and losses,

the dates indicated.

December 31, 201.

Percent of

(Amounts in thousand Municipal Portfolio Amortized Cost Unrealized Gains Unrealized Losse Fair Value
New York 10.62% $  14,06¢ $ 73C $ = $ 14,79
Minnesots 8.3/% 11,18¢ 462 (30 11,62:
Wisconsin 8.3(% 11,34( 244 (16) 11,56¢
Ohio 8.1¢% 11,14¢ 337 (14¢) 11,33¢
Connecticu 8.02% 10,77¢ 39¢ — 11,16¢
New Jerse! 7.9¢% 10,56 51¢ — 11,08:
Massachuseti 7.18% 9,65: 393 (39 10,00¢
Texas 6.35% 8,77( 214 (132) 8,851
Other 35.0¢% 47,66 1,541 (327) 48,87t

Total 100.0(% $ 135,16 $ 4,83( $ (692) $139,30:

December 31, 201.
Percent of

(Amounts in thousand Municipal Portfolio Amortized Cost Unrealized Gain Unrealized Losse Fair Value
New York 11.3% $ 16,167 $ 294 $ (29) $ 16,42
Minnesots 8.5¢% 12,50« 174 (279 12,39¢
New Jerse! 8.1&% 11,56¢ 30€ (25) 11,84¢
Connecticu 7.8% 11,40¢ 91 (109 11,38¢
Wisconsin 7.8% 11,81¢ 11€ (589) 11,34¢
Ohio 7.45% 11,29¢ 13E (637) 10,79:
Massachuseti 6.85% 10,10z 11¢ (295) 9,92¢
Texas 6.2% 9,48: 134 (57€) 9,041
Other 35.6&0 53,28: 50¢€ (2,109 51,68¢

Total 100.0(% $ 147,61 $ 1,87¢ $ (4,639 $144,85¢

The following tables present the fair values anckatized losses for available-for-sale securitiea continuous unrealized loss position for
less than 12 months and for 12 months or longef #w dates indicated:

December 31, 201

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
(Amounts in thousand Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. Agency securities $ — $ — $ 29,44¢ $ (1,017) $ 29,44¢ $ (1,019
Municipal securitie: 1,11z (8) 25,007 (684) 26,11¢ (692)
Single issue trust preferred securil — — 46,13: (9,68%) 46,13: (9,68%)
Mortgagebacked Agency securitie 2,77¢ 3 45,79( (8549) 48,56¢ (857)
Equity securitie: 15C (6) — — 15C (6)
Total $ 404 $ (170 $146,38. $(12,240 $150,42; $(12,25)
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December 31, 201:

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
(Amounts in thousand Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. Treasury securities $ 9012 $ (695 & — $ — $ 9,01 $ (699
Municipal securitie: 57,95( (4,149 3,04¢ (490 60,99¢ (4,637)
Single issue trust preferred securil — — 46,23¢ (9,530 46,23¢ (9,530
Corporate securitie 4,871 (129 — — 4,871 (129
Mortgagebacked securitie:
Agency 114,04 (4,367 55,70¢ (4,147 169,75: (8,509
Non-Agency All-A residential — — 9,78¢ (2,759 9,78¢ (2,759
Total mortgag-backed securitie 114,04 (4,367 65,49¢ (6,907 179,54. (11,267)
Equity securitie: 4,97¢ (24) 2C (12 4,99¢ (36€)
Total $190,85°  $ (9,356 $114,79¢ $(16,93Y) $305,65! $(26,289

The following table presents the fair values anckatized losses for held-toaturity securities in a continuous unrealized lossition for les
than 12 months and for 12 months or longer asefidte indicated. There were no held-to-maturitpgges in a continuous unrealized loss
position as of December 31, 2013 or 2012.

December 31, 201

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or longer Total
Fair Unrealizec Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealizec
(Amounts in thousand Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. Agency securities $2818 $ (B4 $ — $ — $28,18¢ $ (59
Corporate securitie 10,54¢ (34 — — 10,54¢ (34
Total $3873 $ (89 $ — $ — $38,73¢ $ (89

As of December 31, 2014, there were 97 individealsities in an unrealized loss position, and tbembined depreciation in value
represented 3.21% of the investment securitiesgiortIndividual securities in an unrealized Iqessition as of December 31, 2014, included
82 securities in a continuous unrealized loss osfor 12 months or longer that the Company dagtsniend to sell, and that it has
determined is not more likely than not going taréguired to sell, prior to maturity or recovery. ésDecember 31, 2013, there were 219
individual securities in an unrealized loss positiand their combined depreciation in value represk5.06% of the available-for-sale
securities portfolio.

The following table presents the components ofGbmpany’s net loss or gain from the sale of seiegrin the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013 2012

Gross realized gains $ 2,257 $ 558 $ 728
Gross realized losst (3,642 (1549) (240
Net (loss) gain on sale of securit $(1,38%) $ 39¢ $ 48¢

The carrying value of available-for-sale securifiexiged to secure public deposits and other pepass $268.78 million as of
December 31, 2014, and $284.77 million as of Deegrfih, 2013.
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The Company reviews its investment portfolio qudytéor indications of OTTI. Debt securities notriedicially owned by the Company
include securities issued from the U.S. Departroétite Treasury (“Treasury”), municipal securitiaad single issue trust preferred
securities. For debt securities not beneficiallyned, the Company analyzes factors such as theityeared duration of the impairment,
adverse conditions within the issuing industry gpects for the issuer, performance of the secuttitgnges in rating by rating agencies, and
other qualitative factors to determine if the impant will be recovered. If the evaluation suggésts the impairment will not be recovered,
the Company calculates the present value of theriggto determine the amount of OTTI. The secuistyhen written down to its current
present value and the Company calculates and etloecamount of the loss due to credit factoraimiegs through noninterest income and
the amount due to other factors in stockholdersitgghrough OCI. The Company incurred no OTTI ajear related to debt securities not
beneficially owned in 2014 or 2013. Temporary innpeEnt on these securities is primarily relateditarges in interest rates, certain
disruptions in the credit markets, destabilizafiothe Eurozone, and other current economic factors

Debt securities beneficially owned by the Compamiysist of corporate securities and mortgage-baskedrities (“MBSs”). For debt
securities beneficially owned, the Company analyhesash flows for each applicable security t@dwine if an adverse change in cash
flows expected to be collected has occurred. Ifpttegected value of cash flows at the current répgrdate is less than the present value
previously projected, and less than the currenkb@due, an adverse change has occurred. The Cgontpam compares the current present
value of cash flows to the current net book vatuddtermine the credit-related portion of the OTlIHe credit-related OTTI is recorded in
earnings through noninterest income and any remginoncredit-related OTTI is recorded in stockhodtdequity through OCI. The Compa
incurred credit-related OTTI charges related totdeburities beneficially owned of $705 thousan20d4 and $320 thousand in 2013. These
charges were associated with a non-Agency MBSahatsold in November 2014.

The following table presents the activity for ctedilated losses recognized in earnings on debirisies where a portion of an OTTI was
recognized in OCI for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013 2012
Beginning balancé) $ 7,79¢ $7,47¢ $6,53¢
Additions for credit losses on securities previgusicognizec 708 32C 942
Reduction for securities sold/realized los (8,507%) — —
Ending balanc: $ — $7,79¢ $7,47¢

(1) The beginning balance includes credit related basgduded in OTTI charges recognized on debt siesiin prior periods

For equity securities, the Company considers temninto hold or sell the security before recovéing, severity and duration of the decline in
fair value of the security below its cost, the fin&l condition and near-term prospects of thedgsand whether the decline appears to be
related to issuer, general market, or industry ¢@rs to determine if the impairment will be reeogd. If the Company deems the
impairment other-than-temporary in nature, the ggcis written down to its current present valuglahe OTTI loss is charged to earnings.
The Company incurred OTTI charges related to eceturities of $32 thousand in 2014. The Compaayried no OTTI charges related to
equity securities in 2013.
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Note 4. Loans
Loan Portfolio

The Company’s loans held for investment are groupexdthree segments (commercial loans, consunaestate loans, and consumer and
other loans) with each segment divided into varidasses. Covered loans are defined as loans adquiFDIC-assisted transactions that are
covered by loss share agreements. The followinig fafesents loans, net of unearned income andgtisgated by class, as of the periods
indicated:

December 31

2014 2013
(Amounts in thousand Amount Percent Amount Percent
Non-covered loans held for investme
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other i $ 41,27: 248% $ 35,25¢ 2.06%
Commercial and industri 83,09¢ 4.92% 95,45¢ 5.5¢%
Multi-family residentia 97,48( 5.71% 70,19° 4.1%
Single family no-owner occupiet 135,17: 8.0(% 135,55¢ 7.92%
Non-farm, nor-residentia 473,90t 28.0% 475,91: 27.82%
Agricultural 1,59¢ 0.09% 2,32¢ 0.14%
Farmland 29,517 1.7%% 32,61« 1.91%
Total commercial loan 862,04 51.02% 847,31! 49.5%
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line: 110,95 6.57% 111,77( 6.52%
Single family owner occupie 485,47! 28.7% 496,01: 28.9%
Owner occupied constructic 32,79¢ 1.94% 28,70 1.68%
Total consumer real estate lo¢ 629,23: 37.25% 636,48! 37.2(%
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 69,347 4.1(% 71,31 4.17%
Other 6,55¢ 0.3%% 3,92¢ 0.25%
Total consumer and other loz 75,90z 4.4%% 75,23¢ 4.4(%
Total nor-covered loan 1,567,171 92.7¢% 1,559,03 91.19%
Total covered loan 122,24( 7.2(% 151,68: 8.8
Total loans held for investment, net of unearnedime $1,689,41 100.0(% $1,710,72 100.0(%
Loans held for sal $ 1,79 $ 88¢
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The following table presents the components ofGbmpany’s covered loan portfolio, disaggregatedlags, as of the dates indicated:

December 31
(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013
Covered loan

Commercial loan

Construction, development, and other ; $ 13,10( $ 15,86¢
Commercial and industrii 2,662 3,32t
Multi-family residentia 1,58¢ 1,93
Single family no-owner occupiet 5,91¢ 7,44¢
Non-farm, nor-residentia 25,317 34,64¢
Agricultural 43 164
Farmland 71€ 872
Total commercial loan 49,34( 64,25¢
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line: 60,39 69,20¢
Single family owner occupie 11,96¢ 16,91¢
Owner occupied constructic 45: 1,18¢
Total consumer real estate loz 72,81: 87,30¢
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 88 11¢€
Total covered loan $122,24( $151,68:

Customer overdrafts reclassified as loans totaled4bmillion as of December 31, 2014, and $1.42ionilas of December 31, 2013. Deferred
loan fees totaled $3.39 million in 2014, $3.16 ioillin 2013, and $2.36 million in 2012. For infortiod concerning off-balance sheet
financing, see Note 20, “Litigation, Commitmentsla@ontingencies,” to the Consolidated Financiate3teents of this report.

Purchased Credit Impaired Loal

Certain purchased loans are identified as impaireeh fair values are established at acquisitiors€PCI loans are aggregated into loan
pools that have common risk characteristics. The@my’s loan pools consist of Waccamaw commergi@ccamaw lines of credit, Peoples
commercial, Waccamaw serviced home equity lines;d&imaw residential, Peoples residential, and Waaeaconsumer. The Company
estimates cash flows to be collected on PCI loadsdéscounts those cash flows at a market ratetefdést. The following table presents the
carrying and contractual unpaid principal balancB®I loans, by acquisition, as of the dates indida

(Amounts in thousand Peoples Waccamaw Other Total

Carrying balance, January 1, 2012 $ — $ — $2,88¢ $ 2,88¢
Impaired loans acquire 32,60: 117,57. — 150,17!
Carrying balance, December 31, 2( 26,90° 112,09: 2,34( 141,34
Unpaid principal balance, December 31, 2 34,64+ 157,78: 5,91¢ 198,34:
Carrying balance, January 1, 2C $26,90" $112,09: $2,34( $141,34(
Carrying balance, December 31, 2( 9,19¢ 70,58¢ 1,931 81,71
Unpaid principal balance, December 31, 2 17,43: 105,67 5,39( 128,49t
Carrying balance, January 1, 2C $ 9,19¢ $ 70,58¢ $1,931 $ 81,71
Carrying balance, December 31, 2( 7,09( 53,83¢ 1,35¢ 62,28
Unpaid principal balance, December 31, 2 13,66¢ 86,64 1,401 101,71:
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The following table presents the activity in themtable yield related to PCI loans, by acquisitiarthe periods indicated:

(Amounts in thousand Peoples Waccamaw Other Total

Balance, January 1, 2012 $ — $ — $ 91¢ $ 91¢
Additions 3,40( 26,48! — 29,88:
Accretion (85€) (3,315 (1,089 (5,260)
Reclassifications from nonaccretable differe — — 18t 18t
Disposals (202) (1,280 — 1,48
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 2,342 $ 21,88¢ $ 15 $24,24:
Balance, January 1, 20 $ 2,342 $ 21,88¢ $ 15 $24,24:
Additions 14¢ 281 — 42¢
Accretion (1,840 (6,28¢) (119 (8,247
Reclassifications from (to) nonaccretable differe 6,15¢ (2,967 112 3,30(
Disposals (1,51)) (2,579 — 4,08t
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 5,294 $ 10,33¢ $ 8 $15,64(
Balance, January 1, 20. $ 5,29¢ $ 10,33¢ $ 8 $15,64(
Additions 267 26 — 29:
Accretion (2,147 (6,11¢) (37) (8,302)
Reclassifications from nonaccretable differe 1,912 16,40( 29 18,34:
Disposals (581) (1,59¢) — (2,179
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 4,74F $ 19,04¢ $ — $23,79:
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Note 5.  Credit Quality

The Company identifies loans for potential impaintarough a variety of means, including, but moiited to, ongoing loan review, renewal
processes, delinquency data, market communicatéospublic information. The Company generally dedmans impaired when it is
probable the Company will be unable to collecpailhcipal and interest amounts contractually duee following tables present the recorded
investment and related information for impairedneaexcluding PCI loans, as of the periods inditate

December 31, 201

Unpaid
Recorded Prin?:ipal Related Average Annual
(Amounts in thousand Investment Balance Allowance Recorded Investmen
Impaired loans with no related allowan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other I; $ — $ — $ — $ —
Commercial and industrii — — — 461
Multi-family residentia — — — —
Single family no-owner occupiet 46€ 46€ — 301
Non-farm, noi-residentia 5,70¢ 6,04¢ — 6,08:
Agricultural — — — —
Farmland — — — 181
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line! — — — 66
Single family owner occupie 3,391 3,49¢ — 2,50¢

Owner occupied constructic — — — —
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan — — — —
Total impaired loans with no related allowal 9,56¢ 10,00¢ — 9,60(
Impaired loans with a related allowan
Commercial loan

Construction, development, and other I $ — $ — $ — $ —
Commercial and industri — — — 2,19¢
Multi-family residentia — — — 4,19(
Single family no-owner occupiet 367 367 45 36¢
Non-farm, not-residentia 3,772 3,772 1,00(¢ 3,38¢
Agricultural — — — —
Farmlanc — — — —

Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line! — —
Single family owner occupie 2,341 2,512 437 3,891
Owner occupied constructic — — — —
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan — — — —

Total impaired loans with a related allowal 6,48( 6,651 1,482 14,09¢
Total impaired loan $ 16,04¢ $16,66( $ 1,48: $ 23,69¢
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(Amounts in thousand
Impaired loans with no related allowan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other li
Commercial and industrii
Multi-family residentia
Single family no-owner occupiet
Non-farm, nor-residentia
Agricultural
Farmland
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line!
Single family owner occupie
Owner occupied constructic
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan

Total impaired loans with no related allowal

Impaired loans with a related allowan
Commercial loan

Construction, development, and other li

Commercial and industri

Multi-family residentia

Single family no-owner occupiet

Non-farm, nor-residentia

Agricultural

Farmlanc
Consumer real estate loe

Home equity line!

Single family owner occupie

Owner occupied constructic
Consumer and other loa

Consumer loan

Total impaired loans with a related allowal
Total impaired loan
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December 31, 201

Recorded
Investment

29z

28¢
5,352

351

257
2,00¢

8,541

4,89

37t
60C

21E
4,84

10,93
$19,47¢

Unpaid
Principal Related
Balance Allowance
$ — $ —
29z —
317 —
5,682 —
363 —
264 —
2,414 —
9,332 —
$ — $ —
10,24« 3,79¢
37¢ 47
60C 114
23C 52
5,03t 73t
16,48« 4,742
$25,81¢ $ 4,742

Average Annual
Recorded Investmen

$ 3,85(
69¢

18

93¢

7,22¢

37C

454
2,15¢
15

3
15,72¢

$ 1,05
4,281

94

89z

1,49¢

304
4,49¢

12,62(
$ 28,34¢
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The following table presents interest income redphon impaired loans, excluding PCI loans, inghdods indicated:

(Amounts in thousand
Impaired loans with no related allowan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other li
Commercial and industrii
Multi-family residentia
Single family no-owner occupiet
Non-farm, nor-residentia
Agricultural
Farmland
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line!
Single family owner occupie
Owner occupied constructic
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan

Total impaired loans with no related allowal

Impaired loans with a related allowan
Commercial loan

Construction, development, and other li

Commercial and industri

Multi-family residentia

Single family no-owner occupiet

Non-farm, not-residentia

Agricultural

Farmlanc
Consumer real estate loe

Home equity line!

Single family owner occupie

Owner occupied constructic
Consumer and other loa

Consumer loan

Total impaired loans with a related allowal
Total impaired loan

The Company determined that two of the seven P&H fmools were impaired as of December 31, 2014peoed to four impaired pools as of

Year ended December 31
2014 2013 2012

$— $ 294 $ 3

17 17 17

— 3 4

8 99 56

96 29€ 102
11 12 —

2 25 28

73 70 112
R 5 R

207 821 322

— 117 1

47 18 94¢

23 7 3

2 3 80

31 29 317

1 12 1

48 54 102

152 24C 1,45¢

$35¢  $1,061  $1,77¢

December 31, 2013. No impairment was recognizeldam pools before 2013. The following tables présatance and interest income

related to the impaired loan pools as of the dated,in the periods, indicated:

December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2014

Recorded investment $14,60°
Unpaid principal balanc 31,16¢
Allowance for loan losse 58

95

2013
$52,03:
69,32(
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Year ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013 2012
Interest income recognized $ 3,081 $ 1,96¢ $—
Average recorded investme 30,00° 35,22( —

As part of the ongoing monitoring of the Comparlgan portfolio, management tracks certain cred#ligquindicators that include: trends
related to the risk rating of commercial loans, lthesl of classified commercial loans, net charffe;monperforming loans, and general
economic conditions. The Company’s loan review fiemcgenerally analyzes all commercial loan relagiuips greater than $4.0 million
annually and at various times during the year. 8&mabmmercial and retail loans are sampled foier@\during the year. Loan risk ratings
may be upgraded or downgraded to reflect currdatrimation identified during the loan review process

The Company uses a risk grading matrix to assigskagrade to each loan in its portfolio. The geheharacteristics of each risk grade are as
follows:

» Pass — This grade is assigned to loans with adudepteedit quality and risk. The Company furthegreents this grade based on
borrower characteristics that include capital gitenearnings stability, liquidity leverage, andustry conditions

» Special Mention — This grade is assigned to loaasrequire an above average degree of supenasidrattention. These loans have the
characteristics of an asset with acceptable coerility and risk; however, adverse economic orrfaial conditions exist that create
potential weaknesses deserving of management’s akbsntion. If potential weaknesses are not ctedgthe prospect of repayment
may worsen

» Substandard — This grade is assigned to loansi#ivat well defined weaknesses that may make paydedatlt, or principal exposure,
possible. In order to meet repayment terms, thesesl will likely be dependent on collateral liguida, secondary repayment sources,
or events outside the normal course of busir

» Doubtful —This grade is assigned to loans on nonaccrualsstihese loans have the weaknesses inherent itandasd loans; howevt
the weaknesses are so severe that collectionwdéition in full is extremely unlikely based on mnt facts, conditions, and values. [
to certain specific pending factors, the amouribs$ cannot yet be determint

e Loss — This grade is assigned to loans that wiltherged off or charged down when payments, inottie timing and value of
payments, are determined to be uncertain. Thisgriale does not imply that the asset has no reg@vesalvage value, but simply
means that it is not practical or desirable to defigting off, either all or a portion of, the lodralance even though partial recovery may
be realized in the futun

Losses on covered loans are generally reimburgghilee FDIC at the applicable loss share percen&@fé; therefore, covered loans are
disclosed separately in the following credit quatiiscussion. PCI loan pools are disaggregatedraniaded in their applicable loan class in
the following discussion. PCI loans are generatlyalassified as nonaccrual or nonperforming dugad¢oaccrual of interest income under the
accretion method of accounting.
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The following tables present loans held for investin by internal credit risk grade, as of the pdgimdicated:

December 31, 201

Special
(Amounts in thousand Pass Mention Substandarc Doubtful Loss Total
Non-covered loan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other I; $ 3885¢ $138 $ 102¢ $ — $— $ 41,27
Commercial and industri 81,19¢ 61€ 1,28i — — 83,09¢
Multi-family residentia 89,50: 7,001 97C — — 97,48(
Single family no-owner occupiet 126,15! 3,33: 5,68: — — 135,17:
Non-farm, nor-residentia 441,38! 13,02¢ 19,49: — — 473,90¢
Agricultural 1,58¢ — 10 — — 1,59¢
Farmland 26,87¢ 1,43 1,20¢ — — 29,517
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line! 107,68t 1,60¢ 1,66: — — 110,95
Single family owner occupie 454,83: 8,88¢ 21,75¢ — — 485,47!
Owner occupied constructic 32,55! — 24¢ — — 32,79¢
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 68,59: 52( 23t — — 69,347
Other 6,55k — — — — 6,55k
Total nor-covered loan 1,475,78. 37,81( 53,58¢ — — 1,567,17
Covered loan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other Ii 7,59¢ 3,22 2,27 — — 13,10(
Commercial and industri 2,52¢ 82 52 — — 2,66
Multi-family residentia 1,40(C — 184 — — 1,58¢
Single family no-owner occupiet 2,70z 2,05¢ 1,15¢ — — 5,91¢
Non-farm, nor-residentia 12,67: 4,347 8,30¢ — — 25,31°
Agricultural 43 — — — — 43
Farmland 42C — 29¢ — — 71¢€
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line! 21,29¢ 38,29¢ 80C — — 60,39
Single family owner occupie 7,09/ 2,04( 2,83¢ — — 11,96¢
Owner occupied constructic 84 264 10t — — 45%
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 88 — — — — 88
Other — — — — — —
Total covered loan 55,92¢ 50,30¢ 16,00¢ — — 122,24(
Total loans $1,531,700 $88,11¢ $ 6959: $ — $— $1,689,41
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(Amounts in thousand
Non-covered loan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other li
Commercial and industri
Multi-family residentia
Single family no-owner occupiet
Non-farm, nor-residentia
Agricultural
Farmland
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line!
Single family owner occupie
Owner occupied constructic
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan
Other
Total nor-covered loan
Covered loan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other li
Commercial and industri;
Multi-family residentia
Single family no-owner occupiet
Non-farm, nor-residentia
Agricultural
Farmland
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line!
Single family owner occupie
Owner occupied constructic
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan
Other
Total covered loan

Total loans

December 31, 201

Special

Pass Mention Substandarc Doubtful Loss Total
$ 30,71¢ $ 109 $ 3,13¢ $ 30 $— $ 35,25¢
87,58¢ 1,05¢ 2,91¢ 3,891 — 95,45¢
67,25 2,23i 70z — — 70,19
121,36 4,501 9,31¢ 37¢ — 135,55¢
440,33« 21,04¢ 14,50( 31 — 475,91
2,30¢ 8 10 — — 2,32¢
27,42: 1,721 3,472 — — 32,61+
107,41 1,35t 2,78¢ 21E — 111,77(
460,16¢ 8,17( 27,50° 16¢ — 496,01:
28,24: 261 20C — — 28,70:
69,97: 864 472 — 4 71,31
3,91¢ — 8 — — 3,92¢
1,446,70. 42,31 65,03t 4,98¢ 4 1,559,03!
9,72 1,37¢ 4,71¢ 51 — 15,86¢
2,86¢ 247 18¢ 24 — 3,32t
1,472 — 461 — — 1,93:
4,362 1,51¢ 1,552 16 — 7,44¢
13,07" 4,63( 16,90: 38 — 34,64¢
164 — — — — 164
572 — 301 — — 873
23,18¢ 44, 74¢ 1,26¢ 2 — 69,20¢
10,83: 14¢ 5,93¢ — — 16,91¢
19¢ — 98¢ — — 1,18¢
11¢ — — — — 11¢€
66,57 52,66¢ 32,31 131 — 151,68:
$1,513,27. $94,98° $ 97,347 $511¢ $ 4 $1,710,72
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The following table presents nonaccrual loansdaylclass, as of the dates indicated:

December 31

2014 2013
Non- Non-
(Amounts in thousand covered Coverec Total covered Coverec Total
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other I; $ — $ 18 $ 18 $1,187 $ 761 $ 1,94¢
Commercial and industrii 12: 34 157 5,341 92 5,43:
Multi-family residentia 24¢ — 24¢ — — —
Single family no-owner occupiet 601 77 67¢ 1,96¢ 222 2,18¢
Non-farm, noi-residentia 2,33¢ 1,317 3,651 2,68¢ — 2,68t
Agricultural 4 — 4 — — —
Farmland — — — 441 301 74z
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line: 792 204 99¢€ 765 232 997
Single family owner occupie 6,38¢ 682 7,071 6,561 1,55¢ 8,127
Owner occupied constructic — 10€ 10€ — 19C 19C
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 68 — 68 201 — 201
Other — — — — — —
Total 10,55¢ 2,43¢ 12,99« 19,15: 3,35: 22,50¢
Purchased impaired loa — — — 8 — 8
Total nonaccrual loar $10,55¢ $2,43¢  $12,99: $19,16. $3,35¢ $22,51¢
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The following tables present the aging of pastidaes, by loan class, as of the dates indicatedablitrual loans 30 days or more past due are
included in the applicable delinquency categoryer€hwere no non-covered accruing loans contragtpakt due 90 days or more as of
December 31, 2014, or December 31, 2013. There meeo®vered accruing loans contractually past duéa§'s or more as of December 31,
2014. Accruing loans contractually past due 90 daysore were $86 thousand as of December 31, 2@1i8h was attributed to covered
home equity lines.

December 31, 201

60-
89 Day:
30- 90+ Day:
59 Days Past Total Current Total
(Amounts in thousand Past Due Due Past Due Past Due Loans Loans
Non-covered loan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other i $ 39 $ 46 $ — $ 8% $ 41,18¢ $ 41,27
Commercial and industri 28t 6 10z 394 82,70t 83,09¢
Multi-family residentia 81 11C — 191 97,28 97,48(
Single family no-owner occupiet 914 513 42¢F 1,852 133,31¢ 135,17:
Non-farm, noi-residentia 1,07¢ 783 1,98¢ 3,84: 470,06: 473,90¢
Agricultural — — 4 4 1,59¢ 1,59¢
Farmland 89 — — 89 29,42¢ 29,517
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line: 492 103 571 1,16¢ 109,79: 110,95
Single family owner occupie 5,43¢ 1,931 4,56¢ 11,93: 473,54 485,47!
Owner occupied constructic — — — — 32,79¢ 32,79¢
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 544 84 26 654 68,69: 69,347
Other — — — — 6,55k 6,55k
Total nor-covered loan 8,95¢ 3,57¢ 7,671 20,20¢ 1,546,96: 1,567,17
Covered loan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other Ii 12C 17 — 137 12,96 13,10(
Commercial and industri 84 12 34 13C 2,532 2,667
Multi-family residentia — — — — 1,58¢ 1,58¢
Single family no-owner occupiet 122 — 77 19¢ 5,71¢ 5,91¢
Non-farm, nor-residentia 124 14C 1,25¢ 1,52 23,79t 25,31°
Agricultural — — — — 43 43
Farmland 3 — — 3 71z 71¢€
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line! 85¢ 31¢ 16¢ 1,34¢ 59,04 60,39
Single family owner occupie 134 34 41¢F 583 11,38t 11,96¢
Owner occupied constructic — — — — 45: 45%
Consumer and other loa —
Consumer loan — — — — 88 88
Other — — — — — —
Total covered loan 1,44F 521 1,952 3,91¢ 118,32: 122,24(
Total loans $10,40( $4,097 $9,62¢ $24,12¢ $1,665,29! $1,689,41!
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December 31, 201

60-
89 Day:
30-
59 Days Past 90+ Days Total Current Total
(Amounts in thousand Past Due Due Past Due Past Due Loans Loans
Non-covered loan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other i $ 11¢ $ 10 $ 532 $ 66C $ 34,59 $ 35,25¢
Commercial and industri 93 39 2,631 2,76: 92,69: 95,45¢
Multi-family residentia 11t — — 11t 70,08: 70,19:
Single family no-owner occupiet 611 554 1,20: 2,36¢ 133,19: 135,55¢
Non-farm, noi-residentia 1,01« 31¢ 1,77( 3,10z 472,80¢ 475,91:
Agricultural — — — — 2,32¢ 2,32¢
Farmland 24~ — — 24t 32,36¢ 32,61«
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line: 28¢ 317 447 1,04¢ 110,72: 111,77(
Single family owner occupie 7,42¢ 1,22¢ 14t 8,801 487,21: 496,01.
Owner occupied constructic 20% — 2,28¢ 2,48¢ 26,21« 28,70:
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 811 86 10t 1,00z 70,31: 71,31
Other — — — — 3,92¢ 3,92¢
Total nor-covered loan 10,92¢ 2,552 9,112 22,59: 1,536,44 1,559,03!
Covered loan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other I 47¢ — 452 93z 14,93: 15,86¢
Commercial and industri 5 44 92 141 3,18¢ 3,32¢
Multi-family residentia — — — — 1,93: 1,93:
Single family no-owner occupiet — — 184 184 7,265 7,44¢
Non-farm, nor-residentia 20¢ — — 20¢ 34,43° 34,64¢
Agricultural — — — — 164 164
Farmland — — 301 301 57z 872
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line! 48¢ 86 163 737 68,46¢ 69,20t
Single family owner occupie 197 12C 1,46¢€ 1,78: 15,13¢ 16,91¢
Owner occupied constructic — — 19C 19C 994 1,18¢
Consumer and other loa —
Consumer loan — — — — 11¢€ 11¢€
Other — — — — — —
Total covered loan 1,37¢ 25C 2,84¢ 4,477 147,20! 151,68:
Total loans $12,30" $2,80: $11,96: $27,07( $1,683,65 $1,710,72.

The Company may make concessions in interest lasterms and/or amortization terms when regtrigg loans for borrowers
experiencing financial difficulty. All restructurddans to borrowers experiencing financial diffiguh excess of $250 thousand are evaluated
for a specific reserve based on either the coliatarnet present value method, whichever is mpgligable. Specific reserves in the
allowance for loan losses attributed to TDRs tat&l475 thousand as of December 31, 2014, and $1il8dn as of December 31, 2013.
Restructured loans under $250 thousand are subj#ut reserve calculation at the historical l@de for classified loans. Certain TDRs are
classified as nonperforming at the time of restrtingy and are returned to performing status aftem®nths of satisfactory payment
performance; however, these loans remain identégetnpaired until full payment or other satisfantdf the obligation occurs. The Compi
recognized interest income on TDRs of $597 thousaz®14, $551 thousand in 2013, and $640 thousagd12.
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Loans acquired with credit deterioration, with aadiunt, are generally not considered a TDR as ésithe loan remains in the assigned loan
pool. There were no covered loans recorded as Td3Ré December 31, 2014 or 2013. The followingdaivesents loans modified as TDRs,
by loan class, segregated by accrual status, the afates indicated:

December 31

2014 2013
Nonaccrual Nonaccrual
(Amounts in thousand @) Accruing Total @) Accruing Total
Commercial loan
Commercial and industrii $ — $ — $ — $ 1,11¢ $ — $1,11¢
Single family no-owner occupiet — 1,08¢ 1,08¢ 37t — 37E
Non-farm, nor-residentia 83 4,74% 4,82¢ 12¢ 5,49( 5,61¢
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line! — 47 47 15¢ 51 21C
Single family owner occupie 471 8,41 8,88: 427 6,67( 7,09:¢
Owner occupied constructic — 244 244 — — —
Total TDRs $ 554 $14,53¢ $15,08¢ $ 2,20( $12,21: $14,41:
(1) TDRs on nonaccrual status are included in the taiahccrual loan balance disclosed in the tableal
The following table presents TDRs, by type of casien made and loan class, restructured duringeheds indicated. The post-
modification recorded investment represents the lilance immediately after modification.
Year Ended December 31
2014 2013
Pre- Pos*- Pre- Pos*-
Modification Modification Modification Modification
Total Recorded Recorded Total Recorded Recorded
(Amounts in thousand Contracts Investment Investment Contracts Investment Investment
Below market interest ra
Single family owner occupie 4 $ 1,85C $ 1,85(C 2 $ 601 $ 557
Owner occupied constructic 1 24k 24k — —
Total 5 2,09t 2,09t 2 601 557
Extended payment ter
Single family no-owner occupiet 1 46¢ 46¢ — —
Non-farm, nor-residentia 1 302 302 — — —
Total 2 771 771 — — —
Below market interest rate and extended
payment tern
Single family no-owner occupiet 1 25E 25E 1 37¢ 32¢
Non-farm, nor-residentia — — — 1 511 511
Single family owner occupie 5 487 487 4 80¢ 757
Total 6 742 742 6 1,69¢ 1,59¢
Total 13 $ 3,60¢ $ 3,60¢ 8 $  2,29¢ $ 2,15:
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The following table presents TDRs, by loan classtructured within the previous 12 months for whioére was a payment default during the
years indicatec

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013
Total Recorded Total Recorded
(Amounts in thousand Contracts Investment Contracts Investment
Single family non-owner occupied — $ — 1 $ 37t
Single family owner occupie — — 1 35¢
Total — $ — 2 $ 734

Note 6. Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is maintained avel lmanagement deems adequate to absorb probabléoleses inherent in the loan
portfolio. The allowance is increased by provisicharged to operations and reduced by net chafgeMhile management uses its best
judgment and information available, the ultimate@ahcy of the allowance is dependent on a variefigators that may be beyond t
Company'’s control: the performance of the Compsahyan portfolio, the economy, changes in interaiss, the view of regulatory authorit
towards loan classifications, and other factoresehuncertainties may result in a material changleet allowance for loan losses in the near
term; however, the amount of the change cannobnednly be estimated.

The Company’s allowance is comprised of specifserees related to loans individually evaluatediuding credit relationships, and general
reserves related to loans not individually evalddtat are segmented into groups with similar ciséiracteristics, based on an internal risk
grading matrix. General reserve allocations areth@a®m management’s judgments of qualitative andtifative factors about macro and
micro economic conditions reflected within the Iqeortfolio and the economy. For loans acquired lousiness combination, loans identified
as credit impaired at the acquisition date are gedunto pools and evaluated separately from tmeR1©I portfolio. The Company has
aggregated PCI loans into the following pools: Wamaw commercial, Waccamaw lines of credit, Peopb@smercial, Waccamaw serviced
home equity lines, Waccamaw residential, Peoplgisieatial, and Waccamaw consumer. Provisions catledlfor PCI loans are offset by an
adjustment to the FDIC indemnification asset téefthe indemnified portion, 80%, of the post-asiion exposure. While allocations are
made to various portfolio segments, the allowancdédan losses, excluding reserves allocated toifsipéoans and PCI loan pools, is
available for use against any loan loss managedearths appropriate. As of December 31, 2014, managdmelieved the allowance was
adequate to absorb probable loan losses inherdme ilwan portfolio.
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(Amounts in thousand

Balance, January 1, 2012

Provision for loan losses charged to operat
Chargeoffs

Recoveries

Net charg-offs

Balance, December 31, 20

Balance, January 1, 20.

Provision for loan losse

Benefit attributable to the FDIC indemnificatiorsat

Provision for loan losses charged to operat

Provision for loan losses recorded through the FDIC
indemnification asse

Chargeoffs

Recoveries

Net charg-offs

Balance, December 31, 20

Balance, January 1, 20.

Removal of loans transferrt

Provision for loan losse

Benefit attributable to the FDIC indemnificatiorsat

Provision for loan losses charged to operat

Provision for loan losses recorded through the FDIC
indemnification asse

Chargeoffs

Recoveries

Net charg-offs

Balance, December 31, 20

104

Allowance Excluding

PCI Loans
$ 26,00¢
5,871
(7,509
1,391
(6,119
$ 25,76:
7,912

7,91z

(12,527

2,17¢

(10,35:)

$ 233
$ 23,32:
(682)

42¢

42(

(6,48))
3,59(

(2,891)
$ 20,16¢

The following table presents the aggregate actimitthe allowance for loan losses in the periodsciated:

Allowance for
PCI Loans
$ 201

(199

$ 8
$ 8
747

(457)

29€

451

$ 75E
$ 75E
(697)

422

(275)

(422)

$ 58

Total
Allowance

$ 26,20
5,67¢
(7,509)
1,397
(6,115

$ 25,77
$ 25,77(
8,65¢
(451)
8,20¢

451
(12,527
2,17¢
(10,35;)
$ 24,07
$ 24,07
(682)
(277)
427

14£

(422)
(6,48))
3,59(

(2,891)
$ 20,22;
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The following table presents the components ofitterity in the allowance for loan losses, exclgdi?Cl loans, by loan segment, in the
periods indicated:

Consumel
Consumer

(Amounts in thousand Commercial Real Estat¢ and Other Total

Balance, January 1, 2012 $ 17,55: $ 7,711 $ 74z $ 26,00
Provision for loan losses charged to operat 2,89¢ 2,60¢ 367 5,871
Loans charged o (3,819 (2,702) (98¢) (7,509
Recoveries credited to allowan 62€ 28¢ 47€ 1,391
Net charg-offs (3,189 (2,419 (512 (6,119
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 17,25¢ $ 7,90¢ $ 597 $ 25,76
Balance, January 1, 20. $ 17,25¢ $ 7,90¢ $ 597 $ 25,76
Provision for loan losses charged to operat 5,64: 1,36¢ 90t 7,912
Loans charged o (7,749 (3,119 (1,669) (12,529
Recoveries credited to allowan 931 442 80z 2,17t
Net charg-offs (6,817) (2,679 867 (10,357
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 16,09( $ 6,597 $ 63F $ 23,32:
Balance, January 1, 20. $ 16,09( $ 6,591 $ 63¢ $ 23,32:
Removal of loans transferrt (41¢) (249 (20 (682)
(Recovery of) provision for loan losses chargedgerations (1,98¢) 1,27: 1,13¢ 42(
Loans charged o (2,929 (1,879 (1,680 (6,487
Recoveries credited to allowan 2,25¢ 73€ 60C 3,59(
Net charg-offs (679 (1,137) 1,08( 2,891
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 13,01( $ 6,48¢ $ 67C $ 20,16¢

The following table presents the components ofitterity in the allowance for loan losses for P@ais, by loan segment, in the periods
indicated:

Consumel
Consumer

(Amounts in thousand Commercial Real Estat¢ and Other Total
Balance, January 1, 2012 $ 201 $ — $ — $ 201
Provision for loan losses charged to operat (193 — — (193
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 8 $ — $ — $ 8
Balance, January 1, 20 $ 8 $ — $ — $ 8
Purchased impaired provisit 69 67¢ — 747
Benefit attributable to FDIC indemnificaton as (55 (396) — 451
Provision for loan losses charged to operat 14 282 — 29¢
Provision for loan losses recorded through the FDIC

indemnificaton asse 58 39¢ — 451
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 77 $ 67¢ $ — $ 75t
Balance, January 1, 20. $ 77 $ 67¢ $ — $ 75E
Purchased impaired provisit (40 (657) — (697)
Benefit attributable to FDIC indemnificaton as 26 39¢€ — 422
Recovery of loan losses charged to operat (14) (261) — (27%
Recovery of loan losses recorded through the FDIC

indemnificaton asse (26) (396) — 422
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 37 $ 21 $ — $ 58
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The following tables present the Company’s alloveafur loan losses and recorded investment in leax@duding PCI loans, by loan class, as

of the dates indicated:

(Amounts in thousand
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other li
Commercial and industri;
Multi-family residentia
Single family no-owner occupiet
Non-farm, nor-residentia
Agricultural
Farmland
Total commercial loan
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line!
Single family owner occupie
Owner occupied constructic
Total consumer real estate lo¢
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan
Other
Total consumer and other loa

Total loans, excluding PCI loal

(Amounts in thousand
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other Ii
Commercial and industrii
Multi-family residentia
Single family no-owner occupiet
Non-farm, nor-residentia
Agricultural
Farmland
Total commercial loan
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line!
Single family owner occupie
Owner occupied constructic
Total consumer real estate lo¢
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan
Other
Total consumer and other loa

Total loans, excluding PCI loa

December 31, 201.

Loans Allowance for Loans Allowance for
Individually Collectively
Evaluated for Evaluated for
Loans Loans
Individually Collectively
Impairment Evaluated Impairment Evaluated
$ — $ — $ 51,60¢ $ 1,151
— — 85,35 69C
— — 98,88( 1,917
83: 45 135,22: 3,18:
9,477 1,00( 475,35: 4,80t
— — 1,642 13
— — 30,23 20€
10,31( 1,04t 878,29: 11,96¢
— — 134,00t 1,33(
5,73¢ 437 489,82( 4,49¢
— — 32,98 224
5,73¢ 437 656,80¢ 6,052
— — 69,42¢ 67C
— — 6,55¢ —
— — 75,98« 67C
$ 16,04¢ $ 1,482 $1,611,08! $ 18,68
December 31, 201.
Loans Allowance for Loans Allowance for
Individually Collectively
Evaluated for Evaluated for
Loans Loans
Individually Collectively
Impairment Evaluated Impairment Evaluated
$ — $ — $ 46,40 $ 1,141
5,18¢ 3,794 92,61: 1,421
— — 71,66¢ 1,211
664 47 136,56 3,50z
5,952 114 483,12¢ 4,53¢
— — 2,48¢ 23
351 — 33,13¢ 301
12,15¢ 3,95¢ 866,00: 12,13¢
472 52 136,89¢ 1,30¢
6,85( 73t 502,22¢ 4,29
— — 29,09( 20€
7,322 787 668,21! 5,81(
— — 71,38¢ 63E
— — 3,92¢ —
— — 75,31¢ 63E
$ 19,47¢ $ 4,742 $1,609,53; $ 18,58(
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The Company aggregates PCI loans into the folloeag pools: Waccamaw commercial, Waccamaw linesedit, Peoples commercial,
Waccamaw serviced home equity lines, Waccamawegtal, Peoples residential, and Waccamaw consurherfollowing table presents 1
Company’s allowance for loan losses and recordeeksiment in PCI loans, by loan pool, as of theslatdicated:

December 31

2014 2013
Allowance for Allowance for
Loan Pools With Loans Pools Loan Pools Loans Pools
With With With
(Amounts in thousand Impairment Impairment Impairment Impairment
Commercial loan
Waccamaw commercii $ 13,39: $ 37 $ 19,85 $ —
Waccamaw lines of crec 461 — 2,59/ 69
Peoples commercii 5,87¢ — 7,86% —
Other 1,35¢ — 1,931 8
Total commercial loan 21,08¢ 37 32,23¢ 77
Consumer real estate loz
Waccamaw serviced home equity lir 37,34 — 43,60¢ 277
Waccamaw residenti 2,63¢ — 4,497 217
Peoples residenti 1,21t 21 1,33¢ 184
Total consumer real estate lo¢ 41,19¢ 21 49,43¢ 67€
Consumer and other loa
Waccamaw consumi 2 — 34 —
Total loans $ 62,28: $ 58 $ 81,71 $ 75E

Note 7. FDIC Indemnification Asset

The Company entered into loss share agreementgha@thDIC in 2012 in connection with the FDIC-atsilsacquisition of Waccamaw. The
FDIC agreed to cover 80% of most loan and foreclasal estate losses under the loss share agreer@entain expenses incurred in relation
to these covered assets are reimbursable by thé.FBtimated reimbursements are netted againgipense on covered assets in the
Companys consolidated statements of income. The folloviédde presents activity in the FDIC indemnificatesset in the periods indicat

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013

Beginning balance $34,69: $ 48,14¢
(Decrease) increase in estimated losses on coleand (422) 451
Increase in estimated losses on covered O 1,851 4,42¢
Reimbursable expenses from the FI 527 1,57¢
Net amortizatior (3,979 (5,597%)
Reimbursements from the FD (4,769 (14,31)
Ending balanci $27,90( $ 34,69:
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Note 8.  Premises, Equipment, and Leases
Premises and Equipme
The following table presents the components of jgesand equipment as of the dates indicated:

December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013
Land $ 19,16¢ $ 19,88¢
Buildings and leasehold improveme 50,72¢ 54,29:
Equipment 38,10 36,98:
107,99t 111,15¢
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat 52,15¢ 50,04:
Total premises and equipment, $ 55,84« $ 61,11¢

Certain long-term investments in land and buildingse evaluated for impairment resulting in writ@aghs totaling $935 thousand in 2014
and $1.52 million in 2013. Depreciation and amaitian expense was $4.41 million in 2014, $4.67iorilin 2013, and $4.03 million in 201

Leases

The Company enters into various noncancelable tipgrieases. The following schedule presents futtirimum lease payments required
under noncancelable operating leases, with irgtiagmaining terms in excess of one year, by yesaof December 31, 2014:

(Amounts in thousand

2015 $ 67E
2016 55€
2017 567
2018 511
2019 34¢
2020 and thereaftt 3,04¢

$5,70:

Lease expense was $1.06 million in 2014, $1.18aoniih 2013, and $1.26 million in 2012. Certain s of the Company’s leases have
been sublet to third parties for properties notentty being used by the Company. The followingestiie presents future minimum lease
payments to be received under noncancelable s@sleagh initial or remaining terms in excess oégm®ar, by year, as of December 31,
2014:

(Amounts in thousand

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020 and thereaftt

©#
IR
~l

&
[EnY
~
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Note 9.  Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
Goodwill

Gooduwill represents the excess of the purchase prier the fair value of net assets acquired. Gdbidvallocated to the appropriate
reporting unit when acquired, if applicable. Bef@f9, the cash consideration for meeting certperating targets, under the agreement
terms, was added to goodwill when paid. Beginnm8009, the estimated future value of the cashidersion is recognized as goodwill at
the acquisition date. As of December 31, 2014 gtheas no remaining potential cash consideratidretpaid in connection with acquisitions
that occurred before 2009.

The Company analyzed the carrying value of goodasilbf October 31, 2014, and determined that naiiment charge was necessary.
Additionally, the Company evaluated the impactha sale of branches to CresCom and concluded ¢thatpairment charge was necessary.
The analysis performed for 2014 indicated no gotidmpairment at either reporting unit.

The following table presents the activity in gooliivdy reporting unit, in the periods indicated:

Community Insurance

(Amounts in thousand Banking Services Total

Beginning balance, January 1, 2012 $ 75,59¢ $ 7,457 $ 83,05¢
Acquisitions and dispositions, n 21,11¢ — 21,11¢
Cash consideration pa — 692 692
Ending balance, December 31, 2( $ 96,71, $ 8,14¢ $104,86!
Beginning balance, January 1, 2( $ 96,71, $ 8,14¢ $104,86(
Acquisitions and dispositions, n (17€) 324 14¢
Cash consideration pa — 441 441
Ending balance, December 31, 2( $ 96,54: $ 8,91« $105,45!
Beginning balance, January 1, 2( $ 96,54: $ 8,914 $105,45!
Acquisitions and dispositions, n (6,454 — (6,459
Cash consideration pa 1,36¢ 358 1,721
Ending balance, December 31, 2( $ 91,45t $ 9,267 $100,72:
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Other Intangible Assets

The Company’s intangible assets also include cepmsit and other identifiable intangible assetgeCGleposit intangible assets are amortized
over their estimated useful lives that range froto I1 years. As of December 31, 2014, the remgilives of core deposit intangible assets
ranged from 1 to 11 years, and the weighted avarmaining life was 9 years. Other identifiableaimgible assets consist primarily of the
value assigned to contractual rights arising frosurance agency acquisitions. Other identifiabignigible assets are amortized using the
straight-line method. The following table presethis components of other intangible assets, by tigygounit, as of the dates indicated:

December 31

2014 2013
Community Insurance Community Insurance
(Amounts in thousand Banking Services Total Banking Services Total
Core deposit intangibles $ 1228: $ — $1228: $ 794 $ — $ 7,94(
Accumulated amortizatio (7,149 — (7,149 (6,669 — (6,669
Core deposit intangibles, n 5,13¢ — 5,13¢ 1,271 — 1,271
Other identifiable intangible 53t 3,711 4,24¢ 53t 3,711 4,24¢
Accumulated amortizatio (437) (2,527) (2,959 (410 (2,247) (2,65))
Other identifiable intangibles, n 98 1,18¢ 1,287 12t 1,47(C 1,59¢
Total other intangible assets, I $ 5232 $1,18¢ $6,421 $ 1,39% $1,47C $2,86¢

Amortization expense for other intangible assets 87 thousand in 2014, $729 thousand in 2013$884d thousand in 2012. The
following schedule presents the estimated amortizaxpense for intangible assets, by year, asecebhber 31, 2014:

(Amounts in thousand

2015 $1,11¢
2016 1,04(
2017 82¢
2018 631
2019 444
2020 and thereaftt 2,11¢

$6,17

Note 10. Deposits
The following table presents the components of depas of the dates indicated:

December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013
Noninteres-bearing demand deposits $ 417,72 $ 339,68
Interes-bearing deposit:
Interes-bearing demand depos 353,87 361,82:
Money market accoun 225,19¢ 237,84!
Savings deposil 300,28: 286,16!
Certificates of depos 557,35 606,17¢
Individual retirement accoun 146,32t 119,05:
Total interes-bearing deposit 1,583,03 1,611,06.
Total deposit: $2,000,75! $1,950,74;
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The following schedule presents the contractuabnitas of time deposits as of December 31, 2014:

(Amounts in thousand

2015 $467,76¢
2016 96,657
2017 49,64
2018 35,08¢
2019 44 ,10¢
2020 and thereaftt 10,41¢

$703,67¢

Time deposits of $250 thousand or more totaled2i6fillion as of December 31, 2014, and $40.82iomlbs of December 31, 2013. The
following schedule presents the contractual magsiof time deposits of $250 thousand or more @&egember 31, 2014:

(Amounts in thousand

Three months or les $11,27¢
Over three through six mont 14,77
Over six through twelve monti 19,34
Over twelve month 14,87:

$60,26¢

Note 11. Borrowings
The following table presents the composition ofrbatings as of the dates indicated:

December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013
Federal funds purchased $ — $ 16,00(
Securities sold under agreements to repurct

Retall 71,74: 68,30¢

Wholesale 50,00( 50,00(
Total securities sold under agreements to repuec 121,74. 118,30¢
FHLB advance: 90,00( 150,00(
Subordinated det 15,46 15,46/
Other deb 2,63t 624
Total borrowings $229,74: $300,39¢

Short-term borrowings consist of federal funds pased and retail repurchase agreements, whicly@oally collateralized with agency
MBSs. There were no federal funds purchased ouistgras of December 31, 2014. The weighted avei@geof federal funds purchased
0.36% as of December 31, 2013. The weighted aveedgef retail repurchase agreements was 0.138bBscember 31, 2014, and 0.38¥%
of December 31, 2013. Included in other borrowiisgsn outstanding balance of $2.00 million on a.8@3nillion unsecured, committed line
of credit with an unrelated financial institutiorhe line of credit carried an interest rate of omeath LIBOR plus 2.00% and matures in April
2015.
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Long-term borrowings consist of wholesale repuretagreements; FHLB borrowings, including conveetidhd callable advances; and other
obligations. The weighted average contractual siteholesale repurchase agreements was 3.71%Rsoaimber 31, 2014, and

December 31, 2013. The weighted average contraciteabf FHLB borrowings was 4.07% as of Decemtier2®14, and 4.12% as of
December 31, 2013. The following schedule prestaisteontractual maturities of wholesale repurclzgeements and FHLB borrowings, by
year, as of December 31, 20:

Wholesale
Repurchase
FHLB

(Amounts in thousand Agreements Borrowings Total
2015 $ — $ — s —
2016 25,00( — 25,00(
2017 — 40,00( 40,00(
2018 — — —
2019 25,00( — 25,00(
2020 and thereaftt — 50,00( 50,00(

$ 50,00( $ 90,00( $140,00(
Weighted average maturity (in yea 3.0¢ 4.3¢ —

The FHLB may redeem callable advances at quaritetidyvals after various lockout periods, which ebslibstantially shorten the lives of the
advances. If called, the advance may be paid Irofudonverted into another FHLB credit productepayment of an advance may result in
substantial penalties based on the differentiakeen the contractual note and current advancdaat@milar maturities. In 2014, the
Company prepaid a $50 million FHLB convertible age bearing an interest rate of 4.21% that wasdsgbe to mature in 2017 and prepaid
$10 million of a $50 million FHLB convertible adves bearing an interest rate of 4.15% that is sdeddo mature in 2017. Prepayment
penalties associated with the $60 million in FHLEbtrepayments in 2014 totaled $5.01 million. 1420he Company prepaid $8.15 million
in wholesale repurchase agreements and $11.4omifliFHLB borrowings, both of which were assumethie Waccamaw acquisition,
resulting in a $296 thousand gain.

The Company is required to pledge qualifying cellat to secure FHLB advances and letters of crédibf December 31, 2014, the
Company held two FHLB letters of credit to collaiéze public unit deposits totaling $6.18 millidfHHLB borrowings were secured by
qualifying loans that totaled $981 thousand asetddnber 31, 2014, and $1.13 billion as of DecerBheP013. Unused borrowing capacity
with the FHLB, net of FHLB letters of credit, total $409.19 million as of December 31, 2014.

Subordinated debt consists of Company-issued juguibordinated debentures (“Debentures”). The Copyssued Debentures totaling
$15.46 million to the Trust in October 2003 withiaterest rate of three-month London InterBank @fteRate (“LIBOR”) plus 2.95%. The
Trust was able to purchase the Debentures thrdwglssuance of trust preferred securities, whichdubstantially identical terms as the
Debentures. The Debentures mature on October 8, 208l are callable quarterly. Net proceeds froaofifiering were contributed as capital
to the Bank to support further growth. The Comparopligations under the Debentures and other reteMaist agreements, in aggregate,
constitute a full and unconditional guarantee ly@ompany of the Trust's obligations. The prefegedurities issued by the Trust are not
included in the Company’s consolidated balancetshbewever, these securities qualify as Tier dtabhfor regulatory purposes, subject to
guidelines issued by the Board of Governors offtbderal Reserve System (“Federal Reserve”). TherkReserve’s quantitative limits did
not prevent the Company from including all $15.4i6iom in trust preferred securities outstandingTier 1 capital as of December 31, 2014,
and December 31, 2013.
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Note 12. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activiies

The Company primarily uses derivative instrumeatprbtect against the risk of adverse price or@gerate movements on the value of
certain assets and liabilities and on future céshd. Derivative instruments represent contractsben parties that usually require little or no
initial net investment and result in one party deling cash or another asset to the other parggydbas a notional amount and an underlying
asset as specified in the contract. These deravatistruments may consist of interest rate swapstd, caps, collars, futures, forward
contracts, and written and purchased options. R8vig instruments are subject to counterparty tresk due to the possibility that the
Company will incur a loss because a counterpartyclivmay be a bank, a brokdealer or a customer, fails to meet its contraabéfations
This risk is measured as the expected positiveacephent value of contracts. Derivative contractg beaexecuted only with exchanges or
counterparties approved by the Company’s Assetilitiavlanagement Committee.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company’s derivatinstruments consisted of IRLCs, forward sale loanmitments, and interest rate swaps.
Generally, derivative instruments help the Compaiayage exposure to market risk and meet customgnding needs. Market risk
represents the possibility that economic valueatiimerest income will be adversely affected lugtiliations in external factors such as
interest rates, market-driven loan rates, pricestlter economic factors.

IRLCs and forward sale loan commitme. In the normal course of business, the Compamgreimto IRLCs with customers on mortgage
loans intended to be sold in the secondary marigttammitments to sell those originated mortgagado The Company enters into IRLC:
provide potential borrowers an interest rate guaearOnce a mortgage loan is closed and fundedinitluded within loans held for sale and
awaits sale and delivery into the secondary maFkein the date we issue the commitment througlid#te of sale into the secondary market,
the Company has exposure to interest rate moverasuiting from the risk that interest rates wilbolge from the rate quoted to the borro
Due to these interest rate fluctuations, the Comsaralance of mortgage loans held for sale isextttip changes in fair value. Typically, the
fair value of these loans declines when interdssrese and increase when interest rates dedlmefair values of the Company’s IRLCs and
forward sale loan commitments are recorded aw/lire as a component of other assets and othditiésbin the consolidated balance sheets.
These derivatives do not qualify as hedging instmts; therefore, changes in fair value are recontedrnings.

Interest rate swap. The Company uses interest rate swap contrac®tlify its exposure to interest rate risk causedhmnges in the LIBO
curve in relation to certain designated fixed tans. These instruments are used to convert theskrate loans to an effective floating rate.
If the LIBOR rate falls below the loan’s stateddikrate for a given period, the Company will owe flibating rate payer the notional amount
times the difference between LIBOR and the statestifrate. If LIBOR is above the stated rate fgiven period, the Company will receive
payments based on the notional amount times tifereiifce between LIBOR and the stated fixed rate. Gbmpany’s interest rate swaps
qualify as fair value hedging instruments; therefahanges in the fair value of the derivative afitthe hedged item attributable to the hed
risk are recognized in earnings in the same period.

The Company entered into a fifteen-year, $4.37ionilhotional interest rate swap agreement in Febr2@14 and a ten-year, $3.50 million
notional interest rate swap agreement in Octob&B20he swap agreements, which are accounted fairasalue hedges, and the loans
hedged by the agreements are recorded at fair.vBhgeloan hedged by the October 2013 swap paith@®14. The remaining fair value
hedge was effective as of December 31, 2014.
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The following table presents the aggregate contedcir notional amounts, as well as the fair valfethe Company’s derivative instruments
as of the dates indicated:

December 31

2014 2013
Notional or Notional or
Contractual Derivative Derivative Contractual Derivative Derivative
(Amounts in thousand Amount Assets Liabilities Amount Assets Liabilities
Derivatives designated as hedc
Interest rate sway $ 4,36: $ — $ 20¢ $ 3,45¢ $ 43 $ —
Derivatives not designated as hed
IRLCs 1,391 5 — 3,671 — 41
Forward sale loan commitmer 3,18:¢ — 5 4,56( 41 —
Total derivatives not designated as hec 4.57¢ 5 5 8,231 41 41
Total derivatives $ 8,937 $ 5 $ 214 $ 11,69( $ 84 $ 4

The following table presents the effect of the Camys derivative and hedging activity, if applicapbn the statement of income in the
periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand Income Statement Locatiol 2014 2013 2012
Derivatives designated as hedc

Interest rate sway Other incom $— $— $—
Derivatives not designated as hed

IRLCs Other incom — (169) —

Forward sale loan commitmer Other incom — 41 —
Total derivatives not designated as hec — (129§) —
Total derivatives $— $(12€) $—

Note 13. Employee Benefit Plans
Employee Stock Ownership and Savings Plan

The Company maintains the Employee Stock OwnemshipSavings Plan (“KSOP”). Coverage under the gamovided to all employees
who meet minimum eligibility requirements. The KS@&d 457,765 shares of the Company’s common steak December 31, 2014,
499,075 shares as of December 31, 2013, and 564t&6és as of December 31, 2012.

Employer Stock Fun

The Company made annual contributions to the seature within the KSOP at the discretion of theaRbof Directors until December 31,
2006, when the plan was frozen to future contringi Substantially all plan assets are investeéddrCompany’s common stock. All KSOP
contributions beginning in 2007 have been madeeemployee savings feature of the plan.
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Employee Savings Ple

The Company provides a 401(k) savings feature withé KSOP. The Company makes matching contribsitioremployee deferrals at levels
determined by the Board of Directors annually. Matg contributions are made in the first quartdiofeing each plan year, and employees
must be employed on the last day of the plan yeheteligible to receive the matching contributi®he cost of the Company’s 100%
matching contributions to qualified deferrals unther 401(k) savings component of the KSOP was $hiibn in 2014, $1.61 million in
2013, and $1.27 million in 2012. Matching contribas for the 2014 and 2013 plans were made in eaghmatching contributions for the
2012 plan was made in a combination of cash an@€tmepany’s common stock.

Employee Welfare Plan

The Company provides various medical, dental, wigiife, accidental death and dismemberment, ang-term disability insurance benefits
to all full-time employees who elect coverage urnties program. A third-party administrator manatieshealth plan. Monthly employer and
employee contributions are made to a tax-exempl@rap benefits trust where the third-party admiatstr processes and pays claims. As of
December 31, 2014, stop-loss insurance coveragiedinthe Company’s risk of loss to $125 thousandrfdividual claims and $4.06 million
aggregate claims. Expenses related to the heathvptre $2.88 million in 2014, $3.02 million in Z)&nd $2.25 million in 2012.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company maintains deferred compensation agmsmath certain current and former officers theayide benefit payments, over
various periods, commencing at retirement or defsthrued benefits totaled $451 thousand as of Deeerdl, 2014, and $455 thousand &
December 31, 2013, which are based on the prea&rgs/of expected payments and estimated life ¢apeies. Expenses related to the
deferred compensation plan were $60 thousand im efthe three years ended December 31, 2014.

Supplemental Executive Retention Plan

The Company maintains the Supplemental ExecutiterRen Plan (“SERP”) for key members of senior agament. The domestic
noncontributory, nonqualified SERP provides forefimed benefit, at normal retirement age, targete8b% of the participant’s projected
final average compensation, subject to a defineximam annual benefit. Benefits under the SERP gdlydiecome payable at age 62. The
SERP is an unfunded plan; thus, there are no glset® The following table presents the comporstse SERP’s net periodic pension cost
in the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013 2012
Service cost $10€ $13¢ $155
Interest cos 29C 24¢€ 208
Amortization of losse — 49 45
Amortization of prior service co: 187 187 134
Net periodic cos $58¢ $617 $53¢
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The actuarial benefit plan obligation was $6.63ionlas of December 31, 2014, and $5.62 milliom@®ecember 31, 2013. The obligatior
of December 31, 2014, included a $651 thousandgatuoss. The assumed discount rate was decréaged1% as of December 31, 2014,
compared to 5.25% as of December 31, 2013. Thewiolly schedule presents the projected benefit patgrte be paid under the SERP, by
year, as of December 31, 20:

(Amounts in thousand

2015 $ 247
2016 247
2017 351
2018 351
2019 34¢
2020 through 202 2,13¢

Directors’ Supplemental Retirement Plan

The Company maintains the Directors’ SupplementirBment Plan (“Directors’ Plan”) for non-managernédirectors. The domestic
noncontributory, nonqualified Directors’ Plan prdes for a defined benefit, at normal retirement ageto 100% of the participant’s highest
consecutive three-year average compensation. Bewnefiler the Directors’ Plan generally become plgyabage 70. The DirectorBlan is ar
unfunded plan; thus, there are no plan assets.

The following table presents the components ofdliectors’ Plan’s net periodic pension cost in plegiods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013 2012
Service cost $ 22 $ 26 $ 27
Interest cos 46 41 39
Amortization of gains (losse — 1 —

Amortization of prior service co: 73 90 90
Net periodic cos $141 $15¢ $15€

The actuarial benefit plan obligation was $997 #and as of December 31, 2014, and $975 thousamidCecember 31, 2013. The assumed
discount rate decreased to 4.41% as of Decemb@034, compared to 5.25% as of December 31, 28 fdllowing schedule presents the
projected benefit payments to be paid under thedbirs’ Plan, by year, as of December 31, 2014:

(Amounts in thousand

2015 $ 84
2016 82
2017 112
2018 111
2019 10¢
2020 through 202 57¢
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Note 14. Equity-Based Compensation

The Company maintains equity-based compensatiars ptapromote the long-term success of the Compgrgncouraging officers,
employees, directors, and other individuals perfogiservices for the Company to focus on critioalg-range objectives. The Company’s
equity-based compensation plans include the 2018ikm Equity Compensation Plan (“2012 Pla)p4 Omnibus Stock Option Plan, 2(
Director’s Option Plan, 1999 Stock Option Plan, aadous other plans obtained through acquisitiétssof December 31, 2014, the 2012
Plan was the only plan available for the issuaridatare grants. All plans issued or obtained befibre 2012 Plan are frozen and no new
grants may be issued; however, any options or avamdxercised and outstanding under those plargmameffect per their respective
terms.

The 2012 Plan made available up to 600,000 shargmtential grants of incentive stock options, quelified stock options, performance
awards, restricted stock, restricted stock unitssksappreciation rights, bonus stock, and stocarde: Options granted under the 2012 Plan
state the period of time the grant may be exercisetito exceed more than ten years from the dateted. The Company’Compensation a
Retirement Committee determines the vesting pdaodach grant; however, if no vesting period ie@fied the vesting occurs in 25%
increments on the first four anniversaries of thengdate.

The following table presents the pre-tax compensatixpense and excess tax benefit recognized mingarfor all equitypased compensatis
plans in the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013 2012
Pre-tax compensation expense $34¢ $574 $20€
Excess tax benet 5 9 6

Stock Options

The Company uses the Black-Scholes valuation ntodedtimate the fair value of stock options atgrent date. The model incorporates the
following assumptions: the expected volatility eskbd on the weekly historical volatility of the Quemy’s common stock price over the
expected term of the option; the expected terneregally calculated using the shortcut methodriglefree interest rate is based on the
Treasury yield curve on the grant date with a teamparable to the grant; and the dividend yielobised on the Company’s dividend yield
using the most recent dividend rate paid per shadetrading price of the Company’s common stocler&twere no stock options granted in
2014, 2013, or 2012.

The following table presents stock option activityder the equity-based compensation plans in thedmdicated:

Weighted Average Weighted Average Aggregate
Remaining Contractual

(Amounts in thousands, Option Exercise Price Intrinsic
except share and per share da Shares Per Share Term (Years) Value
Outstanding, January 1, 20 374,82¢ $ 20.4¢
Grantec — —
Exercisec 3,85¢ 12.1¢
Cancelec 44,95! 20.7:
Outstanding, December 31, 20 326,02: $ 20.5¢ 4.€ $ 42t
Exercisable, December 31, 20 326,02. $ 20.5¢ 4.€ $ 42t

117



Table of Contents

FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercisad $13 thousand as of December 31, 2014, $22ahdwss of December 31, 2013, and
thousand as of December 31, 2012.

As of December 31, 2014, there was no unrecogriaetpensation expense related to nonvested stomnspThe actual compensation cost
recognized will differ from this estimate due taieas items, including new grants and changestimesed forfeitures.

Restricted Stock Awards

Restricted stock awards represent shares issuetgrpat that are restricted and generally useeetiiear vesting schedule from the grant
date. The fair value of restricted stock awardsaisulated using the Company’s common stock pricéhe grant date. The following table
presents restricted stock activity under the egoiéged compensation plans in the period indicated:

Weighted
Average
Grant-
Date
Shares Fair Value
Nonvested, January 1, 20 2,60( $ 15.0¢
Grantec — —
Vested 1,70( 14.43
Cancelec — —
Nonvested, December 31, 20 90C $ 16.2¢

As of December 31, 2014, unrecognized compensatistirelated to nonvested restricted stock awaeds$8 thousand with an expected
weighted average recognition period of 0.35 yeHing. actual compensation cost recognized will dififem this estimate due to various itel
including new awards granted and changes in estifarfeitures.

Performance Stock Awards

Performance stock awards represent shares polgigilable in the future. The fair values of pemfance stock awards are calculated using
the Company’s stock price on the grant date. THewing table presents performance stock activitder the 2012 Plan in the period
indicated:

Weighted
Average
Grant-
Date
Shares Fair Value
Nonvested, January 1, 20 36,93¢ $ 15.7¢
Grantec — —
Vested 12,30¢ 15.7¢
Cancelec 1,72¢ 14.8
Nonvested, December 31, 20 22,90: $ 15.7¢

As of December 31, 2014, unrecognized compensatietrelated to nonvested performance stock aweadst40 thousand with an expected
weighted average recognition period of 0.20 yeBng. actual compensation cost recognized will dififem this estimate due to various iter
including new awards granted, changes in estimfaréeitures, and resolution of performance contimges.
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Note 15. Other Operating Income and Expense
The following table presents the components of rotiperating income in the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(Amounts in thousand

Miscellaneous incom $ 42¢ $ 411 $2,45¢
Other® 3,92¢ 4,82¢ 4,28
Total other operating incon $4,35¢ $5,23¢ $6,742

(1) Other components of other operating income thatat@exceed 1% of total incom

Miscellaneous income in 2012 included a $2.39 omllbut-of-period adjustment to correct the undéestent of pre-tax income from 2007 to
2011.

The following table presents the components of otiperating expense in the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(Amounts in thousand

Service fee! $ 3,85¢ $ 3,15 $ 3,73¢
ATM processing expensi 2,10z 1,60t 1,48:
OREO expense and net Ic 2,09/ 2,03 1,89:
Telephone and data communicatis 1,71t 1,70% 1,54¢
Office supplies 1,51¢ 1,472 1,68¢
Professional fee 1,43¢ 2,56¢ 1,912
Advertising and public relatior 1,001 1,68¢ 1,421
Premises and equipment w-downs 93t 1,52( —
Other® 7,58¢ 7,50( 7,50¢
Total other operating expen $22,24. $23,24¢ $21,19(

(1) Other components of other operating income thatatexceed 1% of total incom

Note 16. Income Taxes

Income tax expense is comprised of current andragfefederal and state income taxes on the Conpang-tax earnings. The following
table presents the components of income tax experke periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013 2012
Current tax expens:

Federa $ 7,23¢ $12,81¢ $13,73:

State 1,32¢ 1,74 1,291
Total current tax expen: 8,55¢ 14,56: 15,02
Deferred tax expense (benef

Federa 2,971 (3,136 (1,507

State 794 (51¢) 60%
Total deferred tax expense (bene 3,76¢ (3,659 (89¢6)
Total income tax expen: $12,32¢ $10,90¢ $14,12¢
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Deferred taxes derived from continuing operatiaflect the net effect of temporary differences lmwthe carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and@mts used for tax purposes. The following tabkspnts the significant components of the
net deferred tax asset as of the dates indicated:

December 31

2014 2013
(Amounts in thousand
Deferred tax asset
Allowance for loan losse $ 7,51¢ $ 9,20¢
Unrealized losses on availa-for-sale securitie 2,56( 8,18/
Unrealized asset loss 4,477 8,01¢
Purchase accountir 5,34: 6,79¢
FDIC assisted transactio 6,582 6,752
Intangible assel 7,58¢ 6,38¢
Deferred compensation ass 4,421 4,22¢
Alternative minimum tax cred — 1,84¢
Other deferred tax asse¢ 6,427 2,67(
Total deferred tax asse 44,91 54,08
Deferred tax liabilities
FDIC indemnification asst¢ 12,54¢ 12,15t
Fixed asset 2,45¢ 2,19¢
Odd days interest deferr 2,007 1,95¢
Other 447 1,06¢
Total deferred tax liabilitie 17,45( 17,37¢
Net deferred tax ass $27,46:¢ $36,70¢

The Company'’s effective tax rate, defined as inctemeexpense divided by pre-tax income, may vaggificantly from the statutory rate due
to permanent differences and available tax creBi#smanent differences are income and expense é@erchsded by law in the calculation of
taxable income. The Compaynost significant permanent differences includmime on municipal securities, which are exempt ffedera
income tax, income on bank-owned life insurance, tan credits generated by investments in low inedmmusing and rehabilitation of
historic structures. The following table reconcillee federal statutory tax rate to the Companyfsatif’e tax rate from continuing operations
in the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(Amounts in thousand
Federal statutory tax ra 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Reduction resulting frorr
Tax-exempt interes (4.35) (5.19 (4.1¢€)
State income taxes, net of federal ber 2.6¢€ 2.3¢ 2.3¢
Other, ne (0.72) (0.39) (0.11)
Effective tax rate 32.5% 31.8t% 33.08%
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Note 17. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The following table presents the activity in AO@ét of tax, by component for the periods indicated:

(Amounts in thousand

Beginning balance, January 1, 2(

Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassidica
Reclassified from AOC

Net other comprehensive ge
Ending balance, December 31, 2(
Beginning balance, January 1, 2(

Other comprehensive (loss) gain before reclassidioa
Reclassified from AOC

Net comprehensive (loss) ge
Ending balance, December 31, 2(
Beginning balance, January 1, 2(

Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassidica
Reclassified from AOC

Net comprehensive gain (los
Ending balance, December 31, 2(

Unrealized Gains (Losse

on Available-for-Sale Employee
Securities Benefit Plan

$ (5,747) $ (1,587
5,74: 212

(28F) (167)

5,45¢ 45

$ (287) $ (1,549
$ (289) $ (1,547
(13,406 647

49 (209)

(13,357 447

$ (13,640 $ (1,100
$ (13,640 $ (1,100
10,69: (77)

(1,329 (162)

9,374 (239)

$ (4,266) $ (1,339

The following table presents reclassifications @uAOCI by component in the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

Income Statement

Total

$ (7,329
5,95¢
(452)
5,50:

$ (1,829

$ (1,825

(12,759
(156)
(12,919
$(14,740)
$(14,740)
10,62
(1,48F)
9,13t

$ (5,605

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013 2012 Line ltem Affected
Available-for-sale securitie
(Losses) gains realized in net inco $(1,387) $39¢ $48: Net (loss) gain on sale of securit
Credit-related OTTI recognized in net
income (737) (3200 (942) Netimpairment losses recognized in earni
(2,122 79 (459) Income before taxe
Income tax effec (799) 30 (174) Income tax expense (bene!
(1,329 49 (285) Netincome
Employee benefit plar
Amortization of prior service co: (260)  (277) (223 (1)
Amortization of gains — (50 (45 (1)
(260)  (327) (26€) Income before taxe
Income tax effec (98) (122 (101) Income tax expense (bene!
(162) (205 (167) Netincome
Reclassified from AOCI, net of te $(1,485) $(15€) $(452) Netincome

(1) Amortization is included in net periodic pensiorst@ee Note 1 Employee Benefit Plar”
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Note 18. Fair Value
Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value

Fair value is defined as the price that would lmeired to sell an asset or paid to transfer alifglin an orderly transaction between market
participants. A description of the valuation metblogjies used for instruments measured at fair vasevell as the general classification of
such instruments under the valuation hierarchgrésented in the following discussion. The faiueahierarchy ranks the inputs used in
measuring fair value as follows:

* Level 1- Observable, unadjusted quoted prices in active ets

» Level 2—Inputs other than quoted prices included in Leviildt are directly or indirectly observable for timset or liability
» Level 3— Unobservable inputs with little or no market adgiihat require the Company to use reasonable srgmudl assumptior

The Company uses fair value measurements to rectpdtments to certain financial assets and lizgdslion a recurring basis. Additionally,
the Company may be required to record certain asgéair value on a nonrecurring basis in specificumstances, such as evidence of
impairment. Methodologies used to determine faluganight be highly subjective and judgmental itune, such as cash flow estimates, risk
characteristics, credit quality measurements, atetést rates; therefore, valuations may not beiggeSince fair values are estimated as of a
specific date, the amounts actually realized od pai the settlement or maturity of these instrumemdy be significantly different from
estimates. See Note 1, “Summary of Significant Aetimg Policies,” to the Consolidated Financialt&taents of this report.

Assets and Liabilities Reported at Fair Value oRecurring Basit

Available-for-Sale SecuritiesSecurities available for sale are reported atfaiue on a recurring basis. The fair value ofélelvsecurities is
based on quoted market prices in active markessjaflable. The Company also uses Level 1 inputsboe equity securities that are trade
active markets. If quoted market prices are nollabi, fair values are measured utilizing indepartdsaluation techniques of identical or
similar securities for which significant assumpsare primarily derived from or corroborated byafable market data. Level 2 securities
use fair value measurements from independent rigénvices obtained by the Company. These fairevaleasurements consider observable
data that may include dealer quotes, market spreadh flows, the Treasury yield curve, live tragievels, trade execution data, market
consensus prepayment speeds, credit informati@hband terms and conditions. The Company’s Lewad@urities include U.S. Treasury
securities, single issue trust preferred secuyitiegorate securities, MBS, and certain equitysges that are not actively traded. Securities
are based on Level 3 inputs when there is limitdtvidy or less transparency to the valuation irspuih the absence of observable or
corroborated market data, internally developedresdts that incorporate market-based assumptionssatewhen such information is
available.

Fair value models may be required when trading/itigtihas declined significantly or does not exggices are not current, or pricing variati
are significant. For Level 3 securities, the Compalbtains the cash flow of specific securities frinind parties that use modeling software to
determine cash flows based on market participatiat aad knowledge of the structures of each indafidecurity. The fair values of Level 3
securities are determined by applying proper maskeervable discount rates to the cash flow derfkad third-party models. Discount rates
are developed by determining credit spreads abdemnehmark rate, such as LIBOR, and adding premfomifliquidity, which are based on

a comparison of initial issuance spread to LIBORsus a financial sector curve for recently issuebtdo LIBOR. Securities with increased
uncertainty about the receipt of cash flows aredlisted at higher rates due to the addition ofah gfgecific credit premium based on
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assumptions about the performance of the underlyatigteral. Finally, internal fair value model girig and external pricing observations are
combined by assigning weights to each pricing ola@m. Pricing is reviewed for reasonablenessdhasethe direction of the specific
markets and the general economic indicators.

Loans Held for Investme. Loans held for investment are reported at faineaising discounted future cash flows that applyent interest
rates for loans with similar terms and borroweddrgquality. Loans related to fair value hedgesraeorded at fair value on a recurring basis.

Deferred Compensation Assets and Liabili. Securities held for trading purposes are recoedddir value on a recurring basis and included
in other assets in the consolidated balance shEetse securities include assets related to empldgterred compensation plans, which are
generally invested in Level 1 equity securitiese Tibility associated with these deferred compgmsalans is carried at the fair value of the
obligation to the employee, which corresponds &ofttir value of the invested assets.

Derivative Assets and Liabilitic. Derivatives are recorded at fair value on a neagrbasis. The Company obtains dealer quotes,|l2ve
inputs, based on observable data to value derastiv

The following tables summarize financial assets lafilities recorded at fair value on a recurrlvasis, segregated by the level of valuation
inputs in the fair value hierarchy, as of the datescated:

December 31, 201

Total Fair Value Measurements Using

(Amounts in thousand Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 2
Available-for-sale securities

U.S. Agency securitie $ 33,59¢ $ — $ 33,59¢ $—

Municipal securitie: 138,91! — 138,91! —

Single issue trust preferred securil 46,13" — 46,13" —

Corporate securitie 5,10¢ — 5,10¢ —

Agency MBS 102,11¢ — 102,11¢ —

Equity securities 23¢ 221 18 —
Total availabl-for-sale securitie $326,11° $ 221 $325,89¢ $—
Fair value loan: $ 3,40¢ $ — $ 3,40¢ $—
Deferred compensation ass $ 3,38( $3,38( $ — $—
Derivative asset

Forward sale loan commitmer $ 5 $ — $ 5 $—
Total derivative asse $ 5 $ — $ 5 $—
Deferred compensation liabilitie $ 3,38( $3,38( $ — $—
Derivative liabilities

Interest rate sway $ 20¢ $ — $  20¢ $—

IRLCs 5 — 5 —
Total derivative liabilities $ 214 $ — $ 214 $—
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December 31, 201

Total Fair Value Measurements Usin¢

(Amounts in thousand Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level &
Available-for-sale securities

U.S. Treasury securitie $ 9,01 $ — $ 9,01 $—

Municipal securitie: 144,28 — 144,28 —

Single issue trust preferred securil 46,23¢ — 46,23¢ —

Corporate securitie 4,871 — 4,871 —

Agency MBS 300,38t — 300,38t —

Non-Agency All-A residential MBS 9,78¢ — 9,78¢ —

Equity securitie: 5,24 251 4,99¢ —
Total availabl-for-sale securitie $519,82( $ 251 $519,56¢ $—
Fair value loan $ 440¢ $ — $ 440¢ $—
Deferred compensation ass $ 4,20( $4,20( $ — $—
Derivatives asse!

Interest rate sway $ 43 $ — $ 43 $—

Forward sale loan commitmer 41 — 41 —
Total derivative asse $ 84 $ — $ 84 $—
Deferred compensation liabiliti¢ $ 4,20( $4,20( $ — $—
Derivative liabilities

IRLCs $ 41 $ — $ 41 $—
Total derivative liabilities $ 41 $ — $ 41 $—

There were no changes in valuation techniques guhia years ended December 31, 2014 or 2013. [Edmpany determines that a valuat
technique change is necessary, the change is adsarhave occurred at the end of the respectivertiegy period. There were no transfers
into or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarctiyring the years ended December 31, 2014 or 2013.

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurringi

Impaired Loans. Impaired loans are recorded at fair value onraexurring basis when repayment is expected stiety the sale of the
loan’s collateral. Fair value is based on appraisgde adjusted for customized discounting critdrgvel 3 inputs.

The Company maintains an active and robust prololemiit identification system. The impairment reviewludes obtaining third-party
collateral valuations to help management identdteptial credit impairment and determine the amadimipairment to record. The
Company'’s Special Assets staff assumes the managemeé monitoring of all loans determined to beaingd. Internal collateral valuations
are generally performed within two to four weeksdehtifying the initial potential impairment. Tlternal valuation compares the original
appraisal to current local real estate market d¢wrdi and considers experience and expected lijaidaosts. A third-party valuation is
typically received within thirty to forty-five daysf completing the internal valuation. When a thpatty valuation is received, it is reviewed
for reasonableness. Once the valuation is reviemedaccepted, discounts are applied to fair madete, based on, but not limited to, our
historical liquidation experience for like collagrresulting in an estimated net realizable vallree estimated net realizable value is
compared to the outstanding loan balance to deterthie appropriate amount of specific impairmeséree.
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Specific reserves are generally recorded for ingghlioans while third-party valuations are in pracasd for impaired loans that continue to
make some form of payment. While waiting to recehe third-party appraisal, the Company regulagljiews the relationship to identify any
potential adverse developments and begins the resiessary to gain control of the collateral arepare it for liquidation, including, but not
limited to, engagement of counsel, inspection dideral, and continued communication with the berer. Generally, the only difference
between the current appraised value, less liquidatosts, and the carrying amount of the loan,tlesspecific reserve, is any downward
adjustment to the appraised value that the Comgaayns appropriate, such as the costs to sell tpedy. Impaired loans that do not meet
certain criteria and do not have a specific resbaxe typically been written down through partiasdgeeoffs to net realizable value. Based
prior experience, the Company rarely returns ldangerforming status after they have been partiilgrged off. Credits identified as
impaired move quickly through the process towaltimate resolution, except in cases involving bamitcy and various state judicial
processes that may extend the time for ultimateluésn.

Other Real Estate Owned®REO is recorded at fair value on a nonrecurbagis using Level 3 inputs. The Company calculdtesair value
of OREO from current or prior appraisals that hbeen adjusted for valuation declines, estimatdihgatosts, and other proprietary
gualitative adjustments that are deemed necessary.

The following tables summarize assets measuregiratdlue on a nonrecurring basis, segregated dyetrel of valuation inputs in the fair
value hierarchy, in the periods indicated:

December 31, 201

TFZE?I Fair Value Measurements Using
(Amounts in thousand Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Impaired loans not covered by loss share agreements $6,48( — — $ 6,48(
OREQO, not covered by loss share agreemr 5,46% — — 5,46:
OREO, covered by loss share agreem 5,24 — — 5,24

December 31, 201

TF(;E?I Fair Value Measurements Using
(Amounts in thousand Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Impaired loans not covered by loss share agreements $8,93¢ — — $ 8,93t
OREO, not covered by loss share agreemr 7,18( — — 7,18(
OREO, covered by loss share agreem 6,43: — — 6,43:

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Valuedsurements

The following table presents quantitative informatfor assets measured at fair value on a noniiegusasis using Level 3 valuation inputs
the periods indicated:

Range (Weighted Average

Valuation Technique Unobservable Input December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Impaired loans Discounted appraisal® Appraisal adjustment® 1% to 33% (22% 6% to 100% (47%
OREO, not covere Discounted appraisal® Appraisal adjustment®  10% to 47% (26% 0% to 65% (34%
OREQO, coverei Discounted appraisal® Appraisal adjustment®  10% to 52% (44% 4% to 70% (41%

(1) Fair value is generally based on appraisals ofittterlying collateral
(2) Appraisals may be adjusted by management fetooized discounting criteria, estimated saless¢@std proprietary qualitative
adjustments

125



Table of Contents

FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Fair Value of Financial Instrumen

The Company uses various methodologies and assamspit estimate the fair value of certain finangiatruments. A description of the
valuation methodologies used for instruments neviously discussed is as follows:

Cash and Cash Equivalent€ash and cash equivalents are reported at theiicg amount, which is considered a reasonaltimate due to
the short-term nature of these instruments.

Held-to-Maturity Securities Securities held to maturity are reported at¥aiue using quoted market prices or dealer quotes.

Loans Held for Sal. Loans held for sale are reported at the lowewost or estimated fair value. Estimated fair vatueased on the market
price of similar loans.

FDIC Indemnification Asse. The FDIC indemnification asset is reported at ¥alue using discounted future cash flows thatyapprrent
discount rates.

Accrued Interest Receivable/Paya. Accrued interest receivable/payable is reportateir carrying amount, which is considered a
reasonable estimate due to the short-term natufeesé instruments.

Deposits and Securities Sold Under Agreements poaiiRease. Deposits without a stated maturity, such as deimiaterest-bearing demand,
and savings, are reported at their carrying amdhatamount payable on demand as of the reporttey which is considered a reasonable
estimate of fair value. Deposits and repurchaseeagents with fixed maturities and rates are redatdair value using discounted future
cash flows that apply interest rates availabld@rharket for instruments with similar charactérssand maturities.

FHLB and Other Borrowing. FHLB and other borrowings are reported at falugaising discounted future cash flows that appigrest
rates available to the Company for borrowings withilar characteristics and maturities. Trust pmefé obligations are reported at fair value
using current credit spreads in the market forlginissues.

Off-Balance Sheet Instrument§he Company believes that fair values of unfuncim@mitments to extend credit, standby lettersredlit, anc
financial guarantees are not meaningful; therefoifehalance sheet instruments are not addresstn ifair value disclosures. The Company
believes it is not feasible or practical to acceisatlisclose the fair values of off-balance shestruments due to the uncertainty and difficulty
in assessing the likelihood and timing of advan@mgilable proceeds, the lack of an establishedendor these instruments, and the
diversity in fee structures. For additional infotioa regarding the unfunded, contractual valuefébalance sheet financial instruments see
Note 20, Litigation, Commitments and Contingencies,” to tBensolidated Financial Statements of this report.
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The following tables present the carrying amount fair value of the Company’s financial instrumerssgregated by the level of valuation
inputs in the fair value hierarchy, as of the datescated:

December 31, 201

Carrying Fair Value Measurements Using
(Amounts in thousand Amount Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 237,66( $ 237,66 $237,66( $ — $ —
Available-for-sale securitie 326,11° 326,11 221 325,89¢ —
Held-to-maturity securitie: 57,94¢ 57,88¢ — 57,88¢ —
Loans held for sal 1,792 1,79( — 1,79( —
Loans held for investment less allowal 1,669,18 1,738,55. — 3,40¢ 1,735,14
FDIC indemnification ass¢ 27,90( 18,04( — — 18,04(
Accrued interest receivab 6,31¢ 6,31¢ — 6,31¢ —
Derivative financial asse 5 5 — 5 —
Deferred compensation ass 3,38( 3,38( 3,38( — —
Liabilities
Demand deposil $ 417,72 $ 417,72 $ — $417,72¢ $ —
Interes-bearing demand depos 353,87 353,87 — 353,87 —
Savings deposil 525,47¢ 525,47¢ — 525,47¢ —
Time deposit: 703,67¢ 704,59( — 704,59( —
Securities sold under agreements to repurc 121,74. 123,11. — 123,11 —
Accrued interest payab 1,66¢ 1,66¢ — 1,66¢ —
FHLB and other borrowing 107,99¢ 116,59¢ — 116,59¢ —
Derivative financial liabilities 214 214 — 214 —
Deferred compensation liabilitie 3,38( 3,38( 3,38( — —
December 31, 201.
Carrying Fair Value Measurements Using
(Amounts in thousand Amount Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Cash and cash equivale! $ 56,56 $ 56,56 $56,56" $ — $ —
Available-for-sale securitie 519,82( 519,82( 251 519,56¢ —
Held-to-maturity securitie: 56¢ 57¢ — 57¢ —
Loans held for sal 88: 88:¢ — 88:¢ —
Loans held for investment less allowal 1,686,64 1,655,43 — 4,40¢ 1,651,02
FDIC indemnification asst 34,69: 34,69: — — 34,69:
Accrued interest receivab 7,521 7,521 — 7,521 —
Derivative financial asse 84 84 — 84 —
Deferred compensation ass 4,20( 4,20( 4,20( — —
Liabilities
Demand deposi $ 339,68( $ 339,68l $ — $339,68( $ —
Interes-bearing demand depos 361,82: 361,82: — 361,82: —
Savings deposil 524,01( 524,01( — 524,01( —
Time deposit: 725,23: 728,99¢ — 728,99¢ —
Securities sold under agreements to repurc 118,30¢ 121,32( — 121,32 —
Accrued interest payab 2,16¢ 2,16¢ — 2,16¢ —
FHLB and other borrowing 166,08t 178,03: — 178,03: —
Derivative financial liabilities 41 41 — 41 —
Deferred compensation liabilitie 4,20( 4,20( 4,20( — —
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Note 19. Related Party Transactions

The Company is involved in certain transactiondhwétlated parties in the normal course of busingstated parties include directors and
executive officers and the immediate family mempbusiness interests, and affiliates of such darscand officers. All loans and
commitments with related parties have been madribstantially the same terms, including interetgtsrand collateral, as those prevailing at
the time for comparable transactions with unrelgadies. The following table summarizes depodit laan activity with related parties in t
periods indicated:

Deposits Loans

(Amounts in thousand

Beginning balance, January 1, 2( $ 3,831 $18,40¢
Increase in accounts, including new accol 311 2,58(
Decrease in accounts, including closed accc (1,559 (4,369)
Net change (1,249 (1,789
Ending balance, December 31, 2( $ 2,58¢ $16,61°
Beginning balance, January 1, 2( $ 2,58¢ $16,61"
Increase in accounts, including new accol 907 2,031
Decrease in accounts, including closed accc (579 1,477%)
Net change 333 564
Ending balance, December 31, 2( $ 2,927 $17,18:
Beginning balance, January 1, 2( $ 2,92¢ $17,18:
Increase in accounts, including new accol 1,321 6,12:
Decrease in accounts, including closed accc (429 (479)
Net change 89¢ 5,64¢
Ending balance, December 31, 2( $ 3,82( $22,82¢

Changes in the composition of the Company’s subsidiloard members and executive officers resuttedniet increase in deposits of $481
thousand in 2014, $103 thousand in 2013, and $id@ésand in 2012. Changes in the composition o€Crapany’s subsidiary board
members and executive officers resulted in a regease in loans of $5.47 million in 2014 and deseda loans of $613 thousand in 2013 and
$2.79 million in 2012.

The Company’s other operating expense includesicegkpense associated with related parties. Lfegalpaid to related parties totaled $27
thousand in 2014, $57 thousand in 2013, and $63stral in 2012. Lease expense paid to related péotiled $92 thousand in 2014, $134
thousand in 2013, and $171 thousand in 2012.

Note 20. Litigation, Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

In the normal course of business, the Companyisfendant in various legal actions and assertéchslaVhile the Company and its legal
counsel are unable to assess the ultimate outcbmrarh of these matters with certainty, the Comgazelieves the resolution of these actions,

singly or in the aggregate, should not have a n#tedverse effect on the financial condition, fessaf operations or cash flows of the
Company.

128



Table of Contents

FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is a party to financial instrumenthwiff-balance sheet risk in the normal course Gifss to meet the financing needs of its
customers. These financial instruments include ci@ments to extend credit, standby letters of crexitl financial guarantees. These
instruments involve, to varying degrees, elemehtsedit and interest rate risk beyond the amoaobgnized in the balance sheets. The
contractual amounts of these instruments reflecettient of involvement the Company has in paricalasses of financial instruments. If
other party to a financial instrument does not grenf the Company’s credit loss exposure is the sagrtbe contractual amount of the
instrument. The Company uses the same credit pslinimaking commitments and conditional obligadias it does for on-balance sheet
instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements totteaccustomer as long as there is no violatioanyf condition established in the contract.
Commitments generally have fixed expiration datestber termination clauses and may require paymeatfee. Since many of the
commitments are expected to expire without beirsgvdrupon, the total commitment amounts do not reac#ég represent future cash
requirements. The Company evaluates each custogredgworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The mtnobgollateral obtained, if deemed
necessary, is based on management’s credit evaluattithe customer. Collateral may include accowdeivable, inventory, property, plant
and equipment, and income producing commercialgnms. Commitments to extend credit also includistanding commitments related to
mortgage loans that are sold on a best efforts liaigi the secondary loan market. The Company @iama reserve for the risk inherent in
unfunded lending commitments, which is includedtimer liabilities in the consolidated balance sbeet

Standby letters of credit and financial guaransgesconditional commitments issued by the Compargutirantee the performance of a
customer to a third party. The credit risk invohirdssuing letters of credit is essentially thensaas that involved in extending credit to
customers. The amount of collateral obtained, &@ded necessary, to secure the custaymiformance under certain letters of credit &el
on management’s credit evaluation of the customer.

The following table presents the Company’s off-baasheet financial instruments as of the datasatet:

December 31

2014 2013
(Amounts in thousand

Commitments to extend cres $236,47: $216,17¢
Commitments related to secondary market mortgages 1,391 3,67
Standby letters of credit and financial guaran 3,581 4,19:
Total off-balance sheet ris $241,44. $224,04¢
Reserve for unfunded commitmel $ 32€ $ 32¢

The Company held letters of credit with the FHLBatmg $6.18 million as of December 31, 2014. Tk B letters of credit provide an
attractive alternative to pledging securities fablic unit deposits.

The Company issued $15.46 million of trust prefésecurities in a private placement through thestTflhe Company has committed to
irrevocably and unconditionally guarantee the follog payments or distributions to holders of thestipreferred securities to the extent the
Trust has not made such payments or distributiodsttee Company has the funds available: accruediapdid distributions, the redemption
price, and, upon a dissolution or termination & Thust, the lesser of the liquidation amount dhdarued and unpaid distributions and the
amount of assets of the Trust remaining availatelistribution.
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Note 21. Regulatory Capital Requirements and Restrtions

The Company and the Bank are subject to varioudatagy capital requirements administered by staig federal banking agencies. Failure
to meet minimum capital requirements can initisggan mandatory and possibly additional discretigractions by regulators that, if
undertaken, could have a direct material effedh@enCompany’s consolidated financial statementslddithe capital adequacy guidelines and
the regulatory framework for prompt corrective antiwhich applies only to the Bank, the Bank musenhspecific capital guidelines that
involve quantitative measures of the entity’s agd@tbilities, and certain off-balance sheet itemagalculated under regulatory accounting
practices. The Bank’s capital amounts and clasdifios are also subject to qualitative judgmentthieyregulators about components, risk
weightings, and other factors. Quantitative measestablished by regulation to ensure capital aagqrequire the Company and the Bank to
maintain minimum amounts and ratios for total anet T capital, as defined in the regulations, stfiveighted assets, as defined, and of Tier
1 capital, as defined, to average assets, as define

To be categorized as well capitalized, the Banktmmagntain minimum total capital to risk-weighteskats, Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted
assets, and Tier 1 capital to average assets glgepratios established by banking regulators.fA3ezember 31, 2014, the Company and the
Bank continued to meet all capital adequacy requergts. As of December 31, 2014, the most receiiftaatons from regulators continued
categorize the Bank as well capitalized under dgeilatory framework for prompt corrective actionabdhgement believes there have been no
conditions or events since those notifications thatld change the Bank’s classification.

The following table presents the Company’s and&hek’s capital ratios as of the dates indicated:

December 31, 201

To Be Well
For Capital Capitalized Under
Adequacy Prompt Corrective
Actual Purposes Action Provisions
(Amounts in thousand Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets
First Community Bancshares, Ir $284,99¢ 17.6% $128,96. 8.0(% N/A N/A
First Community Banl| 251,25t¢ 15.7%% 127,76: 8.0(% $159,70: 10.0(%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets
First Community Bancshares, Ir 264,83t 16.4% 64,48. 4.0(% N/A N/A
First Community Banl| 231,28t 14.4¢% 63,88, 4.0(% 95,82 6.0(%
Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets (Leverage
First Community Bancshares, Ir 264,83¢ 10.12% 104,67¢  4.0(% N/A N/A
First Community Banl| 231,28t 8.81% 104,33( 4.0(% 130,41. 5.0(%
December 31, 201
To Be Well
For Capital Capitalized Under
Adequacy Prompt Corrective
Actual Purposes Action Provisions

(Amounts in thousand Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets
First Community Bancshares, Ir $270,63t 16.49% $131,69: 8.0(% N/A N/A
First Community Banl| 236,69 14.5%% 130,14: 8.0(% $162,67¢ 10.0(%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Asset:
First Community Bancshares, Ir 250,01: 15.1% 65,847 4.0(% N/A N/A
First Community Banl| 216,31 13.3(% 65,07C  4.0(% 97,60¢ 6.0(%
Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets (Leverage)
First Community Bancshares, Ir 250,01: 9.95% 100,48¢  4.0(% N/A N/A
First Community Banl| 216,31 8.6% 100,21¢  4.0(% 125,27: 5.0(%
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The primary source of funds for dividends paid iy €Company to shareholders is dividends receivad the Bank, which are subject to
banking regulation restrictions. Approval by regaty authorities is required to declare dividerfdhié dividends are to be paid in something
other than cash, if the cumulative dividend paynexteeds the net retained income of the currenttgedate plus the retained net income of
the preceding two years, or if payment of the divid would cause the Bank to become undercapitalized

The Bank issues mortgages insured by the U.S. Brapat of Housing and Urban Development (“‘HUD”) ad@dD-approved Title Il
Supervised Mortgagee. A Title Il Supervised Mortgagnust maintain an adjusted minimum net worthlof$llion. Not complying with this
minimum net worth requirement may result in peraltsuch as the revocation of the Bank’s licenssstee HUD insured mortgages, which
may have a material adverse effect on the Compdimgacial condition and results of operations. Bamk's adjusted net worth was $200
million as of December 31, 2014, and $201.92 milks of December 31, 2013, which significantly edseminimum net worth requiremet

Note 22. Parent Company Financial Information
The following table presents condensed financi@rimation for the parent company as of the datesimthe periods indicated:

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013
Assets
Cash and due from ban $ 21,64¢ $ 10,87:
Securities available for sa 8,17: 13,33t
Investment in subsidiai 334,15! 310,74
Other asset 5,10( 9,69
Total asset $ 369,07 $ 344,65.
Liabilities
Other borrowing: $ 2,23t $ 582
Subordinated det 15,46+ 15,46¢
Total liabilities 17,69¢ 16,04¢
Stockholders Equity
Preferred stoc 15,15: 15,25!
Common stocl 20,50( 20,49
Additional paic-in capital 215,87: 215,66.
Retained earning 140,01« 124,53!
Treasury stocl (35,75) (33,887
Accumulated other comprehensive I (4,419 (13,449
Total stockholder equity 351,37: 328,60t
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 369,07 $ 344,65:
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CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31,

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013 2012

Cash dividends received from subsidiary bank $ 14,14¢ $ 43,90( $ 8,10t
Other income 51¢ 72€ 44~
Operating expens (2,799 (1,647 (1,319)
Income tax expens 511 36¢ (55
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidii 12,10¢ (20,03%) 21,40(
Net income 25,49( 23,31 28,57"
Dividends on preferred stox 91( 1,02¢ 1,05¢
Net income available to common shareholc $ 24,58( $ 22,28t $ 27,51¢

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended Decembel, 3

(Amounts in thousand 2014 2013
Operating activities
Net income $ 25,49 $ 23,31
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigen by operating activitie:
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidii (12,109 20,03t
Loss (gain) on sale of securiti 2 (193
Decrease (increase) in other as: 4,62¢ (5,297
(Decrease) increase in other liabilit (347) 33:
Increase in other operating activit (65 (106
Net cash provided by operating activit 17,59t 38,08¢
Investing activities
Proceeds from sales of securities avail-for-sale 5,03( 3,38(
Payments to acquire securities avail-for-sale — (5,000
Investment in subsidiar (2,000 —
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi 3,03( (1,620
Financing activities
Proceeds from other borrowin 2,00(¢ —
Proceeds from stock options exerci: 89 78¢
Payments for repurchase of treasury s (2,169 (28,42
Payments of common dividen (9,200 (9,47¢)
Payments of preferred dividen (910 (992)
Proceeds from other financing activiti 33¢ 28
Net cash used in financing activiti (9,85)) (38,079
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 10,77 (1,609
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 10,87 12,47¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of ' $ 21,64¢ $ 10,87:
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(21,400)
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58¢
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7,781

2,151
(5,137

(2,986)

144
(1,012
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Note 23. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following table presents selected financiahdat quarter for the periods indicated:

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per shate
Interest income

Interest expens

Net interest incom

Provision for (recovery of) loan loss

Net interest income after provision for loan los
Other income

Net gain (loss) on sale of securit

Other expense

Income before income tax

Income tax

Net income

Dividends on preferred stox

Net income available to common shareholc

Basic earnings per common sh

Diluted earnings per common shi
Dividend per common sha

Weighted average basic shares outstan
Weighted average diluted shares outstan

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per steteg
Interest income

Interest expens

Net interest incom

Provision for loan losse

Net interest income after provision for loan los
Other income

Net gain (loss) on sale of securit

Other expense

Income before income tax

Income tax

Net income

Dividends on preferred stox

Net income available to common shareholc

Basic earnings per common sh

Diluted earnings per common shi
Dividend per common sha

Weighted average basic shares outstan
Weighted average diluted shares outstan

Year Ended December 31, 201

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
$ 26,08 $ 26,09: $ 25,75 $ 28,18

4,05¢ 4,028 3,73¢ 3,471
22,02t 22,06¢ 22,01t 24,71(
1,79: 1,27¢ (2,439 (48¢)
20,23: 20,78¢ 24,45: 25,19¢
7,18¢ 7,66 7,341 9,18¢

45 (59 32C (1,697)

19,18( 18,16: 21,46¢ 24,05(
8,28¢ 10,23( 10,65: 8,64¢
2,561 3,22¢ 3,60¢ 2,931
5,72t 7,007 7,04 5,71t

22¢€ 227 22¢€ 227

$ 549 $ 6,78 $ 681 $  548¢
$ 0.3C $ 0.37 $ 0.37 $ 0.3C
0.2¢ 0.3¢€ 0.3€ 0.2¢

0.1Z 0.1Z 0.1z 0.1z
18,423,12 18,395,99 18,402,76 18,403,95
19,506,64 19,457,23 19,466,12 19,482,00

Year Ended December 31, 201

First Second Third Fourth
__ Quarter Quarter Quarter __ Quarter
$ 28,00« $ 27,41 $ 26,69¢ $ 27,36¢
4,642 4,55( 4,37( 4,272
23,36 22,86: 22,32¢ 23,09:
1,142 3,20¢ 2,33 1,52¢
22,22( 19,65 19,99t 21,56¢
7,742 6,73t 8,15( 6,74%
117 117 (39 20¢
19,54« 18,53: 20,15: 20,75¢
10,53: 7,972 7,951 7,76(C
3,39¢€ 2,53 2,53¢ 2,43¢€
7,141 5,43¢ 5,41% 5,324
25€ 258 261 252

$ 6,88: $ 5,182 $ 5,151 $ 5,07z
$ 0.34 $ 0.2¢ $ 0.2¢ $ 0.27
0.34 0.2¢ 0.2¢ 0.2€
0.1z 0.1z 0.1z 0.1Z
20,032,69 19,997,99 20,008,86 19,136,31
21,258,49 21,205,07 21,123,78 20,233,73
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- Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm+

To the Audit Committee of the Board of Directorsldhe Stockholders
First Community Bancshares, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of First Community Bancshares, Inc. amgiSiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related cdasedl statements of income, comprehensive incamss)(Ichanges in stockholdeesgjuity
and cash flows for each of the years in the thesa-period ended December 31, 2014. These conslifiaancial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Oupaasibility is to express an opinion on these foahstatements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet dndbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on glasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesiused and significant estimates made by marnageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegrferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of First
Community Bancshares, Inc. and its Subsidiariesf &ecember 31, 2014 and 2013, and the resultsenf bperations and their cash flows
each of the years in the three-year period endegi@ber 31, 2014 in conformity with accounting pifihes generally accepted in the United
States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2014, based on criteria establishédt@mnal Control-Integrated Framework
(1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatadrthe Treadway Commission (COSO), and our regatgd March 3, 2015
expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectigsra the Company’s internal control over financégorting.

/sl Dixon Hughes Goodman LL

Charlotte, North Carolin
March 3, 201¢
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- Ma nagements Assessment of Internal Control over Financial Regrting -

First Community Bancshares, Inc. (the “Companyeisponsible for the preparation, integrity, and ffaesentation of the consolidated
financial statements included in this Annual Report~orm 10-K. The consolidated financial stateraemtd notes included in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K have been prepared in confgrmith U.S. generally accepted accounting pringead necessarily include some
amounts that are based on management’s best estianad judgments.

We, as management of the Company, are responsibéstablishing and maintaining effective interc@ahtrol over financial reporting that is
designed to produce reliable financial statementohformity with U.S. generally accepted accouptininciples. The system of internal
control over financial reporting as it relateshe financial statements is evaluated for effectéasrby management and tested for reliability.
Any system of internal control, no matter how wadkigned, has inherent limitations, including thegbility that a control can be
circumvented or overridden and misstatements deertw or fraud may occur and not be detected. Alscause of changes in conditions,
internal control effectiveness may vary over titdecordingly, even an effective system of internahtrol will provide only reasonable
assurance with respect to financial statement pagipa.

Management conducted an assessment of the effeetis®f the Company’s internal control over finahoéporting based on the framework
in thelnternal Control-Integrated Framework (19923sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrthe Treadway Commission.
Based on this assessment, management concludétsthggtem of internal control over financial reforg was effective as of December 31,
2014.

Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP, independent registerddigpaccounting firm, has issued an attestatiomriepn the effectiveness of the
Company'’s internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2014. The Report of Indeperidegistered Public Accounting Firm,
which expresses an unqualified opinion on the &ffeness of the Company’s internal control oveafioial reporting as of December 31,
2014, appears hereafter in Iltem 8 of this Annugdd®eon Form 10-K.

Dated this 3¢ day of March, 2015.

/s/ William P. Stafford, Il /s/ David D. Brown
William P. Stafford, Il David D. Brown
Chief Executive Office Chief Financial Office
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- Report of Independent Reaqistered Public Accounting Firmr

To the Audit Committee of the Board of Directorsldhe Stockholders
First Community Bancshares, Inc.

We have audited First Community Bancshares, Ind.Sbsidiaries (the “Company”) internal control pfieancial reporting as of
December 31, 2014, based on criteria establishbdemal Control-Integrated Framework (19923sued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Camsamanagement is responsible for maintainingatiffe internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of fifiecéveness of internal control over financial ogjing, included in the accompanying
Management’'s Assessment of Internal Control oveaftial Reporting. Our responsibility is to exprassopinion on the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8dé/nited States). Those stande
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenalteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordw@r financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, and testing aald&ing the design and operating effectivenesstefnal control based on the assessed risk.
Our audit also included performing such other pdoces as we considered necessary in the circunestave believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaaesuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over firgad reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshef assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financakestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeipnrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (Bjige reasonable assurance regarding preventiomely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygseds that could have a material effect on then@iiz statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, First Community Bancshares, Incinteined, in all material respects, effective intdrcontrol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2014, based on criteria establishbdemal Control-Integrated Framework (19923sued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the consolidated
financial statements of First Community Bancshalres,as of and for the year ended December 314,281id our report, dated March 3, 2(
expressed an unqualified opinion on those condelitifinancial statements.

/sl Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP

Charlotte, North Carolina
March 3, 2015
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Ite m 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Aounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Ite m 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedu

In connection with this report, we conducted aneaton, under the supervision and with the pgrtition of management, including our
Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) and Chief Financi@fficer (“CFO"), of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls pratedures under t|
Exchange Act Rule 1345(b). Based upon that evaluation, the CEO and €#@luded that, as of December 31, 2014, our discéocontrol:
and procedures were effective.

Disclosure controls and procedures are our Comgasoyitrols and other procedures that are designedsure that information we are
required to disclose in the reports we file or sithmder the Exchange Act is recorded, processedirarized, and reported within the
periods specified in the SEC’s rules and formscIdsure controls and procedures include, withauitéition, controls and procedures
designed to ensure that information we are requoetisclose in the reports that we file or submnitler the Exchange Act is accumulated and
communicated to management, including the CEO &#d,@s appropriate, to allow timely decisions rdgay required disclosure.

Management, including the CEO and CFO, does nataxhat our disclosure controls and internal adatwill prevent all errors and all
fraud. A control system, no matter how well coneéiand operated, can provide only reasonable brsatiate, assurance that the objective
the control system are met. Because of the inhd&meitations in all control systems, no evaluatwfcontrols can provide absolute assurance
that all control issues and instances of fraudnif, within our Company have been detected. Thdsrént limitations include the realities
that judgments in decision making can be faulty #mat breakdowns can occur because of simple ernmistake. Additionally, controls can
be circumvented by the individual acts of some @esscollusion of two or more people, or managefevierride of the controls.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repogin

We assess the adequacy of our internal controlfanencial reporting quarterly and enhance our astin response to internal control
assessments and internal and external audit anthtegy recommendations. There were no changeariimgernal control over financial
reporting during the quarter ended December 314 20t materially affected, or is reasonably kkil materially affect, our internal control
over financial reporting.

Managemer's Report on Internal Controls over Financial Retiog

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness ohtaunal control over financial reporting as ofd@enber 31, 2014, is included in Item 8,
“Management’s Assessment of Internal Control oveafcial Reporting,” of this report. Our indepentauaditors’ report on management’s
assessment of internal controls over financial mépg as of December 31, 2014, is included in I&rfReport of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm,” of this report.

It em 9B. Other Information.
None.
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PART Il

| tem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace.

The information required in Item 10 of this repgrincorporated by reference to our Proxy Staterfmrthe Annual Meeting of Stockholders
to be held on April 28, 2015 (“2015 Annual MeetipgThe Proxy Statement will be filed with the SE@pto the 2015 Annual Meeting. The
following list provides the heading under which tlequired information is incorporated by refereiceur Proxy Statement for the 2015
Annual Meeting:

» Information regarding directors and executive @ff&cis included in “Proposal 1: Election of Dirast “Nominees for the Class of
2018” “Continuing Incumbent Directo” “Non-Director Executive Officer” and“Corporate Governan(”

» Information regarding compliance with Section 16{)he Exchange Act is included in “Section 1@aheficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance”

» Information regarding the Audit Committee and thed& Committee Financial Expert is includec*Board Committee”

We adopted a Standards of Conduct that applielk éoiiadirectors and employees, including our pipat executive officer, principal financ
officer, principal accounting officer or controljer persons performing similar functions. A copyar Standards of Conduct is available on
our website, www.fchinc.com. There have been naeraiof the Standards of Conduct related to angearf.

Since the disclosure presented in our Proxy Statefited with the SEC on March 14, 2014, for thenAial Meeting of Stockholders held in
2014, no material changes have been made to tisegures by which stockholders may recommend nomiteeeur Company’s Board of
Directors.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC .

W. C. Blankenship, Jr. I. Norris Kantor

Retired Agent, State Farm Insurance Of Counsel, Katz, Kantor, Stonestreet & Bucknetpiteys at
Law; Board of Governors, Bluefield State College

Samuel L. Elmore

Retired Senior Vice President — Commercial LendorgRaleigh William P. Stafford

County, W. Va. Market, and Past Chief Credit Offjdéirst President, Princeton Machinery Service, Inc.

Community Bank; Past Executive Vice President,zEiis

Southern Bank, Inc.; Past President and Chief GipesaOfficer, William P. Stafford, II

Beckley National Bank; Past Vice President, KeytGgan Chief Executive Officer, First Community Bancshares.;
Bancshares; Director, Raleigh County Commissiogimg Attorney at Law, Brewster, Morhous, Cameron, Carithore,

Kersey & Stafford, PLLC
Franklin P. Hall
Businessman; Chairman, Hall & Hall Family Law Firfgrmer
Commissioner, Virginia Department of Alcoholic Bezge
Control; Former Chairman, The CommonWealth Bankntey
Minority Leader, Virginia House of Delegates; Corsgibner,
Richmond Redevelopment & Housing Authority

Richard S. Johnson

Chairman, President, and CEO, The Wilton Compatmé&gctor
and Past Chairman, Economic Development Authofithe City
of Richmond; Trustee Emeritus, University of Richrdc
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC .

William P. Stafford, I
Chief Executive Office

Gary R. Mills
Presiden

David D. Brown
Chief Financial Office

Robert L. Schumacher
General Counse

E. Stephen Lilly
Chief Operating Office

Robert L. Buzzo
Vice President and Secretz

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, FIRST COMMUNITY BANK

James H. Atkinson, Jr.

Retired Chief Executive Officer, Peoples Bank ofgifiia
W. C. Blankenship, Jr.

Retired Agent, State Farm Insurance

Robert L. Buzzo
Vice President and Secretary, First Community Bhass, Inc.;
President Emeritus, First Community Bank

Samuel D. Campbell
Attorney at Law

C. William Davis
Attorney at Law, Richardson & Davis

Samuel L. Elmore

Retired Senior Vice President — Commercial LendordRaleigh
County, W.Va. Market, and Past Chief Credit Offjdeirst
Community Bank; Past Executive Vice President,z€iis
Southern Bank, Inc.; Past President and Chief GipasaOfficer,
Beckley National Bank; Past Vice President, KeytGgan
Bancshares; Director, Raleigh County CommissioAgimg

T. Vernon Foster

President of J. La’Verne Print Communications; Bstctor,
TriStone Community Bank; Executive Director;: MBAdgrams,
Career Management & Public Relations, Universitafisville,
College of Business

Franklin P. Hall

Businessman; Chairman, Hall & Hall Family Law Firfgrmer
Commissioner, Virginia Department of Alcoholic Bezge
Control; Former Chairman, The CommonWealth Bankniey
Minority Leader, Virginia House of Delegates; Corsgibner,
Richmond Redevelopment & Housing Authot

139

Richard H. Jarrell
Businessman

Richard S. Johnson

Chairman, President, and CEO, The Wilton Compatmé&gctor
and Past Chairman, Economic Development Authofithe City
of Richmond; Trustee Emeritus, University of Richrdo

I. Norris Kantor
Of Counsel, Katz, Kantor, Stonestreet & Bucknetphiteys at
Law; Board of Governors, Bluefield State College

Gary R. Mills
President, First Community Bancshares, Inc.; Chiefcutive
Officer, First Community Bank

Martyn A. Pell
President, First Community Bank

M. Adam Sarver

Member/Co-Manager, Main Street Builders, LLC, Clokeaf
Properties, LLC, and Eastern Door & Glass, LLCnEipal,
Melrose Enterprises, LTD

William P. Stafford
President, Princeton Machinery Service, Inc.

William P. Stafford, Il

Chief Executive Officer, First Community Bancshares.;
Attorney at Law, Brewster, Morhous, Cameron, Carlsthore,
Kersey & Stafford, PLLC

Frank C. Tinder
President, Tinder Enterprises, Inc. and Tinco Lrea€lorporation;
Realtor, Premier Realty



Table of Contents

It em 11. Executive Compensation

Information regarding executive compensation i®iporated by reference to our Proxy Statementi®r2015 Annual Meeting under the
headings “Board Committees,” “Compensation Disarssind Analysis,” and “Director Compensation.”

It em12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement and Related Stockholder Matters

The following table presents information regardomgnpensation plans under which our equity secsrére authorized for issuance as of
December 31, 2014:

Number of securities "
Number of securities

Weighted- - )
elghtec-average remaining available

to be issued upon for future issuance
exercise of exercise price of under equity
outstanding outstanding compensation plans
options, warrants options, warrants (excluding securities
Plan category and rights and rights reflected in column (a)

@ (b) (©

Equity compensation plan:

approved by security

holders® 48,03t $ 20.5¢ 523,01(®)
Equity compensation plans

not approved by security

holders® 277,98 20.5¢ —
Total 326,02: 523,01(

(1) Includes the 2012 Omnibus Equity Compensation Bieh2004 Omnibus Stock Option Pl

(2) Includes the 2001 Directors’ Option Plan, 1838ck Option Plan, and other plans related to lpasiness combinations. These plans are
generally expired or not available to issue neviomst warrants, or right

(3) Shares available for future issuance are unde2@@ Omnibus Equity Compensation Pl

Additional information regarding security ownershippcertain beneficial owners and management isrparated by reference to our Proxy
Statement for the 2015 Annual Meeting under thelimggInformation on Stock Ownership.”

Ite m 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transdons, and Director Independence.

Information regarding certain relationships anated transactions and director independence ispocated by reference to our Proxy
Statement for the 2015 Annual Meeting under thelimeg “Corporate Governance” and “Related Persamdactions.”

It em 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Information regarding principal accounting fees aadvices is incorporated by reference to our P@tggement for the 2015 Annual Meeting
under the heading “Independent Registered Publgoiating Firm.”
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PART IV

Ite m 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(@) Documents Filed as a Part of this Rep

(1)

The following financial statements are incorporatgdeference from Item 8 of this Repc

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&012013.

Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years#mecember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomss{Lfor the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2012@b2.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockhol&psity for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2648 2012.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Yeaded December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfiimp on Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) All schedules for which provision is made ie tpplicable accounting regulation of the SEC an&ted because they are not
applicable or the required information is includedhe consolidated financial statements or relaiates theretc
(b) Exhibits
Exhibit
_No. Exhibit
2.1 Purchase and Assumption Agreement between Firsin@ority Bank and CresCom Bank dated August 6, 2(B3).
2.2 Purchase and Assumption Agreement between Banknafrida, National Association and First CommunitynBdated June
9, 2014. (36
3.1 Articles of Incorporation of First Community Banesks, Inc., as amended
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of First Community Bhares, Inc. (2
4.1 Specimen stock certificate of First Community Bdraes, Inc. (3
4.2 Indenture Agreement dated September 25, 200:
4.3 Declaration of Trust of FCBI Capital Trust datep®enber 25, 2003, as amended and restate
4.4 Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement date@®@épt 25, 2003. (¢
4.5 Certificate of Designation of 6.00% Series A Noncletive Convertible Preferred Stock. |
10.1** First Community Bancshares, Inc. 1999 Stock Opfigreement (8) and Plan. (
10.1.1** First Community Bancshares, Inc. 1999 Stock Op#tan, Amendment One. (1
10.2** First Community Bancshares, Inc. 2001 Nonqualifiéicector Stock Option Plan. (1.
10.3** Employment Agreement between First Community Baaess$) Inc. and John M. Mendez dated December 1T, 23
amended and restated (21) and Waiver Agreement
10.4** (F?irzsat Community Bancshares, Inc. and Affiliates €ixéve Retention Plan (12), Amendment #1 (13), Amtendment #2.
10.5** First Community Bancshares, Inc. Split Dollar Péardl Agreement. (1<
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Exhibit
No.

10.6**
10.7**

10.9**

10.10**
10.11**
10.12**
10.13*
10.14*
10.15*

10.16**

10.17**
10.18**
10.19**
10.21*
10.22**

10.23**

11
12*
21*
23.1*
31.1*
31.2*
32*

Exhibit
First Community Bancshares, Inc. Supplemental DarscRetirement Plan, as amended and restated

First Community Bancshares, Inc. Nonqualified Seppntal Cash or Deferred Retirement Plan, as ardeanttbrestated.
(16)

Form of Indemnification Agreement between First @mmity Bancshares, Inc., its Directors, and Ceraiacutive
Officers. (17)

Form of Indemnification Agreement between First @umity Bank, its Directors, and Certain Executivific@rs. (17)
First Community Bancshares, Inc. 2004 Omnibus S@gtion Plan (18) and Stock Award Agreement. |

First Community Bancshares, Inc. 2012 Omnibus FdDdmpensation Plan (3

First Community Bancshares, Inc. Directors Defe@etnpensation Plan, as amended and restatec

Employment Agreement between First Community Baacst) Inc. and David D. Brown dated December 1682(22)

Employment Agreement between First Community Baaess) Inc. and Robert L. Buzzo dated Decemberd®3,2as
amended and restated. (:

Employment Agreement between First Community Baass) Inc. and E. Stephen Lilly dated DecembeR68, as
amended and restated. (:

Employment Agreement between First Community Bamk @ary R. Mills dated December 16, 2008. (
Employment Agreement between First Community Bamk artyn A. Pell dated December 16, 2008. |
Employment Agreement between First Community Bamk Robert L. Schumacher dated December 16, 2008
Employment Agreement between First Community Bamk Mark R. Evans dated July 31, 2009. (

Form of Restricted Stock Grant Agreement undert isnmunity Bancshares, Inc. 2012 Omnibus Equitpn@ensation
Plan. (33)

Separation Agreement and Release between First QaitynBancshares, Inc. and John M. Mendez datedusi@g, 2013.
(34)

Statement Regarding Computation of Earnings peresiia0)
Statement Regarding Computation of Rat

Subsidiaries of the Registre

Consent of Independent Public Accounting F

Rule 13i-14(a)/15+14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Office
Rule 13i-14(a)/15¢14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Office

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chieinancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section@,3%s adopted pursu:
to Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
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Exhibit

_No. Exhibit
101.INS*** XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Documel
101.CAL*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntrig
101.LAB*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documel
101.PRE*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doeni
101.DEF*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhér
* Incorporated herewitt

**  |ndicates a management contract or compensation

***  Submitted electronically herewit

#  Attached as Exhibit 101 to the Annual Report omi10K for the year ended December 31, 2013, of Firsh@anity Bancshares, In
are the following documents formatted in XBRL (edd#&/e Business Reporting Language): (i) Consoldi&alance Sheets as of
December 31, 2013, and 2012; (ii) ConsolidatedeBtants of Income for the years ended December@@B,2012, and 2011; (iii)
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomihéoyears ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 291 Consolidated
Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the yeamdeeihDecember 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011; (v) CorselidStatements of Cash Flows
for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, aht 20d (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statets.

(1) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3(i)tbé Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the periodezhJune 30, 2010, filed on August
16, 2010

(2) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1 of then@nt Report on Form-K dated September 24, 2013, filed on Septembe?@E3.

(3) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1twé Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period enBedember 31, 2002, filed on March
25, 2003, amended on March 31, 2C

(4) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.2teé Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the periodezgh8eptember 30, 2003, filed on
November 10, 200

(5) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.3teé Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the periodegh8eptember 30, 2003, filed on
November 10, 200:

(6) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.4 Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the periodesh8eptember 30, 2003, filed on
November 10, 200:

(7) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 of then@nt Report on Form-K dated May 20, 2011, filed on May 23, 20

(8) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.5h# Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the periodezhJune 30, 2002, filed on August
14, 2002

(9) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1the Annual Report on Form I{or the period ended December 31, 1999, filedviamck
30, 2000, amended on April 13, 20!

(10) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4fthe Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the peodled March 31, 2004, filed on May
7,2004.

(11) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4teff Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the perindesl June 30, 2002, filed on August
14, 2002

(12) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 of @@rrent Report on Forn-K dated December 30, 2008, filed on January 5, 2

(13) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 of @@rent Report on Forn-K dated December 16, 2010, filed on December 1¥0z

(14) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.8hef Annual Report on Form Xfor the period ended December 31, 1999, filedviamck
30, 2000, amended on April 13, 20!
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(15) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 of @@rent Report on Forn-K dated December 16, 2010, filed on December 170z

(16) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 99.1 of @@rent Report on Forn-K dated August 22, 2006, filed on August 23, 2(

(17) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.8 &xhibit 10.2 of the Current Report on Form 8-KedbFebruary 25, 2014, filed on
March 3, 2014

(18) Incorporated by reference from Annex B to2084 First Community Bancshares, Inc. DefinitivexBr Statement filed on March 15,
2004.

(19) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.£3h@ Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the perodied June 30, 2004, filed on August
6, 2004.

(20) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 99.2 of @@rent Report on Forn-K dated August 22, 2006, filed on August 23, 2(

(21) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 of @@rent Report on Fornm-K dated and filed on December 16, 20

(22) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 of @@rent Report on Fornm-K dated and filed on December 16, 20

(23) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 of @@rent Report on Forn-K dated and filed on July 6, 20C

(24) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 of @@rrent Report on Forn-K dated and filed on July 6, 20C

(25) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 of @@rrent Report on Forn-K dated and filed on July 6, 20C

(26) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4 of @@rrent Report on Forn-K dated and filed on July 6, 20C

(27) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.5 of @@rent Report on Forn-K dated and filed on July 6, 20C

(28) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 of then@nt Report on Form-K dated April 2, 2009, filed on April 3, 200

(29) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 of @@rent Report on Forn-K dated December 16, 2010, filed on December 170z

(30) Incorporated by reference from Note 1 of the NeveSondensed Consolidated Financial Statementsded| herein

(31) Incorporated by reference from the 2012 First ComitguBancshares, Inc. Definitive Proxy Statemeletdfion March 7, 201:

(32) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 of @@rent Report on Forn-K dated February 21, 2013, filed on February 29,3

(33) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 99.1 of @@rrent Report on Forn-K dated and filed May 28, 201

(34) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 99.1 of @@rent Report on Fornm-K/A dated August 12, 2013, filed on September 3,2

(35) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 99.1 of @@rent Report on Forn-K dated August 6, 2014, filed on August 7, 2C

(36) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 99.3 of @@rent Report on Forn-K/A dated June 9, 2014, filed on June 10, 2(
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S| GNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized on the'8 day of March, 2015.

First Community Bancshares, Inc.

(Registrant)
By: /s/ William P. Stafford, Il By: /s/ David D. Brown
William P. Stafford, Il David D. Brown
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Executive Officer) (Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accourdi

Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ William P. Stafford, Il Chairman and Chief Executive Officer March 3, 2015
William P. Stafford, Il
/s/ David D. Brown Chief Financial Officer March 3, 2015
David D. Brown
/s W.C. Blankenship, Jr. Director March 3, 2015
W.C. Blankenship, J
/s/ Samuel L. EImore Director March 3, 2015
Samuel L. Elmort
/s/ Franklin P. Hall Director March 3, 2015
Franklin P. Hall
/s/ Richard S. Johnson Director March 3, 2015
Richard S. Johnsc
/s/ William P. Stafford Director March 3, 2015

William P. Stafford
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Exhibit 12

STATEMENT REGARDING COMPUTATION OF RATIOS

Cash Dividends Per Share
Book Value Per Share

Return on Average Asse
Return on Average Sharehold Equity
Efficiency Ratio (GAAP)

Efficiency Ratio (Non-GAAP)

Loans to Deposit

Dividend Payout

Average Shareholde Equity to Average Asse
Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital Ratio

Total Risk-Based Capital Ratio

Leverage Rati
Net Charg-offs to Average Loan

Nonperforming Loans to Total Loa

Nonperforming Assets to Total Loans and OR

Allowance for Loan Losses to Total Loans

Allowance for Loan Losses to Nonperforming Assets

Allowance for Loan Losses to Nonperforming Loans

Net Interest Margit

Dividends Paid to Common Shareholders/Average Cammo
Shares Outstandir

Total Shareholders’ Equity/As-Converted Common 8har
Outstanding

Net Income/Average Asse
Net Income/Average Sharehold Equity

Noninterest Expense/(Net Interest Income Plus Nerést
Income)

See schedule under Item 7 — Management’s Discuasidn
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Giems

Average Net Loans/Average Deposits Outstan:

Dividends Declared to Common Shareholders/Net Ircom
Available to Common Shareholde

Average Shareholde Equity/Average Assel

(Shareholders’ Equity Plus Qualifying Subordinaizbt) —
Intangible Assets — Securities Marketra@arket Capital Reser
(Tier 1 Capital)/ Risk Adjusted Asse

Tier 1 Capital Plus Allowance for Loan Losses/Réskusted
Assets

Tier 1 Capital/Average Asse
(Gross Charc-offs Less Recoveries)/Average Net Loi

(Nonaccrual Loans, Loans Past Due 90 Days or QreRites
Unseasoned Restructured Loans)/Gross Loans Neteditded
Interest

(Nonaccrual Loans, Loans Past Due 90 Days or Gteate
Unseasoned Restructured Loans, Plus OREO)/GrossLet
of Unearned Interest plus ORE

Allowance for Loan Losses/(Gross Loans Net of Unedr
Interest)

Allowance for Loan Losses/(Nonaccrual Loans, Lodast Dug¢
90 Days or Greater, Unseasoned Restructured LBuns,
OREO)

Allowance for Loan Losses/(Nonaccrual Loans plus
Nonperforming Loans

Tax Equivalent Net Interest Income/Average Earmisgets



Title
First Community Banl|
Greenpoint Insurance Group, It

First Community Wealth Management, |i

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

State of Incorporation

Virginia
North Caroling

West Virginia

Exhibit 21



Exhibit 23.1

-Consent of Independent Reqistered Public Accountingirm -

To the Audit Committee of the Board of Directorsldahe Stockholders
First Community Bancshares, Inc.

We consent to the incorporation by reference irrégstration statements pertaining to the 2013f&egistration (Form S-3, No. 333-
187818); 2012 Omnibus Equity Compensation PlanniF8#8, No. 333-183057); 2011 Convertible PrefeBadres (Form S-3, No. 333-
175262); the 2004 Omnibus Stock Option Plan (Fofé) Bo. 333-120376); the 2001 Directors Stock Qp#dan (Form S-8, No. 333-
75222); the 1999 Stock Option Plan (Form S-8, 3B33B); the Employee Stock Ownership and Savings Harm S-8, No. 3383865); an
the TriStone Community Bank Employee and DirectmcE Option Plans (Form S-8, No. 333-161473) o$tF@ommunity Bancshares, Inc.
and Subsidiaries (the “Company”) of our reporteddtlarch 3, 2015, with respect to the consolidéiteahcial statements of the Company
and the effectiveness of internal control overiiitial reporting, which reports appear in the Conypm8014 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

/sl Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP

Charlotte, North Carolina
March 3, 2015



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, William P. Stafford, Il, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of First Community Bancshares, In

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dondtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our

supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over financigloiting or caused such internal control over finan@porting to be designed under

our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadiang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrattisslosure controls and procedures and presentéisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affectedis reasonably likely to materially affect, ttegistrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; an

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial

reporting, to the registre’s auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cordvel financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invawveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 3, 2015

/s/ William P. Stafford, Il

William P. Stafford, Il
Chief Executive Office



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, David D. Brown, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of First Community Bancshares, In

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dondtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over financigloiting or caused such internal control over finan@porting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadiang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrattisslosure controls and procedures and presentéisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affectedis reasonably likely to materially affect, ttegistrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; an

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial

reporting, to the registre’s auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cordvel financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invawveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 3, 2015

/s/ David D. Brown

David D. Brown
Chief Financial Office



Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned certify, to their best knowledge belief, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, aptatl pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Annual Report on Form 10-K of First CommuiBancshares, Inc. (the “Companydy the period ended December 31, 2014
“Report”) fully complies with the requirements oé@&ion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangedkd 934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 3, 2015

By: /s/ William P. Stafford, Il

William P. Stafford, Il
Chief Executive Office

By: /s/ David D. Brown

David D. Brown
Chief Financial Office



